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WASTE LANDS COMMITTEE:
REPORT ON PETITION OF F.D. RICH AND W.H. WILLIAMS; TOGETHER WITH PETITION,

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE, AND APPENDIX.

Beport brought up 28th October, 1884, and ordered to be printed.

EEPOET.
The petitioners are theproprietors of the Shag Point Colliery, and they allege they have suffered
severe pecuniary loss through the action of the Government Inspector of Mines (Mr. Binns), which
action led to the necessity of closing the mine. They pray that relief may be granted to them for
the purpose of reopening the mine.

After an extended inquiry into the merits of the case, and having examined a number of
witnesses, manyof them being experts, the Committee have the honour to report—l. That in their
opinion the action of the Inspector of Mines was warranted. 2. That, looking at the capital
expended on this mine, and the need of keeping open a coal mine in the district, a lease of the
submarine coal fields for a long term should be granted to Messrs. Eich and Williams, and an
extension of the existing lease if no private rights are interfered with. 3. That a Government
grant should be made in aid of reopening the mine, such grant not to exceed one-third of the total
cost of such reopening, and in no case to exceed £5,000.

James Fulton,
28th October, 1884. Chairman.
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PETITION.

To the Honourable the Speaker and Members of the House of Bepresentatives
of New Zealand in Parliament assembled.

The Humble Petition of Francis Dyer Eich, of Otago, in the Colony of New Zealand,
Sheep-farmer, and William Henry Williams, of S^hag Point, in the Colony of New
Zealand, Mining Manager.

Showeth, —
1. That your petitioners are the occupiers of thepublic coal field and of certain lands, namely,
a quarry reserveof 40 acres, and a portion of acoal reserve, containing in all 170 acres, situated at
Shag Point, Block 111., Moeraki Survey District, in the Provincial District of Otago, under lease,
for thepurpose of carrying on mining operations on the said lands.

2. That mining operations have been carried on on the said lands for aperiod of six years, up
to the 11th day of February, 1884.

3. That, in carrying on the said operations and works incidental thereto, and in thepurchase
of machinery for such works, your petitioners have incurred a large expenditure,exceeding in all the
sum of £20,000.

4. That, for the better carrying on of the said operations, and for further developing the said
works, your petitioners, on the 2nd day of September, 1881, applied to the General Government of
New Zealandfor a lease of 190 acres of land under the sea, and adjoining the land then held by
your petitioners.

5. That your petitioners were prevented by section 147 of "The Harbours Act, 1878," from
obtaininga lease of thesaid land so applied for; but a license to carryon mining operations,revocable
at will, was granted to your petitioners as from the Ist day of September, 1881, and the said license
contained no regulations as to the manner in which the said operations wereto be carried on.

6. That your petitioners thereupon opened up the said land held on license by a dip-incline on
the true dip of the seam, 7 chains in length from the boundary of the land held on lease, with
a cover at the lowest point of 211 feet, and at the shallowest of 96 feet, and from this incline opened
up the seamboth north and south on the strike of the seam by working bord-and-pillar system, and
also sunk a shaft for an upcast to a depth of 160 feet, and that shaft a further depth of 100 feet, for
the purpose of the more economical winning and hoisting'of the coal.

7. That your petitioners have laid out a considerable sum of money on the said shaft and
submarine drives, amounting in all to the sum of £7,000.

8. That the said submarine workings in the land held under the said license were carried on
for aperiod of about two years, and in a satisfactory manner.

9. That, at the end of that period, after a considerable quantity of coal had been won, the said
workings, on being inspected from time to time by the Inspector of Mines, were found to be in a
very satisfactory condition, and no complaint was made by him.

10. That, on the 24th day of January, 1883, the Inspector of Mines made afurther inspection
of the said workings, and took exceptionto the state of the north end of the upper drive where the
roof was soft and falls of roof frequent. He also objected to the width of the pillars supporting the
roof of the said drive.

11. That your petitioners' mining manager, on the 31st day of January, 1883, received notice
from the Inspector of Mines to have afresh survey made of the mine and workings.

12. That, on tho same day, the Inspector of Mines visited the mine for the purpose of making
a survey.

13. That some timeprevious to this date your petitioners' mining manager had informed the
said Inspector that one part of the then existing plan of the mine surveyed by a Mr. Bishop was
incorrect, but that the inaccuracy was quite immaterial; and also, during the Inspector's survey,
called his attention to the fact that he was making the working-places wider than they actually
were, by taking his measurements at the cross-cut openings, which would show a greaterwidth than
really existed.

14. That your petitioners' mining manager, on the 14th day of February, 1883, received from
the Inspector of Mines a written notice that the works were to be carriedon, subject to certain
conditions, as follows:—

"Nomore pillars to be weakened by splitting or takingribs off. The following places
are tobe continued:—

" (1.) Three bords to the north side of the north cuddy to the rise, for the purpose of
exploring this portion of the field;

" (2.) Two bords off the mainreturn (old back, heading main dip);
" (3.) The bords off the south cuddy;
" (4.) The cross-cut for continuation of engine plane, which will be driven as small as

possible, close-timbered,and packed :
"Provided that no bord be driven wider than 14feet, and driven with lines; bolt-

holes to be driven every 33 yards, and the air -guided through with cloths or
stoppings.

" The dams which it was agreed were to be constructed, so as to have the power to
immediately shut off the mine-workings from the shaft, will be put in."

And the said conditions were accepted in writing by your petitioners' mining manager.
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15. That, after receipt of the letter of the 14th day of February, 1883, your petitioners' mining
manager had a personal interview with the said Inspector, and obtained leave to prospect to the
north.

16. That, on the 24th day of February, 1883, your petitioners' mining managerreceived notice
from the said Inspector to discontinue working the said mine; and thereupon your petitioners'
mining manager again saw the said Inspector, who gave him permission to work the said sub-
marine workings until the arrival of the managing director, Mr. Eich, from England.

17. That, some time subsequently to the receipt by your petitioners' mining manager of the
letter of the 14th day of February, 1883, your petitioners' mining manager had an interview with
the said Inspector, when the said Inspector suggested that it might be necessary to let the upper
seamfill with water, and your petitioners' mining manager thereupon pointed out that the water
would have the effect of softening the roof and bringing it down, also of swelling the fireclayfloor,
and throwing out thepillars.

18. That, during the time these negotiations were proceeding, your petitioners' mining manager
pointed out to the said Inspector that the falls of roof were no worse than is usual in mines.

19. That your petitioners' mining manager also pointed out that the stoppage of the said
works would cut your petitioners off from the whole of the upper district, and suggested that packs
of wood, brick, or stone should be put in any place the said Inspector might wish, in order that the
pumping might notbe stopped ; but the said Inspector refused to allow this to be done.

20. That your petitioners could have continued working both on the dip and strike to the
north if the said works had not been stopped by your mining manager being engaged in opening up
the seam at that time.

21. That your petitioners applied on the sth day of July, 1883, to the Hon. the Minister of
Mines for a Commission to inquire into the serious question of allowing the said submarine work-
ings to fill with water,which said Commission was refused; and yourpetitioners thereuponcalled in
Mr. Denniston, a mining engineer, to report upon the said mine, and as to the effect of the said
water.

22. That Mr. Denniston reported most strongly against the action of the said Inspector in
allowing the water to accumulate in the said submarine workings.

23. That your petitioners, upon the stoppage of the said works, continued to take coal from
parts of land held on lease, which under ordinary circumstances it was not advisable to do, and
which they would not have done if the said works had not been stopped.

24. That theeffect of the stoppage of the said works was this : that the waterrose to the dams
which had been put in to check it in the upper workings, and then threatenedto burst through and
flood the lower workings; whereupon the said Inspector stopped all operations in the said workings,
entirely closing the whole mine.

25. That, after the said mine had been entirely closed, your petitioners applied for a Commission
of inquiry into the circumstances which led to theclosing of the said mine, which said Commission
was also refused.

26. That the said mine could be reopened by sinking two newshafts at a depth of threehundred
feet, with a drive a distance of twelve hundred feet, to catch two seams of coal, and moving the
hoisting and winding machinery, pumps, &c, to the winding shaft.

Your petitioners therefore humbly pray that your honourable House will take the allegations
of your petitioners into serious consideration,and will afford to them such relief as to your honour-
able House shall seem fit for the purpose of the reopening of the said mine.

And your petitioners will everpray, &c. F. D. Eich.
W. H. Williams.

Witness to signature of the said Francis Dyer Eich—George Whitelaw.
Witness to the signature of William HenryWilliams—S.P. Eainey, Bank Manager,Palmerston,

Otago.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

Thursday, 18th September, 1884 (Mr. James Fulton, Chairman).
Petition of F. D. Eich and another.

Mr. F. D. Eich, examined.
1. Mr. Hurst/] Will you be good enough, Mr. Eich, to make a statement to the Committee

in support of your petition ?
About the year 1880, in consequence of the coal in the land under lease running out,

I made an application to the Minister of Mines for a lease seaward, where the coal was known
to be unbroken and well defined. The Government could not grant the lease without legis-
lation, but granted a license, revokable at will, for an area of waste land in Otago, which
was duly granted. The coal company then proceeded to open up permanent and extensive
submarine workings, but before doing so they had to put down a drive, so as to make sure
that there was a large submarine seam of coal. These submarine workings were in operation
and under the inspection of Mr. Binns for a period of three years previous to February, 1883,
and no exception during this period was everraised by Mr. Binns, either withrespect to insufficient
cover overhead or as to the plan of the woikings, until about January, 1883, when the Inspector
expressed his opinion that it would be necessary to gofarther seaward and to work with larger cover
overhead. The mining manager and myself, as managing director, offered no opposition to the
stoppage of taking out coal from the submarine workings, and consented to work under the
conditions imposed by Mr. Binns. The mining managerwasrequested to carryoutMr. Binns's new
regulations, which were only imposed after the submarine workings had been going on for three
years. We asked that the submarine workings should be kept dry, and not allowed to fill with
water. As Mr. Binns, in his letter of February or March, 1883, had instructed that the then sub-
marine workings should be closed, and consequently to fill with water, it was pointed out to Mr.
Binns that it would be fatal to the whole of the mainland workings,both upper and lower seams, as
they were connected with the submarine workings. Mr. Binns refused to allow the submarine
workings to bekept dry, as requestedby the minemanager, and told both the managerand myself that
the effect of allowing the submarine workings to fill with waterwould be to support the roof. Both
Mr. Williams and myself urged upon Mr. Binns that they, should bekept free from water, and that
access should be had through them to future submarine workings. Mr. Binns also refused to allow
this. The mine manager informed Mr. Binns in my presence that his action wouldeventuate in
the absolute ruin of the whole property, and stated his reasons fully for holding that opinion. As
we were working under license and not under lease the Mining Act did not apply, and the license
contained a provision that the company should work to the satisfaction of the Inspector.
Considering there was no appeal against his decision the works were stopped, and the
water commenced to acoumulate. About three months after the results prognosticated by
the manager wore apparent, and the mine manager informed me, as managing director,
that nothing but ruin would result from the action insisted upon by Mr. Binns. I requested
tlie mine manager to write a letter stating what he had to say with regard to the injury
that was being done, which he did, advising me to apply for a Commission, asking that Dr. Hector

"and some other competent authorities should inquire into the whole matter, and determine whether
tho opinion expressed by the manager, that it would eventuate in ruin, could be borne out, or
whether the Commission would approve of the action already imposed upon the company by the
Inspector with reference to allowing the mine to be filled with water. I enclosed the mine
manager's letterin a letter which I wrote to the Minister of Mines, asking him to give his attention
to such a very serious matter, and to grant a Commission of inquiry, such as I have nowindicated,
to investigate the whole circumstancesof the case, and to see whether Mr. Binns or Mr. Williams
wereright. I also enclosed plans, &c, in the letter to the Minister. I afterwards received a tele-
gram from the Secretary of Mines, stating that the Government saw no reason to interfere, and
there was therefore no necessity for me to send the mine managerto Wellington, as I had offered to
send the manager to Wellington to give all the necessary information. Dams were thenput in, at a
cost of £500, to shut off the waterfrom the lowerseamworkingswhen the waterin the submarine work,
ings hadraised to a certain height. I may say that in the letter of the sth July the mine manager
clearly andemphaticallygives his reasons whyit wouldeventuallystop the workingsin everypart. We
then put in the dams. When the waterhad risen to the upperseam of the landworkings andreached
the dams connecting with the shaft of the lower workings the pressure was about 2001b. to the
square inch. There was at the time a large number of men in the lower works, only 70 feet below
this large body of water, covering an area of 20 acres, which would have been immediately over
their heads. Many of the men then refused to go downuntil the Inspectorhad been sent for, but
the greater portion still continued to work there until Mr. Binns arrived. Mr. Binns then went
down the shaft himself and saw the enormous pressure of water forcing itself through the dams
and measures. He was then reluctantly compelled to instruct the manager to withdraw
the whole of his men, 'which was accordingly done, and thereby the whole of the mine
became absolutely closed. Mr. Binns, in his letter asking for the withdrawal of the men,
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gave his reasons for doing so in almost the same language and in an identicalmanner to that which
was used by the mine manager about twelve or fourteen months before, and the opinion arrived _at
was the same as that given by Mr. Williams as far back as twelve months previously, the mine
manager's opinion being also thereby verified. Just after the mine manager wrote his letter
of the sth July, Mr. Denniston, mining engineer for Westport, Kaitangata, and Shag Point,
was asked to inspect the submarine workings of the portion unfilled with water, which would
probably be about three-fourths of the areaworked. In his report on it hestates that the appearance
of thepillars and workingsshowedthat therewas sufficient and ample support; but that if falls existed
to the extent shown upon the Government plan, it would be only right and proper on the part of
the Inspector to stop all workings with respect to the taking out of any further coal; and in the
same report he most strongly condemns the action of the Inspector in having allowed the water
to accumulate. Mr. Binns's statement, to the effect that the company took this action either
as to the stoppage of the submarine workings, or as to allowing the water to accumulate, or
as to the withdrawal of the men, which led to the closing of the whole mine, is entirely inaccurate.
In giving notice for thewithdrawal of the men in his letter in February, he asks for the acquiescence
of the mine manager (thereby showing that the order came from him) as to the withdrawal of the
men. The mine manager, in his reply, stated that he could not do otherwise than acquiesce in the
advisability of withdrawing the men who would be working in the most imminent danger, and he
stated that this danger had been clearly and emphatically pointed out by him twelve months
previously, which would certainly result by allowingthe water to accumulate. Therefore the order
for the withdrawal of the men, which practically was the closing of the mine, was entirely the
action of the Inspector, although I, as managing director, said I should be sorry to see 100 men
working where thewater might burst on them at anymoment. In fact, the lower workings became
immediately filled with water after the men were withdrawn. I then asked that the Government
should cause an inquiry to be made into the circumstances of the case, and the closing of thispublic
coal field. This, however,wasrefusedby theGovernment. A second application was afterwardssent
to the Government, pointing outthat therewas a very largesum ofmoneyinvolvedin the matter, and
also referring to the importance of the industry to the public, but they again refused to grant any
inquiry into the matter. I have no hesitation in saying that, if the inquiry which was asked for in
July, 1883, had been granted, the result would have been that we should have been allowedto have
pumped the water from the submarine workings, and kept them dry, and the opinion expressed
both by Mr. Denniston and by Mr. Williams would have been fully borne out, that they wouldhave
stood until doomsday. I fully believe that entirely through the action taken by the Inspector the
mine has been injured to the extent of from about £10,000 to £20,000. At the time of the with-
drawal of the men there was a most efficient plant at the mine, whichwas second to none in the
colony, and through this unfortunate action of the Inspector it has necessitatedprospecting the
fieldboth north and south, which is now being done by the diamond drill, and which, by a telegram
I received this morning, I am informed is now down 603 feet.

2. Mr. Macandrew.] There is one question I should like to ask you, Mr. Eich. I understand
it is your decided opinion that if the inquiry you asked for had been granted the mine would now
have been in full working order?—I have no doubt at all but that the mine would have been now
putting out about 150or 200 tons of coal per day. The day before we closed the mine we put out
about 125 tons.

3. What would the railway haulage on 150 tons of coal amount to ?—I should think on an
average to about 6s. per ton.

4. What would you estimate the actual cost which would be incurred in replacing the mine in
working order?—I should estimate that the expense of the diamonddrill would be from £1,200 to
£1,500; then, the sinking of two shafts, and taking down and erecting machinery from the closed
workings to the new works, wrould cost about £12,000.

5. Mr. Macandrew.] Then, youhave actuallysustained aloss of £12,000, irrespective of profits ?
—I have no doubt about it.

6. You say that Mr. Denniston is an expert?—Yes; I should say he is second to none in the
colony.

7. And you have got a written report from him concerning the action of the Mining Inspector?
—Yes; condemning his action in the strongest possible language.

8. How long has the mining manager been engaged in thisoccupation ?—For fifteen years. He
has also been manager of the Kawakawa Coal Company for eight years.

9. And you consider that his opinion is of very great value?—I do.
10. Mr. Bruce] Will it be possible, Mr. Eich, to resume working in that mine again ?—I may

state that it is the opinion of the Government Inspector that it is one of the most valuable coal
properties in the South Island. I have no hesitation at all in saying that there are plenty of seams
there, and there is coal enough to last for centuries. Dr. Hector, Dr. Haast, and Professor Ulrich
have all expressed their opinion that there is an immensefield of coal lying seaward, and that the
land is full of coal.

11. Mr. Bruce] Would the fact of the mine having been flooded have any bad effect in the event
of work being resumed ?—No ;we shall not go near the closed workings; but there is plenty of coal
still availableby opening up.

12. Mr. Macandrew.] How long have the works been absolutely stopped?—Since about the
30th March. They were stopped shortly after my return from England.

13. Have you any idea of the quantity of coal lost by the stoppage of the works ?—The loss in
the output to the company since "the closing of the mine would be about 15,000 tons. But the
quantity of coal which was already opened up, andready to be opened up, would be about 200,000
or 300,000 tons, which is irrecoverably lost to the company by the flooding of the mine.

14. Mr. Bolleston.] Is it not the case that the water had risen to a very considerable height
for some time before any application was made for a Commission of inquiry ?—No ; not to such an
extent but that it could be easily pumped out, which the company wereperfectlyprepared to do.
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15. Are you not aware that Dr. Hector was of opinion that Mr. Binns wasright in taking the
action he did take?—I have alreadystated that Dr. Hector expressed to me most strongly the great
dangerth st wouldresult from allowing the mine to be filled with water. He took exception to that
altogether.

16. Mr. Bolleston.] Did Mr. Binns prevent you from pumping out the water?—Most un-
doubtedly he did, by ordering the absolute closing of the mine, and the withdrawal of all the men
from the submarine workings, and thereby prevented the employment of the necessary men for
pumping operations. The closing of the mine is entirely owing to Mr. Binns's refusal to allow the
mine to be kept free from water, in accordance with the manager's request.

Tuesday, 30th September, 1884.
Mr. Chapman appeared for Mr. Eich, and Mr. Eeid for the Mines Department.
Mr. Chapman : With reference to the order of proceedings, I understand you will accept the

evidence that has been given. I have looked over that; but I see it will be necessary to recall
.some of the witnesses, because there are some questions that seem to have been omitted. I
have the questions I propose to put noted down here, and I propose to put the questions as shortly
as possible, and dispose of these witnesses as quickly as possible. With regard to any opening
statement, I donot know that that is necessary ; because, though I do not know exactly what has
been done so far by the Committee, I understand the point in dispute—which is, after all, really
the one question—has been pretty clearly put before the Committee already; and I intend, in calling
evidence, to directit to that one point : that point being, thepropriety of the action of the Inspector
of Mines in causing the mine to be filled with water at the time when he ordered Mr. Williams to
withdraw the whole of the men from the seaward workings of this mine. There is one question
that I wish particularly to direct the attention of the Committee to, and that is this: In the corre-
spondence with the Government it appears that on more than one occasion, I think, the answer
was given to thepetitioners that if they had a grievance they might obtainredress by legal process
under " The Inspection of Mines Act, 1874 :" that their proper course was to insist on a statutory
notice in pursuance of that Act, and to proceed to arbitration before the tribunal which thatAct
constituted for that purpose. The short answer to that is this : In the first place, as I understand
the position, this mine was not one within the contemplation of that Act at all. Idonot think it
was within the jurisdiction of the Inspector of Mines at all. It was a mine beyond any constituted
district, and, though the Government seem to have taken up this position, Mr. Binns himself, in"his correspondence with the Government, seems to have shown that he was not under that mis-
apprehension—that he clearly apprehended the position. The position of this mine was apeculiar
one. It was originally held under license. That license—which has, I think, been before the
Committee—was merely, both in the popular and legal sense, a license to mine, and a legal
incident of the license was thatit was revocable at the will of the grantor, and this is expressed to
be revocable at the will of the Government. Then, later, the same gentleman who, under the
direction of the Government, granted and signed that license—the Commissioner of Crown Lands
at Dunedin—wrote a letter, which I have not seen (the writing of this letter having been originally
suggested, I think, by the Inspector of Mines), the substantial effect of which was that the mine
was to be worked subject to the approval of the Inspectorof Mines. The working having proceeded
on the footing of that letter, that letter entered into and must be deemed to be a part of the terms
upon which the mine was held; consequently, it is virtually a supplementary license. That being
so, the position of the licensees was this : that any breach by them of the conditions under which
they held the mine, subject to the terms of the license, would effect the forfeiture of that license :
it would not be necessary even to wait for the revocation : it would effect the forfeiture of the
license, and they would become virtually trespassers from the moment they committedany breach
of it, so that the license would be revoked without any order on the part of the Government; so
that the present petitioners were obliged absolutely to work under the orders of the Inspector.
And the Inspector fully understood that evidently. Then, there is another misapprehension in the
correspondence, apparently,which Iwish to clear up once for all. The petitioners arenot here com-
plaining of the ultimate action of the Inspector of Mines in finallyclosing the mine. That is not
the subject of complaint, because Mr. Williams, either verbally to Mr. Binns, or by writing, I forget
which at this moment, at the time when this original order was given, predicted that it would
ultimately necessitate the closing of the mine. The burden of complaint here is that the petitioners
were compelled to allow the seaward workings to fill with water. They did not resist the order:
they did not contemplate resisting the order to cease getting coal from the seaward workings. If
they had been ordered to cease getting coal from there, they would at once have ceased, and they
would not—though their position there would have been affected by such an order—have felt
themselves in a position to complain in this manner. They might have gone on, as they
contemplated, keeping those seaward workings dry, and possibly, upon further inquiry, it might
have been found best to go on working them. They do not complain of being compelled to
cease getting coal from that portion of the mine ; but what they complain of is that they were
ordered to withdraw every man from the mine, and they were obliged to allow the seaward
workings to fill with water; and that is substantially the burden of their complaint: and to that,
and almost solely to that, we propose to direct the evidence before this Committee. As to the
effect of that, evidence has been given, and still further evidence will be given; but I will call the
attention of the Committee to the fact that originally Mr. Williams pointed out that the effect of
that wouldbe disastrous.

Mr. Beid asked, the Committee if it was their intention to begin de novo, or whether they would
take it for granted that a greatdeal of evidence had been heard, and that this was merely supple-
mentary.

Mr. Chapman said he had opened briefly, and assumed that a large amount of evidence was
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before the Committee. He understood that that was so, and the Committee was already familiar
with a great many of the facts. It was very undesirable to lengthen the proceedings if they could
be treated shortly.

Counsel retired, and the Committee deliberated on the point. After deliberation, counsel were
recalled, and the Chairman said the Committee had decided to commence de novo. Counsel would
probably very much shorten the case by theirknowledge of it.

Mr. F. D. Eich, having been sworn, was examined.
17. Mr. Chapman.] This statement you have already made : you confirm that?—Yes.
18. Do you wish to add anything to that?—I think not. There is some further cross-examina-

tion that has not been published. [Statement put in : videAppendix.]
Mr. W. H. Williams, Manager, Shag Point Coal-Mming Company, examined on oath.
19. Mr. Chapman.] How long have you been engaged as a coal-mine manager?—Since Decem-

ber, 1869.
20. Where were you engaged before you went to Shag Point?—At the Bay of Islands Coal

Company.
21. Was that a large mine : were the operationsextensive?—Yes.
22. You receivedyour appointment at Shag Point, when?—ln 1878.
23. You know the position of all the workings at Shag Point ?—Yes.
24. When did you commence working under the license grantedby the Commissioner of Crown

Lands at Dunedin ?—The license was granted in 1882.
25. In those workings there is an upper seam and a lower seam ?—ln one part.
26. What was the extent of the workings in the upper seam?—In the submarine workings, you

mean?- 27. Yes ?—Somewhere about ten acres.
28. What is the total extent of the workings in the upper seam which is below sea-level ? By

"submarine" I understand you to mean beyond high-or low-watermark?—About two-thirds of
the ten acres are below high-watermark. Part of the license was above high-water mark. The
line of the lease ends about a chain above high-water mark.

29. When did Mr. Binns first communicatewith you with reference to the closing of the sub-
marine workings ?—ln January, 1883.

30. What was the nature of his communication ?—He said he was afraid the coal being taken
out was too much for the safety of the mine. He thought I was taking out too much coal.

31. What further passed between you?—I told him'that wherever he considered I was taking
out too much coal, if he gave me an orderto stop, I would do so.

32. Did he go through any of the workings with you ?—Yes.
33. On that occasion or on previous occasions?—On all the occasions he visited the mine I

went through with him, with very few exceptions.
34. Did he evergive you any directions with reference to the seaward working held under the

license?—No.
35. Had you any directions or instructions from Mr. Binns on the subject of working the

mine ?—Not previous to the time you are asking me about now.
36. Not previous to January ?—No.
37. When didyou have any instructions?—By letter, dated the 14thFebruary.
38. That was some time after he had spoken to you, and you had offered to cease working for

coal wherever he directed you ?—Yes. When he spoke to me about stopping taking out Qoal he
also mentioned at the same time that he might have to stop all operations, and let the mine fill
with water.

39. When did he first say that?—I have not the date. This was in conversation at the mine.
40. In what month was it ?—ln January.
41. He spoke of stopping all operations, and letting the mine fill with water?—Yes; and

further, that he would have to let the mine fill with wateT as a support to the roof. I argued with
him on the folly of allowing the water to come in, and pointed out the nature of the cover of the
roof. I said I would do anything; would stop taking out coalwherever he directed ; would do any-
thing rather than stop the pumping; that wherever he considered a weak place I would put in a
stone pack, wood pack, or a brick-and-mortar pack, if desired, rather than stop pumping.

42. What is the effect of putting in stone packs or wood packs?—To support roofs.
43. You protestedstrongly against letting the water into the mine?—Yes.
44. Was that in the first conversation with him, or not?—When he first broached the subject

of letting in the water.
45. Did you, on that occasion, point out to him what would be the effect of so doing?—Yes;

very strongly.
46. And what did you say would be the effect of so doing?—I told him that the effect would

be that, as the water rose, it would ruin the submarine workings, and when the water rose to a
certain height in the shaft it would also ruin the lower-seamworkings.

47. These lower-seamworkings are underlying a portion of the upper-seam workings?—Yes.
48. And as the water rose it would cover a portion?—Yes; it would cover the whole of them.
49. What did you tell him, in your opinion, the effect would %e upon the roof of the upper-

seam workings ?—I told hint the- effect would be, instead of supporting the roof it would bring it
away, and also called his attention to thefact that while we weredriving out we had almost always
to keep up the roof while the waterwas in it; but if we drained it we could work the other portion
of the mine, because it was dry and hard.

50. When you drove through it and drained it the roof became hard?—Yes.
51. And is that generallyyour experience in these matters?—Totally. Whenever there is water
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we have a difficulty inkeeping up the roof; after it is dry there is no difficultyin keeping theroof up.
52. What was the next step?—His letter of the 14th February.
53. That is the letter giving instructions for the working of the mine?—On the 24th January

he inspectedthe mine ; and on the 31st January Ireceived a letter from him to make afresh survey
of the mine. [Letter from Mr. Maitiand, 23rd January, marked A, put in: vide Appendix.]

54. The first one, you say, is a letterfrom Mr. Binns of the 31st January ?—Yes. He came to
the mine himself the same day—just after I received the letter—witha surveyor to make his own
survey. I had only just received that letter from Mr. Maitiand, which you have read, and I asked
Mr. Binns what was the meaning of it; and, he said, that before he had nothing to do with me ;
but nowhe had it put into his hands, and he had all to do with it; that I had to work to his satis-
faction.

55. Did you reply to Mr. Maitland's letter?—Yes. [Eeply to be put in, marked B: vide
Appendix.] I wrote to Mr. Maitiand complaining that it was unfair to me, seeing that I had
received no notice of anything wrong in the workings ; and asking him to tell me who said the
workings were unsafe ; that it was unfair to hear from him first, and not from the Inspector.
That was the purport of the letter.

56. You had this conversation with Mr. Binns, in which he said this gave him control over it ?
—Yes.

57. Did anything further pass between you and Mr. Binns on that occasion?—No; but during
the timethey were making their survey, the mine surveyor (Mr. Taylor) complained to mo that they
were marking places in their field-book too wide.

58. Complained that their survey was incorrect?—Yes; marking places toowide. He called
my attention to one place. I said to Mr. Binns, one morning before we went into the mine, that
there was one place too wide, and he said the place was 21ft. I told the under-ground overseer,
Mr. Kenyon, and he turned round to Mr. Binns and said, " I'llbet you £5 it is not." I then asked
him to go down with Mr. Binns and Mr. Twining. They went down, and when they came back
Mr. Binns acknowledged it was only 16ft.—the place which had been marked 21ft.

59. That had been noted in the field-books ?—Yes.
60. You had not an opportunity, then, of criticism of Twining's plan?—No; the plan was not

made for some time.
61. How longwas he there over this survey?—Some days. He came on the 31st. I think he

was there most of the next week. On the 12th February I received a letter from Mr. Binns as to
conditions of future workings. [Letters marked C, D, and E put in and read : vide Appendix.]

62. I understand that Mr. Binns was there on the 31st January, and stayed how many
days ?—I think some five or six days altogether.

63. Then he wrote this letter of the 14th?—He was at the mine on the 13th, and agreed upon
certain places to be worked; but Ihad said to him that Iwould not stop the pumping until Mr.
Eich came back. He agreed to allow me to work certain places, which he confirmed by a letter of
the day after.

64. And he assented to your going on with thepumping?—Yes; until Mr. Eich's arrival.
65. When did you expect Mr. Eich?—ln about threeweeks.
66. What was the next step ?—After receiving his letter I worked at the places he consented

to let me till the 26th, when I received the letterdated the 24th; and had men examining all the
falls he was so much afraid of according to his letter of the 14th,

67. You strictly complied with his letter ?—Yes. [Letter marked F put in and read: vide
Appendix.]

68. Had Mr. Binns been to the mine between the 13th and 24th?—I have no note of it.
69. What did you do upon that?—When I received his letter I was much put about; Iwas

then laid up in bed, but on the 28th I went to Dunedin, to his office, to see him. I pointed out to
him the position I was in, Mr. Eich not being there, and my supply of coal being cut off. We had
been getting some thirty or forty tons a day out of that part of the mine where he had allowed me
to work. I got permission from him then to work at certain places—to still continue until Mr.
Eich's arrival.

70. And what about the pumping ?—To keep pumping.
71 You were to work, not in all the places he had originally indicated?—lt was in another

place in the same district—just to the north.
72. What was the next step?—We worked on until the 19th March. I got a note then to say

Mr. Eich had arrived, and would meet him at my office at the mine.
73. Did that meeting take place?—Yes.
74. What passed then ?—I went through the whole of my objections to stopping the mine ;

theresults that would accrue from letting in thewater; and Mr. Eich heard them, and agreed with
me ; but Mr. Binns was positive in his instructions to have the mine closed, and Mr. Eich at last
turned round and said, "I suppose we have no alternative but to do as the Inspector orders, and
you will have to do it." That was acting under his instructions in the letterof the 24th February
to close. Mr.Binns said to me that he wouldfeel obliged if I would act on his letter, and withdraw
all the men. I then withdrewall the workmen, andkept the pumps going until I had taken out all
the plant, up to the 30th March. I then stopped the pumping, and allowed the water to rise.

75. On the 19th March, when Mr. Eich was there, was any reference made by Mr. Binns to
the license under which you worked?—I do notremember. I could not state the conversation that
took place. There was conversation about the license. The mine was wTorking up to the time Mr.
Eich, as the owner of the mine, told me I was to do as the Inspectorsaid.

76. By the end -of the month, you, having kept the pumps going, had got out all the plant?
—Yes.

77. And then you withdrew the pumps?—Yes; they were the last thing to takeup.
78. Then the water continued to rise ?—Yes. On the 27th March, before I withdrew the

pumps, Mr. Cox cams He said he would not go through the whole of the workings, as Mr. Binns
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had already given his decision. I had to put a plank iu one of the levels where the water was
rising. I called Mr. Cox's attention to how the bottom of the floor had risen in some parts 2ft. in
seven da} s where the water was soaking.

79. What was that due to ?—Tho; water being allowed to be on thefloor. I asked Mr. Cox to
give an opinion as to the wisdom of letting the water in, and he said that, as Mr. Binns had
already given his opinion that the mine should be stopped, he would not interfere with it, as he was
only there once a year.

80. Was there this swelling of the floor while the minewas kept dry ?—No.
81. Have you had any difficulty with the roof so long as it was kept clear of water?—No.

There may have been a flake off the first part of the roof of a foot or two; not more than that.
82. As to the result of the flooding, will you describe to the Committee concisely and briefly

the gradual effect of this flooding upon the mine?—About a month after the pumping had been
stopped I made a careful inspection. I found that the water was touching the roof. As it rose up
the incline shale and sandstone were coming away in large bodies, falling down in pieces of from
2t06 or 8 feet thick. I called Mr. Eich's attention to it.

83. Did you go frequently through the mine while the water was rising?—Yes.
81. What effect had it upon the floor?—The floor was swelling and lifting, and the roof and

floor, in a manner of speaking, were coming together. About a mouth after, I again called Mr.
Eich's attention to it— the falls were getting worse as the w*ater rose and spread through the
different workings—and again in June.

85. Howfar had the water come then?—About two chains up the mine.
86. What was the total distance to go?—Nearlyseven. Mr. Eich then asked me to write to

him officially. I told him that, even then, if we were allowed to pump the water out the damage
might be stopped, because it was in the lowerparts of the mine where the water had spread.

87. Do you know whether that letter w*as forwarded to the Government ?—Yes. [Letters of
30th June (Williams to Eich) and sth July (Eich to Minister of Mines), marked G and H, put
in and read : vide Appendix.]

88. Did you observe anything after that with reference to the operation of water in the mine ?
—Whenever I saw Mr. Eich or wrote to him in Auckland I always called his attention to the
increasing danger. The higher the water rose the more dangerthere was.

89. What was the danger you referred to?—Of the water breaking away the roof until it
would break up to the sea and destroy my lower working. I could see that in a very short time,
as the waterrose, tho roof would break and let the sea in, and it would then be impossible to work
the lower seam.

90. You wrote that letter, aud it was forwarded by Mr. Eich on the sth July. What was the
next step?—There was no alteration. This district still filled with water. The water still rose.
Mr. Eich put in this application,and I understand it was refused. The water was still rising; and
on the 20th August Mr. Binns inspected the mine and was down to the water-level, and I called
his attention to the damage that was being" done; and his answer to me was, "The soonerit is
filled up the safer it will be." Mr. Denniston had been engaged by the company just before this
to examine and report on the mine, and to give his opinion as to the damagebeing done by the
water.

91. Did Mr. Binns give any reason for his statement that the sooner it was filled the safer it
would be ?—The old reason, that the water was a support to the roof, although he could see that
the roof was coming down in large flakes.

92. When had he first advanced that reason ?—ln thebeginning of the year, when he first spoke
about stopping the workings.

93. Did anything further occur then ?—This went on till February, 1884, till the water rose
against the dams. The higher it rose up the incline the less space it had to cover, and it rose
faster. I put in the dams, and they were inspected by Mr. Binns, and consideredperfectly right.

94. At what stage did you put in the dams?—The dams were a long time putting in. I did
not finish them until some timein October.

95. The water went on rising until whatmonth in 1884?—February.
96. What occurred then?—The waterrose against theHams, and the measures round the dams

leaked so fast that the water was going down the shaft to the lower-seam workings. The dams
were in themselves comparatively tight, but the water forced its way all round the dams and out-
side the concrete they were placed in. Mr. Binns came to the mine on the 11th February,
went down the shaft, saw the quantity of water that was coming in, and came back and gave
me an order to withdrawthe whole of the menfrom the lower levels. He stopped the whole work-
ings of the mine.

97. Was that order verbalor in writing?—Verbal first, and in writing before he left the mine.
SB. You did not dispute thepropriety of that order?—I did not dispute the orderbecause I had

point-,:'! out to him twelve months previously that this would happen: that his action in forcing
me ir put the water in the submarine workings would eventually ruin the whole of the workings.

99. At the time he ordered you to withdraw all the men from the lower workings there was an
actual necessity for that step ?—Yes.

100. And it was in exact accordance with your own predictions, and what you had always
argued to Mr. Binns would be the result?—Yes.

101. Have you anything further to state with regard to this incident of the final closing of the
mine .: That stopped tho whole of my operations.

.10*2. Besides havingbeen a mine manager, you have had something to do with surveys of mines,
have you not ?—I haw done my own surveys at Kawakawa.

103. And you arefamiliar with the subject ?—Yes.
104. This seam had been worked seaward for how many years before it was closed?—I started

to work seaward in 1881. I started to prospect and to put down a drive to prove the coal. I did
not largely open up and work thecoal until 1882.
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105. Do you remember an occasion in ISS2 when you showed the Inspector the timbering of
some bords?—Yes.

106. On which side of the district was that?—The south side.
107. What had been done there ?—I had retimbered some bords that had been stopped working.
108. Did he express anyopinion on that course ?—Yes ; he thought it was perfectly safe at that

time. Work was slack at that time, but was brisk on the West Coast, and some of the men, to
save giving a fortnight's notice, got up areport thattheyheard the sea; and, whena man says to the
mine manager he is afraidto go down, there is no optionbut to give him his money. These men
had told Mr. Binns this at the West Coast. I had a telegramfrom Mr. Binns, asking me to bore
holes ahead of my workings, and asking me what steps I was taking to prepareagainst an irruption
of water by a fissure. I telegraphed back that I did not understand his telegram, that I had no
fear of any irruption of water. After these bords were stopped he expressed an opinion at one
time that it would be better if some more props were put in. I did so, and he was perfectly
satisfied that this was a good piece of workfor a long time.

109. Was there any foundation for this suggestion that they could hear the sea?—None at all.
The same men, some three, four, and five months afterwards, came and worked in the samepart of
the mine, but farther down under the sea than they worked before. One man in particular : I said
to him, " Why areyou back here : I thought you wereafraid to work under the sea ?" He laughed,
and said, " There are more ways of fear than one ; I only wanted to get away."

110. Who made the surveys from time to time in your upper-seam workings seaward?—Mr-
Bishop, mechanical engineerand surveyor, and Mr. Taylor.

111. Which side did he survey ?—Principally on the north side.
112. What do you know about Mr. Bishop's competencyas a surveyor?—No more than whatI

saw of his work at Shag Point. I found it as a rule correct; but on one occasion I found he had
placed the position of one working-placewrong. I called Mr. Binns's attention to it on the plan.

113. And that was the only instance of inaccuracy you know of?—Yes.
114. Was his work generally accurate?—Yes.
115. Was any complaint evermade of it by Mr. Binns ?—Never.
116. Under what credentials did Mr. Bishop come into your service ?—He was recommended

to me by Mr. Binns.
117. Then, as to Taylor, was he a competent surveyor?—Yes.
118. On which side of the district were his surveys made ?—On the North side.
119. Have youfound his surveys accurate ?—Yes. After Taylor left, and went home to England,

Mr. Denniston was appointed surveyor, and had to go over Mr. Taylor's survey in the lower-seam
working,s and found it was perfectly right.

120. Mr. Denniston is a mining surveyor of considerable experienceand reputation: had he
any work?—Yes.

121. There is one matter I think, I omitted to refer to, and that is, with reference to some
suggestion of falls on the north side?—The seam where these falls took place was split, the
principal split was 3ft. 6in.

122. The principal seam is there divided in two?—Yes.
123. Does that split imply anything as to the stability of the seam?—No ; because the cover is.

the same over the top of the split.
124. It is not a fracture, but a dividing of the seam into two ?—Yes; a wedge of sandstone

coming in between.
125. You say the thickness of the seam was 3ft. 6in. to 4ft. Supposing there were falls there,

would that have had the same significance in a seam of that thickness as in a thicker one ?—
Decidedly not.

126. In what wayis there a difference?—The measures would choke themselves much sooner.
127. In the former examination some reference was made as to the loss sustained ?—Yes ; I

said from £15,000 to £20,000.
128. In what way do you say that heavy loss has been sustained?—ln the loss of the works..

We should have to sink new shafts; in fact, commence the. colliery again.
129. Have you made any estimate as to what that would cost ?—I said that the two shafts

would cost about £12,000, and the drives about £3,000.
130. Before you could get them into fair working order?—Yes.
131. Where is the plant lying now?—At the shafts which are abandoned.
132. There is an actual loss of coal that is all ready to be opened out in the upper and lower

seams ?—lf we sunk again we should lose a rib of coal three chains wide, and I think sixteen or
seventeen chains long.

133. Was there much of the coal ready to be opened out iu the lower workings ?—Yes ; we
never opened up right to the dip of the present submarine workings.

134. Was there coalready to be taken out of the upper workings?—Yes; these upperworkings
were going on.

135. You were engaged in the lower seam and in the submarine drive of the upper seam : had
you in both these seams coal you w*ere putting out ?—Yes. Of course the work had arrived at
such a stage that we should have been in a position to put out more coal every day. We had not
long before completed the new plant in the lower seam.

136. And you were in full swing of work at the time ?—Yes. „
137. Mr. Beid.] While your memory is fresh on the subject, I will ask you as to the question

of damages : you say you made, no'ostimate of this damage?—No detailed estimate.
138. Your calculation, then, on the amount of damage is purely problematical.''—l do not say

that I have taken out qualities. We put down the depth of the shafts, and the probable cost.
139. And what did you reckon that at ?—The probable cost of working ?
140. The probable depth of the shaft ?—From 500ft. to 600ft.



12I.—4a.

141. At what end of the mine did you propose to sink the shaft—the north or the south?—
It was immaterial which end, the depth would be the same.

142. When you estimated the damage, you surely fixed in your mind's eye what would be the
cost of sinking a shaft, its position, and what would be the cost to put it into fair working order?
How did you arrive at it ? Did you fix any point at all ?—lt would be the same at the north end as
the south end. The distance of the coal would be the same, and the measures would be the same.

143. You did not decide which end you would put in a drive: you estimated roughly that it
would require to be sunk 500ft. or 600ft. ?—Yes.

144. Wculd the driving be the same at either end ?—Yes.
145. What didyou estimate the cost of driving?—£3,ooo.
146. The sinking of the shafts and timbering them before you reached the seam would cost ?—

' About £12,000; two shafts of 1,200feet of sinking.
147. Would not a shaft of 270ft. reach it?—No.
148. What is the depth of the present shaft ?—270 feet.
149. How do you come to double it ?—We should have to sink down to catch the coal-seam at

a lower level.
150. Would not the seambe the same ?—Yes; but the working could not be done in the same

way.
151. Would you explain how it could not be got at?—l should have to go into a lot of tech-

nical explanations. This was for the better working of the mine. It would cost as much to put
down a shaft of 270ft. and drive in upon it as it would a shaft of 600ft. The other way you would
have heavier expenses in pumping, as you would have to lift the waterup an incline.

152. Could you not sink at the same depth you have done now, and open up? How are you
working by your present shaft ?—I am only working to the rise from the present shaft. The coal
comes down to the shaft; but my submarine workings have to go down to the dip for the coal.

153. But you could reach coal at less sinking—at 270ft. on the rise? —Yes ; but thatwould not
open up coal. The coal lies to the dip, and the reason for deeper shafts is to avoid the flooded sub-
marine area.

154. It would enable you to get at the coal in the way you were doing ?—Yes; but we could
not open up any quantity of coal.

155. Is your present shaft, 270ft., not to the rise?—That is, to the lower seam.
156. You estimate that in no case could you possibly get at the coal without sinking 500ft. or

600ft. ?—No.
157. And that, you say, would cost £12,000 ?—Yes.
158. But you could get coal at a much less depth-of sinking?—l could not get coal that I

could work.
159. Why could you not get coal at a less depth ?—Because we should have to go outside this

large area, which is ilooded.
160. Did that £12,000 include machinery ?—The machinery would have to be shifted.
161. You tookinto consideration the machinery in that £12,000 ?—Yes.
162. You arepart owner of the mine ?—Yes.
163. What does thecompany consist of: howmany shareholders are in it ?—Two.
164. Mr. Eich and yourself?—Yes.
165. The reason Iask you is, because you used an expression in another part of your evidence

—" the public to whom the mine belongs "—who holds the lease that you are working?—The com-
pany.

166. From the Government ?—No.
167. Who holds the original lease of the land?—Mr. Hutchison.- 168. Do you know what amount he pays ?—£2o a year.
169. And the company pay Hutchison how much ?—£3so per annum.
170. Is that still going on ?—Yes.
171. Have you taken any steps to relieve yourself of theburden of that lease—have you com-

municated with Mr. Hutchison?—No.
172. How long have you got to run?—Fourteen or fifteen years.
173. What do you consider the value of that lease ?—Nothing, unless money can be got to

work it.
174. You have still got a liability standing of fifteen years at £350 a year, and you have taken

no steps to get rid of it ?—lf we gaveit up we should have to give up all we spent on it.
175. You have no desire to relinquish the lease to the original lessor, Hutchison ?—No.
176. Have you made any arrangement for reopening the mine yourself?—No.
177. Not the slightest ?—No.
178. Is there any one in charge of the mine, looking after the property?—Yes; the under-

ground manager, Mr. Kenyon.
179. What salary is he drawing?—Nine shillings a day.
180. Did you not sink a shaft in April in a different part to your present shaft—to the north?—

No; I opened up an old shaft.
181. What was your object in opening that up?—To prove the seam that had been cut in the

shaft.
182. Did you succeed in proving it?—In proving it was unworkable.
183. Have you made, any arrangements about carrying on the company?—There are no

arrangements made.up to the present.
184. Have you"made any negotiationsat all for carrying on the company, either for forming a

new company, orcarrying on the present company ?—There are no negotiations for carrying on the
company, orfor starting a new company.

185. For carrying on operations?—No.
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186. You are simply laying back on your oars to see the result of the petition?—There is

nothing doing.
187. What was the amountof the daily output of the mine at the time the hands were taken

off?—On the last day it was 125 tons.
188. But the average for some months before—for a month, what would be an average?—

We were putting out some months before that 80, 90, and 100 tons.
189. Have you any of the returns with you?—No; but Mr. Binns would have the yearly

returns.
190. Can you speak as to what the last yearly return showed ?—I did not bring it.
191. Can you not speak from memory?—No.
192. Speaking roughly, how many tons werethere for the year?—I think about 14,000 tons.
193. Can you say, from your own knowledge of the returns of the mine, whether it paid ex-

penses for the last year, or whether there was a loss ?—lt was worked at a profit.
194. Do you know how much ?—I cannot speak from memory.
195. When did you become a part owner?—In 1878.
196. You were a partner when the first year's returns were to hand, but you cannot speak

roughly as to the amount of profit made ?—No.
197. Did the question of profit or loss concern you ?—Yes.
198. You cannot remember the amount of profit ?—No.
199. Not roughly?—No.
200. Among whom were the profits divided?—Among the shareholders.
201. Who were the shareholders the first year: were they not Mr. Eich and yourself?—Yes,

and some others.
202. How many doyou think, speakingroughly?—Seven, I think.
203. Do you remember whether the second year you made any profit?—As nearly as I re-

member, the second year there was something over £2,000.
204. Divided among seven?—There was no division.
205. It was simply carried to the credit of the company?—Yes. The only division amongst

the shareholders was a sum of £800. That was actually paid.

Wednesday, Ist October, 1884.
Mr. James Loudon, examined on oath.

206. Mr. Chapman/] Mr. Loudon, what are you?—A colliery manager.
207. Where employed?—At the Walton Park, Green Island District.
208. The Walton Park Collieryis owned by a companycarrying on business in Dunedin ?—Yes.
209. How long have you been managing that colliery ?—I have been carrying it on for about

twenty years: eight years on my own behalf, and about eleven on behalf of the company.
210. Do you know the Shag Point Mine?—No ; I neverwas there.
211. Do you know anything of the character of the strata there?—I have seen the sequence.
212. From plans?—Yes.
213. You do notknow the actual character of the strata from examination?—No.
214. Have you had any experiencein connection with standage water getting into a mine?—

No, not to any extent; but I know the effects waterhas upon the strata.
215. Have you heard described the mode in which the seaward workings of the Shag Point

Mine have been flooded with water?—Yes.
216- I ask you to assume thatwater has risen in the mine ?—I am aware of such from news-

paper report, nothing else.
217. From your knowledge of these matters, what do you consider wouldbe the effect of water

accumulating in a mine—upon the roof and floor ?—lt would dissolve the shales, and, in all likeli-
hood, bring a creep from the workings. Imay say that often moist air affects the shales and the
walls. A trickle of water, or moist air alone, will cause, from theroof, shales to flake off and fall
rather much, and in side walls it will cause it to bulge out; and a very slight stream on the floor,
as I am too well aware, will cause it to heave.

218. Yousay that the effect of water is to dissolve the shales and cause a creep?—Yes; reduce
it to not much better than claypuddle.

219. Will you tell the Committee w^hat a creep is?—lt is a subsidence caused through the
settlement of portions of the coal remaining. This shale is rather a hard compact body whilst it is
being cut, but immediatelyit is exposed to moisture it loses its strength and becomes not much
better than puddle.

220. And what is the effect of keeping it dry after it has been cut ?—lf you keep it dry very
little hurt can come overit.

221. Does it stand?—Yes; except, as I say, that moist air will affect it.
222. I need scarcely ask you your opinion, as an experienced man, whether you would fill a

mine with water in order to keep the roof upstanding?—No; that would be the last thing to do,
although it should cost nine-tenthsof the profits of the concern. I would saykeep it dry.

223. Do you know Mr. Binns?—Yes; well.
224. Do you know him as a gentleman of large experience in these matters?—ldo not know

anything about his experience. I have always found hin a very amiable and agreeable gentleman.
225. In your own mine, do you find any great difficultyin keeping theroof up ?—Yes ; just now

we have had a great deal of trouble. As a rule, to save coming in contact with the shales, we keep
a portion of coal on the roof and also a portion of coal under foot, but, in driving, we cannot avoid
sometimes cutting the floor of an undulating seam. That is always avoided, if possible. I always
look on it asrunning a certain amount of risk in doing so. Just recently—the jobis not completed
yet—we have been driving, and it has given us a great deal of trouble, and has cost us £250 for
timber alone; and, I may say, we are going to lose it after all just on account of salt-water, and

3—l. 4a.
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that is brought about through a mere trickle of water: it is scarcely observable; you can simply see
it oozing out of the wall.

226. You say you avoid cutting the shales : I suppose you have another source of danger in
fire, have you not?—Not of late years. We had a source of danger from fire when we could not
dispose of any of the waste, but not since we have been able to dispose of a portionof it.

227. Does it make any difference in the amount of difficultyyou have with falls, whether the
seam is a thin one or a thick one ?—The thicker the seam is, and the more coal you take out, the
greater difficultyyou have with flood; that is, it will be much greater before it chokes itself.

228. When it does occur it is far more serious in a thick seam than in a thin one ?—Yes;
because it takes so much more to choke itself.

229. Supposing a fall occurs in a cut through a seam 3ft. 6in. to 4ft. thick, how would you
comparethe difficultyarising from that with afall in a seam 7ft. thick ?—To put it at the very least,
it would notbe half.

230. Mr. Beid.] You have had no experience of submarine working, I understand?—None
whatever.

231. Can you tell us what would be a safe thing to adopt as to the size of pillars in a sub-
marine working, where there was an overhead cover of about 117ft. to 200ft.—the overhead strata
being sand and a hard belt of sand above that ?—What is the thickness of the hard belt of sand ?

232. A hard belt of 18 inches ?—I will give you my experience at Walton Park.
233. In this particular mine, could you give us what would be a safe thing to leave for pillars

to support that roof?—I should say it would be quite safe to leave pillars, say, 15ft., 16ft., or 17ft.,
thick.

234. You would not reduce the pillars to less than 16ft. ?—I think it would be unwise to
reduce below 15ft. It often occurs in a mine that there are thin places in a working. A pillar
might be in some places 18ft. or 20ft. thick, and a hundred yards ahead only 10ft.' or 12ft. Take
an average, I should say, 15ft. thick.

235. You would not allow the pillars in any particular place to attenuate to 18in.?—Not by
any means.

236. Nor to 6ft., if you were aware of it?—It would not be advisable at all, unless it was for
a very short distance—a few yards—which does occur in the best coal mine.

237. Would not abody of water allowed to flow up to the level of theroof—would not that, by
hydrostatic pressure, support the roof ?—I do not see that it would have any great effect, unless you
confined the water.

238. Allowing it to flow to the level of the roof, would not that, by hydrostatic pressure
upwards, support the roof?—I do not think it would support it to any extent. The shales are so
many times heavier than the water, and would certainly fall away.

239. Have you everheard of water supporting the roof in that way in coal mines at Home?—
I do not think it would support it to any extent unless you could confine it.

240. I am assuming that the water has reached the roof and is allowed to stand there—when
it has filled to the level of the roof, and has filled all the under-ground workings—would it not be
sufficient, not only to support the sides and the walls, but the roof itself?—l do not think it would
to any great extent at all. I think the shales would wear away and fall.

241. From your experience as a miner, have you never heard that theory asserted that a
standing body of waterby its pressure upwards would support a roof?—I have never heard of it.

242. You are not aware that English engineers of eminence have asserted that that is so?—I
am not aware of it.

243. In a mine of this nature it is usual to have water running over the floor, and which you
must pump. Would the action of the water—the ordinary drainage of a mineof that kind—added
to the pressure, withoutallowing extraneous water,help to upheave the floor ?—lt would have some
effect, no doubt, but very little.

244. I understood you to say that the smallest stream of water would operate on and disintegrate
it ?—Yes.

245. Would it not be a necessity in a mine of that kind that some amount of water should
lodge on the floor ?—No doubt there would be some ; and the manager, no doubt, would do his best
to obviate that as much as possible. You cannot avoid it altogether, but the result is just in pro-
portion to the water.

246. Would you, in working, work up to the sand, or would you leave a portion of the coal?—
We always leave a portion of coal.

247. You have neverseen the action of water allowed to stand for some time in a mine and
then taken off?—No, except for afew days; and then the result was very bad. I will give you one
slight instance. In driving the original mine at Walton Park, about seventeen years ago, about
New Year's time, there was three days' holiday. A quantity of water accumulated during those
holidays. In those three days the timber sank into the floor and went allout of shape.

248. The pillars you have in your mine are regular in their size ?—Not regular, but as nearly
as possible.

249. The greater theregularity of the pillars, no doubt the greater support of theroof?—Yes.
250. The Chairman.] About what is the dip at Green Island?—One in nine.
251. Mr. Chapman.] Supposing there was hydrostatic pressure of.waterfrom below, would that

have any counteracting effect, contrary to the ordinary effect of water,"in softening the shales, or
would the softening goon even though there was pressure ?—I should say so; indeed, to my mind,
I should judge that, if-there was any force at all, it would force itself into the shales all the more.

252. I suppose hydrostatic pressure of water is like any other supporting pressure, it needs to
be confined on all sides?—I should say so.

253. Should you expect to see it exerted to any considerable extent if there was a free end or
open shaft?—No.

254. The sand in Walton Park is running sand, is it not, when you strike into it ?—The running
sand is some distance from the coal.
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255. There is a sand-bar; is it hard ?—No.
256. It is not a good roof ?—No.
257. Your experience is always to avoid a bad roof, I suppose ?—Yes.
258. You see this plan, a portion of which is by Taylor [plan produced : vide end of paper.]

Supposing this to be the working plan, looking at that, does that appear to be a correct mode of
working?—To my mind there is any amount of coal left there.

259. Assuming that to be a copy of the actual working plan, made as the works went on
advancing, do you think thaC that shows a proper working, leavingsufficient support of coal?—Yes.

260. I ask you to look at that [plan produced], and say whether, in your opinion, it is credible
that the persons who were surveying from time to time, regularly employed by the company, should
be so far out in their surveys as indicated by this?—The difference is terribly great.

_
I should say

that the man who made such a differencemust surely have had some very strong motive for it;
261. Does it seemcredible to you that competent surveyors, employed in a mine systematically

for a course of years, should pervert surveys in that way?—No; the difference is so terribly great.
In one place it shows plenty of coal left, and in the other there is not enough.

262. Can you creditan experienced mine manager perverting workings in the manner shown
there, and having large capital invested in the mine ?—No ;I do not see what could induce a man
to do it.

263. Mr. Beid.] Are you aware that Mr. Denniston made a plan of the Walton Park Mine ?—
Yes.

264. Are you aware that that plan had so many inaccuracies in it that it had to be afterwards
altered?—Not so many inaccuracies; only one inaccuracy.

265. It shows it is not unusual to make mistakes in surveying a coal mine ?—There was only
one inaccuracy of which I am aware.

266. Look at that plan [Twining's]. Have you anyknowledge of him as a surveyor: have you
seen his work?—Yes.

267. Is he usually correct in his work ? —Yes ; his outside work is correct, but he doesnot detail
the work as much as Denniston ; that is to say, he does not give the inside work as well. It is done
in a much simpler manner.

268. Is he a man whose word you could rely on as to the size of a pillar or bord on a special
survey ?—Yes ; I would takehis word most assuredly, if he said he measured it.

269. Where he shows inside or other work and certifies it, would you have any hesitation in
accepting it as correct ?—When he prepares a plan for us, there are many inequalities in the thick-
ness of the pillars; instead of showing the inequalities he shows a direct line. But he is a most
correct surveyor in showing the outside.

270. What he does show on a plan he shows correctly ?—No ;he does not show correctly when
he makes a straight line, where there are irregularities.

271. From your experience and knowledge of him, would you take a plan as correct if signed
and certified by him?—lf he gave me to understand that he did it for a special purpose. He has
plenty of ability as a surveyor.

272. You donot think, from your knowledge of him, that he would show a plan of that kind—
the workings altogether different from thereal state of the mine—merely for purposes of his own?—
I think not.

273. Assuming this plan to be correct, and assuming yourself to be in the position of the
Mining Inspector, would you have any hesitation in directing the mine to be closed?—I would not
say I would have no hesitation, but I would have some fear.

274. For the safety of the men?—Yes.
275. Mr. Chapman.] Supposing for a moment you pronounced it unsafe and ordered the work

to stop, would you fill it with water ?—That would be the very last thing to do.
276. What would you do to uphold the roof here, supposing that the pillars were worn too

thin ?—lt might have been the best plan to have packed it from outside, to have taken out the trees,
and come back and allowedit to settle down on that pack; but at all events keep it dry.

277. Supposing you had discovered an actual error of-sft, or 6ft. in the width of a bord shown
in a field-book, should you consider that an accurate survey ?—-No ;it would throw doubts on the
whole surveys. And they do make mistakes sometimes, the best.

Mr. E. B. Denniston, examined on oath.
278. Mr. Chapman.] What are you, Mr. Denniston ?—Mining engineer and manufacturers'

agent.
279. What experience of coal mines have you had in this colony ?—Twenty-twoyears.
280. Do you know the principal mines in thecolony ?—I know them all.
281. How are you engaged just now?—As a mining engineer and manufacturers' agent.
282. Advising several companies ?—Yes; the Kaitangata, Walton Park, Shag Point, and

occasionally the Westport Coal and Coal Pit Heath Company.
283. I believe at one time you occupied an official position in this colony ?—Yes; Coal-viewer

under the Geological Department.
284. What were .your duties ?—To inspect all the collieries throughout the country, to make

surveys, and to report generally to Dr. Hector.
285. Was there an Inspector -of Mines at that time?—No; I filled that position as far as

regards the Geological Department.
286. Do you know the Shag Point Mine ?—I do.
287. Are you familiar with all the workings ? —Yes.
288. When did you become acquainted with the seaward workings in the upper seam ?—About

June or July, 1883,
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289. What was it caused you to give your attention to that ?—The company sent for me to
report upon the workings.

290. Did you go through all or most of the workings ?—I went through as much' of it as was
not flooded with water. I thus got through three-fourths of it : within about a chain and a half or
two chains of the deep part of the workings : within two chains of the lowerlevel.

291. This particular drawing on the wall is prepared by you, is it not ? —Yes.
292. As some reference may be made to it, will you tell the Committee from what sources it is

prepared : it does not exhibit surveys of your own?—This survey is the copy of a survey made by
Mr. Bell, of the Public Works Department, who took all the soundings.

293. The soundings, rocks, and contour of the shore are taken from a survey of Mr. Bell, of
the Public Works Department?—Yes.

294. The further inland portion of the working is taken from your own surveys under the
Geological Department ?—Yes.

295. The seaward workings of the upper seam are taken from that source ?—Part from Bishop's
survey, part from Bell's survey, and part from a survey made by Twining on behalf of the Govern-
ment.

296. The dark shading represents falls as represented by Mr. Twining's survey?—Partly.
297. All these workings marked upon it, you do not vouch for their accuracy?—No.
298. What does the red indicate?—A lowerseam of coal below thatmarked black.
299. The lower seam you surveyed yourself?—A portion of it.
300. With what object did you survey it ?—I, was instructed by Mr. Williams to bring forward

the plans up to date.
301. When ?—I think about March, 1884.
302. Mr. Taylor, the surveyor of the company, had left, and you were asked to carry forward

the survey to date?—Yes.
303. Had you occasion, in bringing the lower seam-survey to date, to examine Mr. Taylor's

work in connection with the portion of the lower seam that was already plotted ?—Yes.
304. Had you occasion to check it ?—Yes; I found Taylor's work correct. I think therewere

only some two or three links between us.
305. You would judge,from what you found, that hewas a competent surveyor ?—Yes; I think

it came in very well.
306. Have you lookedat his plan of the seaward workings of the upper seam ?—No.
307. When a surveyor is kept at the mine, it is his duty to put in the workings from time to

time as they are carried forward ?—Yes.
308. About how often ? —About every three months..
309. Supposing that had been done here [indicating on plan], what would you say as to the

propriety of the workings shown here—-I mean with regard to leaving support?—There is ample
support left there.

310. I would ask you just to look at this, having that in your mind [plan produced]; can you
see what difference there is between these two plans?—Yes.

311. Can you suppose this is made correctly from the same survey, supposing that to be
correct ?—No ; Iknow this is wrong,because it is an exaggeratedsurvey. Everything is exaggerated
about it. I think I have steppedseveral of these bords on the south side, and found them only 16ft.
The way this survey is made up is: that in driving bords men are limited to a space by the mine
manager of 16ft, while men in driving have a trick of always eating and widening out. If left
for a few hours they will perhaps be 2ft. too wide, until the oversman brings tbem in, which
he would do during the shift. It has been carried on in an apparent spirit of vindictiveness to
make the very worst of everything.

312. That is your deliberate judgment?—Yes.
313. You have checked that by pacing some of these bords ?—Yes.
314. The wide places have been carried forward through the plans ?—Yes. In fact, Mr. Taylor

told me that while the survey was going on he drew their attention to one or two places, and they
gave in in one or two places.

315. You always find in the walls of bords a certain amount of irregularity ?—The usual way
is to take the average.

316. You are an experienced mining engineer, and have had mining management yourself; and
have also done surveys, and you say you went through these workings ?—Yes.

317. Did you satisfy yourself on the subject of the sufficiency of the pillars?—Yes; I did, and
reported on them.

318. Can you say, speaking generally, whether this plan, signed by Twining, fairly represents
the pillars from the point of view of their sufficiency?—No; it does not represent the average : it is
exaggerated.

319. To what extent did you find actual error in the represented width of the bords ?—I found
the bords averaged about 16ft., all that I stepped.

320. Is that aproper width?—Yes.
321. What was the thickness of the pillars left in that way?—From 25ft. to 30ft.
322. You examined the upper seam carefully on this occasion, I understand ?—Yes.
323. What did you find to be the state of affairs there?—I found the water to be up in the

workings within about a chain and a half above the lowerlevel.
324. Did you find that the water had had any effect upon the measures?—It had swollen the

shales, and there was mud about a quarter of a chain in advance of the water. Pillars, in the
instances I saw, in.places,, had sunk about Ift into the shales, leaving the roof no support at all.
It was caused purely by the water lying there.

325. What are your views on the subject of letting water into a minewhere the shale is of this
character ?—lt is ruin to anymine.

326. Something has been said about the mechanical effect of pressure of water—hydrostatic
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pressure exercised on the roof?—lt does not apply in this instance, because the water was
constantly flowing up, and not confined. It has had no upward support to the mine at all; and,
evenif it had, there is the fact of the existence of the shales, and the shales dissolving and wearing
themselves into mud. If the water was confined the same effect would take place, because the
shales would soften and fall down. It would have no effect as to holding up the measures.

327. Was there, in fact, such a confinement of the water ?—No.
328. Do you know when Mr. Cox visited the mine?—Yes.
329. Did he express any opinion to you ?—He expressed an opinion the way matters had been

put to him. When I put the matter before him he agreed with me as to the action of the water in
the mine.

330. Its action upon the shales ?—Yes.
331. I think you say in one portion of your report that, if Mr. Binns's survey was correct, you

agreed with his action in closing the mine, or something to that effect. [Eeports read: vide
Appendix J and K.] In that report, where you appear to agree with Mr. Binns as to stopping all
workings, I understand that you nowhere agree with him as to the propriety of putting water into
the mine?—Certainly not.

332. Where you refer to the subject of falls, and the dangerous state of the mine as shown by
this plan, what have you assumed as the thickness of the seam?—Ten feet.

333. Ifyou ascertainedthat the seam was3ft. to 4ft.,doyourremarks still stand?—No; theyalter.
334. Where a fall is 3ft. 6in., and has been worked, any fall in it fills up and runs out

so soon that it is safer down than up ?—Yes.
335. Supposing you found in a mine something like the state of affairs shown on that plan, and

had to uphold the roof, and as you have already told us you would not do so by letting water in,
howwould you uphold theroof in those circumstances : what orders would you give as Inspector ?
—As far as it affects the north side I would have taken the coal out and let the whole down;on
the south side I would have most probably stowed (where the coal was thick) all the bords with
waste material, leaving the main-dip heading free, so as to keep water pumped out.

336. With packing of some sort ?—Yes; leavingoneroadway clear, so as to pump andkeep it dry.
337. Supposing you had to run a tramway through part of the working ; supposing those 3ft.

workings were falling through the falling of the workings, what plan would you taketo support the
right and left ?—Brick it all the way, or use very stout timber: close-lathed roof, floor, and sides.

338. You have heard your reports read: is there any further explanation you would like to
make upon those reports ?—The only explanation Iwant to make is where I said I agree with the
Inspector. You would see, from the tenorof the formerreport, that I totally disagreedwith him as
to the effect of the water. I agree with him in his report so far as he considered the workunsafe;
that he didperfectly right in drawingthe men out and stopping the workings. The first report was
written before the water had come in, and this was written for the company after the waterhad
come in.

339. Do you know Mr. Williams as a mine manager : do you consider him a competent
manager?—Yes; I have known him for ten or twelve years, I think.

340. Did you know him at Kawakawa?—Yes.
341. I ask you, with your knowledge of Mr. Williams, can you conceive a man, having his own

capital embarked in a mine, leaving pillars in the condition he apparently left these?—No; I do
not think lie would do it. I know the man, and I know he would not do it.

342. When you are working through these shales you say in any case they are always to be
kept dry?—Yes.

343. Supposing they are drained and kept dry, how do they stand?—Very well.
344. Do they deterioratewith age?—They flake off a little, if the air is moist.
345. Do they soften?—No; if you keep the wateraway.
346. Have you come much in contact with Mr. Binns?—Yes ; since he came to be Inspector.
347. Do you regard him as a gentleman of great experiencein these matters?—When he took

tho office he had no experience: I proved it. When he visited the Westport works I could see,
by the action he took and the way he did it, that he knew nothing about the work. I told
him so at the time.

348. Have you had occasion to check Mr. Bishop's surveys in this mine?—No.
349. Mr. Beid.] I.understand that, in preparing that plan, you took part from Bell's,part from

Taylor's, and part from Twining's, and the other was made up from surveys made up by yourself?
—Yes.

350. Is that the plan of Twining's from which you took ? —Yes.
351. That is the plan you used to insert upon, that plan on the wall ?—Yes; as far as the

submarine workings are concerned.
352. Why did you take them from Twining's plan?—To strike a sort of general average

between the two plans.
353. Are the measurements shown on your plan the exact measurements of Twining's ?—

Within a trifle.
354. You said that Twining's plan was carried out in a spirit of vindictiveness, to make the

worst of everything ?—Yes.
355. That being so, how was it you came to take part of that plan and stick it on this plan ?—

I was anxious to make what I considered a sort of general averagefrom both plans.
356. If you thought that plan, at the time you took it, was unreliable—that it was carried out

in a spirit of vindictiveness, to make the worst of everything—how was it you came to use it on your
ownplan ?—Just to strike a sort of fair average on the whole thing.

357. You wished to give no guarantee as to its correctness ?—lt is an average of the two. I
considered the way those workings stood, even on Twining's survey, and evenwith his exaggerations,
that the pillars on this portion of the work were ample to w-ithstand any pressure fromthe water;
therefore I put it on. -Mr. Binns, having taken the precaution to let the water in here, apparently
was afraid to allow time for other people to be appointed by the company to inspect.
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358. Are you on good terms with Mr. Twining ?—Yes; I do not think he is a man I have
passed half a dozen words with in my life.

_
....

359. Have you any opinion as to his abilities ?—I do notknow anything as to his abilities.

_
360. If you know nothing about him, why do you say his surveys are carried out in a spirit of

vindictiveness ?—From Binns's and Twining'sbehaviour.
361. We are not talkingof Binns ?—When you talk of Twining youmust talk of Binns. When

you talk of one man you talk of the other.
362. What experience have you had of submarine workings ?—None of submarine workings;

though I have been connected with works with large swamps overhead.
363. Do you know when Mr. Twining's survey was made ?—Some time in 1883.
364. How long afterwards was it you made your survey ?—I made mine in July, 1883.
365. You say there were one or two inaccuracies in Mr. Twining's plan that were pointed out,

can you state what they were, or whether they were corrected ?—He showed the pillars thin, and
the bords wide. I stepped the bords and found them the ordinary width, 16ft.

366. Was that in one or more places ?—ln a dozen instances.
367. How long was it after the survey was made that you stepped theplaces ?—July 1883; I

do not know when the survey was made.
368. Had the work been going on to yourknowledge between the timeof Twining's survey and

yours ?—Yes ; there was a little work going on the south side by the extension of bords.
369. In the part that you examined ?—ln the extreme south parts I examined.
370. Would it have been possible for the men, working in the places you saw them, withm the

space of four months to have widened the bords ?—No; they would not do that.
371. You saw Mr. Cox with reference to his report on the mine ?—He called on me.
372. Was that after he had been to visit the mine?—Yes.
373. Had he written his report then ?—No; not thatI know of.
374. Have you seen Mr. Cox's report ?—Yes.
375. I understand you to say that, after you had spoken to him, he expressed a very different

opinion to what he had before, and, thereport having been written after he saw you, I presume he
wrote it upon what he had heardfrom you, as well as from his knowledge of the imne ?

375a. The report does not look like that. [Mr. Cox's report read: vide Appendix I.] That
report was written after Mr. Cox had spoken to you. Did you discuss the question of the influx
of the sea with him ?—Yes.

376. How long have you known Mr. Cox ?—Ten years.
377. Would pressure from the overhead covers upon the pillars raise the fireclay floor round

thepillars?—Of course if would.
378. Pressure on the pillars and the effect on the floor—apart from water being allowed to

accumulate—would it have any effect in raising the floor if the water was not in ?—lf therewas no
water in, the shales might swell with dampness.

379. Would not that of itself raise the floor?—Yes;_ that would raise thefloor a littlebit, but
it would choke itself in its own thickness if free from water.

380. And would eventually rise to the roof ?—Yes ; and be all thebetter for it.. 381. That is when it is dry .'—That would be the effect where water was excluded.
382. What didI understand you to say the average of the pillars was : didyou take an average ?

—No; I said I found them 15ft., 20ft., 25ft., and, I think, 30ft., some of them.
383. You cannot speak as to the average?—I am- telling you how I found them; lam not

averaging them at all. ....
384. You say that you were intimately associated with Mr. Cox :what was your opinion of his

ability to report upon a case of this kind ?—The report is just consistent with my opinion of his
ability. '.

385. You say you were associated with him in the Geological Department. If he is a man of
ability that is a very valuable document ?—I do not know; I think it is a very great riddlemyself,
trying to save a brother officer. That is just what I would do myselfif I were similarly situated ; I
would do my utmost to save a brother officer. The last clause of his report says, "If it should be
decided;" that shows the doubt that existed in his mind.

386. Mr. Chapman.] Do you know what date Mr. Cox called upon you?—No.
387. How long after he had visited the mine?—A day and a half, or so. He had come in the

day before.
388. Do youknow if he had been into the mine : did he say he had ?—He led me to understand

he had.
389. Was it before or after your visit ?—After; I could not say how long.
390. You do not know whether he hadreported at thatdate?—He had not.
391. I see there are some phrases in Mr. Cox's report which seem to have taken your attention

—the last passage—" I fail to see that any definite advantageto the mine is to be gained by keeping
the water out of the present submarine workings; and in the event of it being settled that these are
themselves unsafe"?—That shows the doubt in his own mind.

392. That it was not a decided matter ?—He could not decide.
392a. " It is evident from Mr. Binns's report that he had no idea of allowing the lower seam

of coal to be worked below the area which it is proposed to shut offfrom the main shaft by dams,
as he gives instances"where agreater cover than would exist between the two seams have proved
unsafe, and resulted in accidents and loss of life." Do you see there that Mr. Cox at that date
assumes that Mr. Binns was, in reality, closing both the upper and lower workings ?—Yes; but
Mr. Binns's correspondence shows he was not.

393. But is it not evident, from Mr. Cox's report, that it was a matter of very littlemoment
whether the water went into the mine or not, seeing that the whole mine, upper and lower, was to
be abandoned?—No. Mr. Binns says there is to be 150 feet of cover over the upper seam; no
future workings of upper seam to be continued unless present works are flooded with water. Mr.
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Binns provides in his correspondence for lower seam being wrought, which shows an inconsistency;
150 feet in one instance over upper seam, and only 80 feet of measures between flooded workings
of upper seam and that of the lower seam, which, to any one acquainted with the measures, is
unaccountable how he could arrive at same.

394. Mr. Binns proceeded on the assumption that the lower workings might continue, and Mr.
Williams pointed out that that was impossible?—Yes.

395. Do you not see that Mr. Cox takes that view?—Yes; you can read it that way. His
report is ariddle.

396. Mr. Macandrew.] Did I understand it as your opinion of a public Government department
that, in their own opinion, they can do no wrong, and that there is a sort of esprit de corps to bear
out that idea?—Yes ; that is the general opinion. If you take Mr. Binns, I dare say he wouldbe of
opinion that he is conferring a great favour on the Government of New Zealand by giving his
services as Inspector.

397. Mr. Chapman.] Do you know what Mr. Twining's employment is ?—I think he is em-
ployed by the Nightcaps, and, at time of survey, employed by the Kaitangata Coal Company.

397a. Was he employed by the companywhen he made this survey ?—I expect so. He lost the
Kaitangata works through some misdeeds of his own.

398. The Chairman.] Can you give us the date when you examined this mine ?—ln the early
part of July.

399. Speaking of Mr. Cox's report, do I understand you to say that if you were the head of a
professional department, holding a professional status such as Mr. Cox did, you would allow your
feeling for your subordinates to override your professional opinion upon any matter that came before
you?—He was not the head of a department.

400. He was at any rate a superior: do I understand you to mean that you would do that?—
If I was in the same office I would certainly do all I could to save a brother officer.

Wednesday, 2nd October, 1884.
Mr. J. H. Derhom, examined on oath.

401. Mr. Chapman.] What are you, Mr. Derhom ?—A civil and mining engineer.
402. Where do youreside and practice?—ln Wellington.
403. Have you had any experience in coal-mining ?—Yes.
404. Where and when ?—Twenty years' experience in the Old Country.
405. And any in this country ?—Very little in this coulitry. I have visited some collieries and

reported on them; but my experience is almost solely in the Old Country.
406. Where have you visited collieries in this country : any in Otago ?—No.
407. Have you had any experience of the action of wateron shales in coal mines ?—Yes.
408. And what has been your experience?—My experience has always been among shales. I

had five years' experience working nothing else but shales in the Old Country, and I always found
that water softened and swelled and disintegrated them.

409. I suppose that would apply whether it was the roof or the floor ?—Yes.
410. Supposing in a coal mine you had to uphold a shale roof, what steps would you take

supposing it appeared to be falling?—lf it was at all dangerous, the first step would be to pack it
as tight as possible ; and, if I could spare it, build wooden pillars.

411. Pack it, what with ?—Anything to fill it; but I would depend more on the wooden
pillars.

412. Would you, under any circumstances, let water accumulate in your mine?—Not if I could
avoid it.

413. Would you rely on hydrostatic pressure to uphold the roof?—It would assist in upholding
a roof like that of solid sandstone, where there was nothing to wash away.

414. Where it would have no disintegrating effect?—Yes.
415. Under what conditions would you resort to hydrostatic support?—lt is a thing I do not

much believe in at all. In all mining matters, as far as ever I knew, it was the practice to try to
keep out what water we could. We always considered water as an enemy.

416. With reference to that sequence : supposing you had to support a roof above the upper
seam, would you in any case resort to water?—l would not under any circumstances if I could
avoid it.

417. Mr. Beid.] What doyou say you are acting as now ?—As acivil and mining engineer,
418. Practising?—Yes.
419. Have you had any experience of submarine workings ?—Yes.
420. Where?—Scotland.
421. Have you had anything to do with a drownedmine at any time ?—Yes. I was in a mine

that was drownedout.
422. What cover was there in the case of the drowned mine you refer to?—I saw one drowned

out: between thirty to forty fathoms of water.
423. Was that submarine?—Yes.
424. How many feet do you make that?—Two hundred and forty feet.
425. What proportion of coal was left there ?—A very small portion, because they were taking

it all out.
426. What was the cover like there?—lt was pretty good; but they tried to excavate the

whole thing on the'" longwall " principle, that is, excavating everything as they go; and then it
took a break.

427. From your experience as an engineer at Home, do you not know that it is generally con-
sidered that waterhas a sustaining power : that the hydrostatic pressure of water will sustain to »
certain extent theroof overhead ?—Under certain circumstances.
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428. Where water is confined?—Yes; and where it willnot act on the floor and on the roof.
429. Do youknow what the sustaining power of water is: what is the usual pressure to the

square inch ?—lt depends very much on thebody.
430. In a mine of that nature, with a roof of the sequence shown there, would you consider it

a fair way of working the mine with a cover of 117ft. to 200ft. ?—Some are large, and others are
small.

431. Would you consider it a fair average, the size of the pillars and bords in a mine of that
kind, with the cover described ?—lBft. pillars, and about 15ft.or 16ft. bords, I think would be a safe
thing. Less than thatI think would do; but that would be very safe.

432. What was the thickness of the coal in Scotland where the sea broke in ?—Sevenfeet.
433. Mr. Chapman.] What was the cause of the break in the mine in Scotland?—They

thought it had sufficient cover, and went on taking out everything before them, and it took a
break. They commenced to have no pillars at all: they thought there was cover enough to do it.

434. Just look at that plan—the working plan: does that show a good mode of working?—
They seem good-sized pillars and very regular, and the bords seem not too wide. It seems to me
to be carried on in a very judiciousmanner.

435. Supposing you wanted to uphold a roof, and supposing the pillars were worn down to
that (indicated on Twining's plan), how would you uphold the roof?—I would use all the old
timber up I could get. I consider that timber supports aroof better then anything.

Friday, 3rd October, 1884.
Mr. Thomas Peacock, M.H.8., examined.

436. Mr. Chapman/] I believe you are a director of the Bay of Islands Coal Company?—l am.
437. You were a director some years ago when Mr. Williams, managerof the Shag Point Coal

Mine, was in the employment of your company ?—I was.
438. Do you remember how long he was in the employment of your company ?—A good many

years : I cannot exactly tell.
439. I would ask you, briefly, whether during that time your Board found him a competent

and reliable manager?—They did.
440. On leaving your service, did he leave still possessing your confidence ?—Yes, he did.
441. Mr. Beid.] What was the nature of the workings of which Mr. Williams had charge for

your company : were they submarine ?—They were working from the dip leading in various
directions, following up the seam of coal.

442. But, were they submarine?—No ; theywere not submarine, merely under-ground.
443. Mr. Chapman.] But there was a swamp?—Yes ; but the workings stopped short at the

edge of the swamplest the watershould be let in and endanger the mine.
Mr. Denniston, re-called and examined.

444. Mr. Chapman.] I omitted to ask you about that plan in the corner: does it show the
Sequence and character of the ground?—Yes.

445. Then, as to this section, taken from the dip of the mine (No. 1) ?—No; taken from the
depth of the shaft.

446. From Mr. A.- D. Bell's survey and soundings? — From the soundings, and the angle
of dip was 1 in 4 at the time I was in the mine : I made it 1 in 3, and 2 in many places.

447. That section is taken on the marked line, and the dip on the large plan?—Yes.
448. What would be the cost of reopening this mine, so as to place it in the same position as

before the submarine workings were closed ?—The minimum would be £20,000.
449. Mr. Beid.] With reference to the sequence, did you examine the sequence itself : did

you see the strata?—I saw it all twelve or fourteen years ago; I have it all on my field-books
connected with Government. I compared Williams's sequence with that: it pretty well tallies;
the only difference is the number of the stone.

450. Is that sequence taken from Williams's sequence?—Betwixt and between; the only dif-
ference is the number of the stone.

451. Hard stone he has it?—l have had hard burr and shale. His book will explain that.
452. How do you make up your estimate of the cost ?—I estimate it upon the cost of sinking

the shaft: a couple of drives, and so on.
453. What depth of-shaft would you sink?—Something about 700ft.
454. Do you fix in your mind's eye where you would sink the shaft ?—I have two or three

schemes; sinking in these places they would eachbe something near that depth; there is one place
rather higher than the others; in either of these places it would be about 600ft. sinking.

455. Do you know the depth of the present shaft?—240ft. or 243ft., or thereabouts.
456. Would it not be possible to sink near the shaft now?—You could sink down to the water;

no farther.
457. Could you not sink farther to the north?—This is ten chains to the north.
458. Does the depth increase so much as 600ft. ?—Yes ; then you wouldhave to drive off level.
459. Could you not get farther to the north, and sink a shaft less than 600ft. : Imean, of course,

keeping within the boundary ?—Yes ;keeping within the boundary. "_
460. What would be the cost of the shaft?—You would have to drive two roadways: the one

for driving, the other, for air. By the time you opened on the coal the cost would not be much less
than £20,000. You have always to guard against water. You do not know what water you will
have to contend against.

Mr. Beid, in opening the case for the defendant, said : In stating theevidence in this case I
will confine myself to the actual questions at issue, so as to be as brief as possible. The points to
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be considered are : Whether the mine, when Mr. Binns inspected it, was worked in a proper way,
with sufficient cover to the roof; whether Mr. Binns was justified in closing the mine when he did;
whether, in the first instance, the mine was worked in a satisfactory manner; whether the closing
of the mine in any way conduced to the flooding of these works. We say that the mine was dan-
gerous; that the letting-in the water did not conduce to flooding; that the water being let in, if
anything, aided to support the roof. The fact that the sea actually broke in proved the correctness
of the defendant's contention. As the mine was in a. dangerous state, we say that our action in
closing the mine was the means of saving life.

Mr. George Jonathan Binns, examined on oath.
461. Mr. Beid.] What are you?—l am a mining engineer, holding acertificate of competence

from the English Government, and a Fellow of the Geological Society of London; I am also
Inspector of Mines under the General Government, holding my appointments under "The Eegula-
tion of Mines Act, 1874," and " The Westland and Nelson Coal Fields Administration Act, 1877."

462. Do you know the Shag Point Mine?—l amfamiliar with it.
463. When did you first visit it ?—ln 1879.
464. In what capacity ?—As Inspector of Mines.
464a. What was the nature of your visit on that occasion?—lt is so long ago that I cannot

recollect ; I have notes from which I can refresh my memory.
465. On how many occasions didyou examine it previous to April, 1882?—On many occasions.

I have not the record of each occasion here.
466. Do you remember when theyfirst commenced to work the mine?—No; I was not m New

Zealand at the time.
467. Did you ever speak to Williams about taking precautions as to the overhead cover?—The

first record I have is April, 1882. "468. What did you say to him passing at the railway-station ?—As to whetherhe was taking
precautions in regard to the submarine workings, which were causing me very great anxiety.

469. Do you remember what his reply was?—l imagine it was that he was taking precautions;
that was in April, 1882.

470. Did you speak to him again about it?—l telegraphed to him about it on the 3rd July,
1882

471. Do you produce the telegram?—l produce a copy [telegram read] : "Greymouth, 3rd
July, 1882.—t0 W. H. Williams, Esq., Shag Point, Palmerston South.—Be boreholes in advance
in submarine workings. Please inform me, by telegram, what precautions you are taking to prevent
possibility of irruption of waterby fissure.—G. J.Binns, Inspector of Mines."

472. Did you get any reply to that ?—Yes; I received a reply, dated the 3rd July, the same
day: "Palmerston, 3rd July, 1882.—T0 G. J. Binns, Esq., Inspector of Mines, Grey.—l cannot
understand your meaning. Do not anticipate any irruption of water, not working any newpart, to
necessitateboring in advance ; and should like to know your authority for the informationyou have
received.—W.H.Williams." ,

473. Did you see Mr. Williams subsequently ?—Yes; frequently :on the 24th January, 1883, 1
saw him at his office.

474. Did you speak, then, with reference to precautions?—I think I did, but lam not quite
sure that I spoke to him that day ; he was away from the colliery.

475. Have you any note of what took place ?—I examined the colliery on the 24th January,
1883. I wrote to Mr. Williams. On the 31st I called on Mr. Williams.

475a. What took place ? What are you reading from ?—From notesmade within twenty-four
hours after; what lam reading from was written on the Ist. I looked over the plans and showed
him some pillars 6ft. thick. I asked him if he considered them sufficient for submarineworks. He
said he did. I drew his attention to the state of the mine.

476. Is that all that took place?—l examined the mine that day.
477. Were you satisfied with his answer?—l was satisfied that was his opinion.
478. Did you think 6ft. pillars sufficient?—No.
479. Did you say anything to Mr. Williams ?—Yes; certainly I did.
480. Did you express any opinion to Mr. Williams as to what should be the correct thickness

of the pillars ?—I am not awarethat I did at that date. *481. Did you simply take his answer?—Yes. "482. Yousay you examined the mine that day, have you any note of it?—Yes. I shall read it:
"In the afternoon I went down the mine, accompanied by Twining and Kenyon.

_
Found the

condition of the mine about the same, the falls being numerous, and moderately high." In the
afternoon I went, accompanied by Mr. Twining.

482a. What was the dateof that?—The 31st January, 1883.
483. Did you see Williams with reference to the mine then ?—I have no note of it.
488a. When didyou next visit the mine?—On the Ist February, 1883.
484. Was that for the purpose of inspection ?—The purpose was to accompany Mr. Twining on

the survey—he was making one for the Government—to see that the survey was made with great
care, and to examine the mine myself in great detail.

485. Were you present with Mr. Twining the whole time?—Not entirely; but very nearly all
the time.

486. How longdid the survey take?—About five or six days ; about a week.
487. Did Mr. Twining remain there continuously, or did you go backwards and forwards ?—

Whereto?
488. From the mine ; ordid you remain?—We did not remain on the works continuously.
489. Did you make any note of the result of your inspection at that time ?—I did. Imade a

note on the 2nd February, which I shall read; " Found a man (William Henderson) in No. 3 bord
4—l. 4a.
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from level, north side, south cuddy, taking a 3ft. 3in. rib of a pillar. Spoke to Mr. Williams about
this, and he said he would see about it and stop it, as it was not done with his authority.
Eequested him not to rob any of the pillars at present."

490. Did you see Mr. Twining's plan after it was completed ?—Yes.
491. Who was present with you besides Mr. Twining when he made the survey ?—Mr. Taylor,

the company's surveyor, and, during a portion of the time, Mr. Kenyon, tho underground manager.
492. Was Mr. Taylor present the whole of the time?—I think so : I am not prepared to say

exactly; think he was the greaterpart of the time ; practically the whole of the time.
493. Did he take any notes or make use of any field-book? —He required permission to take

notes. I believe he did take notes. I gavepermission. There are copies.
494. Besides Taylor, who was there, or was there any one else ?—Mr. Kenyon was there

occasionally.
495. Who is he?—He is the underground manager.
496. Any one else ?—-The workmen employed.
497. In going round?—Yes; the workmen employed on the survey.
498. Have you seenMr. Twining's plansince it was completed ?—I have.
499. What is your opinion of that plan, as to its correctness or otherwise?—lt tallies in several

respects with independent measurements that I made myself. It also tallies in one point with a
survey of a portion of the mine which I obtained from Mr. Taylor. The survey is dated December,
1882.

500. Does it, in your opinion, represent truthfully the state of the mine at the time the survey
was made?—lt does.

501. On what principle was the survey conducted : was the average width taken, and then run
through ; or were the wide places and the narrow measured with care ?—Whenever therewas any
irregularity in the size of the bord it was taken off by offset, whether we went through broad or
narrow. We endeavoured to take it off with great accuracy, as will be seen on the plan.

502. Then, if Mr. Denniston, sworn on this inquiry, states that the widest places were taken
and run straight through, is thatstatement correct ?—lt is notcorrect; it is evidentfrom the plans.

503. Mr. Beid (to Chairman).] That plan (Twining's) is not verified; but it will be verified by
the next witness. The wide places are not shown all the way through on the plan; where the
bords are narrow it is shown on the plan.

504. How many bords are shown : how many pillars?—ln this portion'of the mine there are
ten bords shown: that is the south side, the extreme south side.

505. How many pillars ?—The same number of pillars; a little to the north there are nine
bords and nine pillars.

506. Is there any average of bords and pillars shown to the south?—l have taken the average,
which is included in thereport that has been printed. I have not a copy of it. lamreferring to
my report of the 2Cth May. The average of bords is given in that report: bords, 13*79ft.; pillars
taken out, 10*296ft. average.

507. Looking at that plan, from your experience, do you consider that a safe mode of working
that mine ?—I consider it very unsafe.

508. Do you remember when that plan was first shown to you?—Towards the end of Feb-
ruary, 1883.

509. Did you speak to Mr. Williams again about taking precautions in working the mine pre-
viously to your taking steps to close the mine, and, if so, when, after the 31st January or the Ist
February, did you speak to Mr. Williams again as to taking precautions ?—Yes.

510. When ?—I think I spoke to him about it every time I was at themine. I was there on
the Ist February and the 2nd February. I have no note of it.

511. When did you take steps to close the mine, or speak to Mr. Williams about closing the
mine ?—On the 13th February I saw Mr. Williams at my office.

512. Did you speak to him about closing the mine?—Yes. Mr. Williams also proposed putting
a flood-gate and the framew*ork of a dam, in case it should be needed, between the shaft and the
present workings. Mr. Williams expressed his willingness to do anything to meet my views. On
thatoccasion it was agreed that a certain portion of the mine should be worked ; that he should be
careful in watching any weak point. Mr. Williams promised to be careful in putting in flood-gate
framework or dam, in case it should be needed, between the shaft and the present workings.

513. When did you next visit themine?—I became apprehensive that the precautions were not
sufficient when Mr. Twining's survey was laidbefore me.

514. What did you do upon that ?—On the 24th February I wrote to Mr. Williains.
515. Having seen Twining's survey, you wrote to Mr. Williams?—Yes; I wrote to him, giving

him notice to close the submarine area. [Letter read : vide Appendix F.]
The Chairman : It might save printing, and the evidence be equally clear, if the questions were

omitted, and the evidence should be taken as to the answer. There are upwards of fifty peti-
tions to be disposed of.

Mr. Beid: I am quite willing that the questions should be omitted if the substance of them
should be conveyed in the answers. lam desirous of doinganything that will shorten the inquiry.

516. Give us the date of that letter?—The 14thFebruary. In that letter Irecommended him,
to take certain precautionswith reference to the closing of the mine. I considered that it was in
imminent danger from the permeation of water from the sea. My"grounds for closing the mine
were these : I apprehended danger-, and because I did not think there was sufficient cover. I also
considered that primarily there had been toomuch coal taken out; and, worse than that, it had been
taken out in an extremely irregular manner. If the same amount of coal had been taken out in a
regular manner it might have been safe; but, as shown by the plan, it was taken out in patches,
which has a great tendency to break the roof. Considerable falls had already occurred. I con-
sidered that, if the mine were to be allowed to go on, a very large number of lives would probably



I.—4a23

be lost. Ido notknow that I have any other reasons to give. Having come to the conclusion to
close the mine I saw Mr. Williams. He called at my office. It was agreed by us that, on the 28th
February, 1883, that a certain portion of the mine should be worked: this was the portion in solid
ground. With reference to the submarine part with the balance it was to be carefully watched.
On the Ist March I visited the mine, and it was decided finally to close the mine. I quote from
notes written at the time : " Decided finally, only in concession to the urgency of the circumstances
mentioned yesterday by Mr. Williams, that I would consent to the bords in Barber's district
beingworked, but entirely without prejudice to their being closed at any time; and on no account is
this to be taken as aprecedent or justification for leaving the dip-workings open. Bead this overto
Mr. Williams. All the other places to be stopped, and the airguidedround." The mine was finally
closed. On the 19th March I visited the mine. Imet Mr. Eich there. I had an interview with
Messrs. Williams and Eich. In a letterI said, "Had an interview with Messrs. Williams and Eich,
in which the latter proved himself willing and anxious to do everything required to make the
mine perfectly safe. Pointed out my view of the case, and it was agreed to close the subaqueous
workings, and allow them to fill with water to the level of the shaft." The result of that interview
is stated. The men were withdrawn shortly after that. On the 20th I wrote to Mr. Williams,
making regulations for the submarine workings.

516a. Do these regulations refer to the closing of the mine and the submarine workings ?—I
shall find them. I visited the mine again very frequently up to the end of the year. The water
came in many times. The effect, in my opinion, of letting the water in was that it wouldhave a
hydrostatic pressure on the roof equal to the head of water. That pressure would uphold the roof
o a very considerable extent. The inbreak of the sea was the result of two causes : first, that not

sufficient submarine coal was left; and, in the second place, that a very large amount of coal was
taken above high-water mark in the upper seam. In my opinion, this vacant space did much to
break the roof, and the sea entered. The effect of letting water into the mine did not accelerate it.
The sea would have broken in under any circumstances. The mine was " weighting " during the
time that Twining, accompanied by myself, was making his survey in February, 1883. _ Several
men noticed the weighting of the mine: the whole party noticed it. The weighting of a
mine is caused by piecesbreaking off from the pillars, and shows that enough coal had not been
left to support theroof: the pillars are too weak, and these pieces chip off. They make a great
noise. They made a great noise on this occasion, so much so that we retired with celerity from the
place where we were eating our lunch to what we considered a safer place.

517. When did you go back?—As soon as the weighting had settled—as soon as the noises
ceased. These noises are intermittent; they go and come again. The mine probably settles for a
considerable period, after that they come on worse.

518. This shows a straining of the mine, does it not ?—Yes ; that the mine is in a state of
tension.

519. Was it a safe thing to work thus ?—I think it would not be safe to work thus at all. A
mine must beregularly worked ; when worked irregularly it would be dangerous. Let me explain
to the Committee : If a large block of coal is taken out of one place the effect of that is deteriorat-
ing to the strength of other places, the same as if in a house you had a concrete pile in the middle
of the floor, which supports the roof, without having piles all the way round. You might have
enough strength in that to sustain the whole house, but it is not evenly distributed. There are
very large pillars, perhaps, but they are no good. They are worse than nothing, because they are
in oneplace, while all the places round them are weak.

520. When you took steps to let the water in, what steps did you take at the same time for
preventing the flooding ?—You will see by my report of the 20th March.

521. Tell us what steps you took in regard to the erection of dams?—l agreed with Mr. Wil-
liams that dams were to be constructed, so that, in case of an inburst of water in the upper works,
the deep workings, 70ft. below, should not be flooded immediately—that it should not flow down
the shaft, and imprison the men that were working.

522. Were the dams sufficient to keep off the whole inburst of water other than from the sea ?
—I do not understand your question.

523. Why were they erected ?—ln case of an inburst from the sea; to prevent the water run-
ning down the shaft from the sea.

524. Did you visit the mine after the seabroke in?—Yes ; I visited it.
525. How did the dams work ?—The damswere holding moderately well—as well as the timber

could hold ; but round about the water was comingin in considerablevolume.
526. Have you had experience of submarine workings before?—-Never. I have been under the

sea, but it was at such a great depth that the ordinary workings were perfectly sufficient.
527. If the waterhad not been allowed to accumulate, would it have been safe to allow pump-

ing operations?—ln my opinion, the mine was unsafe ; I would not take the responsibility of any
man's life who would be in that mine.

528. Have you reports on this?—Yes; they are printed. [Eeports put in evidence, dated
the 26th May, 1883, and the 20th March, 1883 : vide Appendix C and D.]

529. Cross-examined by Mr. Chapman.] How long is it since you came to New Zealand ?—
The 2nd July, 1878.

530. What was your experiencebefore that date: how many years' experience did you have ?—■
Six years. My experience was, that I served my time as a mining engineer. I obtained a certificate
of competency from the Home Government.

531. Did you evermanage a coal mine?—Ihad been assistant to the manager of the Netherseal
Coal Mine, in Leicestershire.

532. Were the workings there anything like what you are accustomed to in thiscountry?—No.
533. How old were you ?—I was twenty-threeyears of age in 1878.
534. You sent a telegram on the 3rd July, and you received a reply ; what induced you to
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send the telegram?—l am notcertain what actually induced me :itwas from a question I had been
asked by a collier on the West Coast, as to the safety of the Shag Point Mine.

535. Was that the man who said he heard the"sea?—No; I do not know that it was.
536. Did you hear such reports ?—No ; Ido not attach any importance to such reports. Ido

not think it was possible.
537. Did you have any conversation with any one in consequence of which you sent this

telegram?—I had a conversation with Mr. Denniston before that time.
538. Did you give Mr. Williams the source of your information?—l donot think so. Icould

not give them to him ; I did not know the man'sname at this date.
539. Do you remember a letter from Mr. Maitiand, Commissioner of Crown Lands, in which

he refers to " rumours and reports" ?—Yes. [Portion of letter read.]
540. Was that upon any representation of yours?—lt was.
541. Was it your representation to Mr. Maitiand?—Yes; to the Government.
542. In what way?—He is Commissionerof Crown Lands.
543. So that in the report you speak of Mr. Maitiand refers to these "rumours and reports"?

—No.
544. What does he refer to ?—He refers to a conversation I had with him in his office on the

27th January, 1884.
545. What was that conversation?—It was that the mine was unsafe.
546. You told him so?—That that was my opinion, and that I would have to investigate.
547. You told Mr. Maitiand that?—Yes.
548. Did you mention it to Mr. Williams?—l wrote to Mr. Maitiand. lam not aware when

that letter came, to my knowledge.
549. Did you inform Mr. Williams? I didnot; I did not write to him.
550. You went to the colliery on the 24th January; on the 31st you said something about 6ft.

pillars : what was it you said to Mr. Williams ?—I asked him if 6ft. pillars were sufficient for sub-
marine mining. It was on what had been ascertainedby me.

551. Do I understand you to say that it was when looking at a plan ?—No.
552. Do I understand you to say, in reference to the 31st January, that you showed him a

plan ?—No ; lam not aware. I measured thepillars and noted them to be 6ft. thick.
553. Where ?—I will show it to you on theplan.
554. What plan is that you have there?—lt is a plan copied from the Shag Point Company's

workings. This plan may not fix the particular pillar; there is a slight discrepancy ; but there is
a pillar which I measured.

555. To what length does it run?—To thebolt-hole.
556. Did you make all your measurementsto the bolt-hole ?—Yes; I had no means of making

any other.
557. If the pillar happened to run, then, to the bolt-holeonly fora yard or a few feet, that was

all you could ascertain ?—No ; I should provide in a case of that kind by taking a line and marking
it off.

558. All the falls were marked off in February, 1883?—I find on Mr. Twining's plan the fall is
noted 8 and 9.

559. There is a fall there on the extreme north : did you make any measurementfor that ?—
No; but I had noted that a good deal of ground had fallen in that part of the mine.

560. Is that a portion of the mine where the seamruns very thin ?■—They do now.
561. How came Mr. Twining to be employed?—He was engaged.
562. By whom?—By me, acting under the instructions of the Government.
563. Did the General Government direct you to him in particular ?—No; they did not.
564. What did they direct you to do ?—They authorized me to employ a surveyor, and I chose

Mr. Twining.
565. Where did you find Mr. Twining : where was he ?—At his house ; where his office is, in

Great King Street, Dunedin.
566. Do you know what is his occupation?—He was apractising mining engineer.
567. Was he in the employ of. any company?—I cannot say. He was in general practice as a

mining engineer ; he might have been in twenty companies ; he is a mining surveyor and engineer.
568. Do you recollect Mr. Taylor and Mr. Kenyon complaining of erroneous measurements ?—

I do.
569. Is Mr. Williams right in saying that your attention was called to a discrepancy of some

sft. or 6ft. Yes; it was not a discrepancy on the plan, it was a discrepancy in an imaginary
plan we had.

570. Was it a discrepancy in the field-book?—Yes.
571. Now, I understand you to say, Mr. Binns, that when you got Mr. Twining's plan you

determined that the mine was unsafe ?■—l believe that was the final thing that concluded my
opinion.

572. You then determined to write a letter, which, I understand you to say, you wrote on the
same day ?—I am not awarethat I said I wrote a letter on the same day.

573. You told us that at the end of February you received Mr. Twining's plan?—Yes.
574. On the 24th February you gave directions for the closing of.th'e mine ?—Yes.
575. Now, what did you have from Mr. Twining, a plan or a tracing?—l never had a tracing

from Mr. Twining.
576. Was it the-* actual plan laidbefore you ?—Yes.
577. You have had it ever since?—Yes ;inmy possession.
578. Did youforward a copy of the plan to Mr. Williams ?—No, I did not.
579. Did it not occur to you that, in view of the very serious and extreme step you were

taking, that it would have been prudent to forward a copy of the plan ?—Not when Mr. Taylor
had notes.
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580. Mr. Taylor was not engaged on the survey ?—He was with us on the survey, and insisted

upon having notes.
581. But the plan itself on which you acted you did not make yourself directlyresponsible

for : you acted entirely on the plan furnished to you by Mr. Twining?—Not entirely.
582. But you say that was what finallydecided you?—Yes.
583. Did it not occur to you that, in taking so serious a step, it would have been better to

have laid the whole of thisindictment before him ?—I was not aware of any indictment.
584. Would it not have been moreprudent to have forwarded him a plan?—No; he had notes.
585. How do you know whatcorrespondence there was between any notes Mr. Taylor had and

that plan : you did not make yourself responsible for the plan ?—No.
586. You do not know that it corresponds with Twining's notes, or Taylor's notes, or any one

else's?—No.
587. Did you know that the step you were taking in writing that letter would probably result

in closing up these works?—Yes ; the submarine workings.
588. Did it not occur to you that you ought to have forwarded a copy of tracing and plan to

Mr. Williams ?—I did not do so. I forwarded it to Government.
589. When did you forward it to Government ?—I think it is annexed to my report of the

20th March; but it has been mutilated since I came here. The first page has been lost.
590. I want to fix the datewhentyou forwarded a tracing to Government ?—I cannot say. The

first portion of the report has been lost.
591. Forwarding the tracing to the Government was cotemporaneous with forwarding the report

to the Government, was it ?—Yes.
592. Did you, in the usual way, get a letter acknowledging thereceipt of that report ?—I sent

it to Mr. Maitiand. I think I handed it to him.
593. That was a report to the General Government ?—No; it was a report to Mr. Maitiand.
594. It was not to the General Government ?—-I did not say it was to the General Govern-

ment; I said "to Government." He represents the Government to us.
595. I should like to get the date?—l may say that the bulk of this report was written at the

end of February ; but it is dated the 2,oth March, 1883.
596. You could restore the portion lost ?—lf necessary I could.
597. Then, Mr. Taylor and Mr. Kenyon had challenged the accuracy of the field-books on one

occasion ?—Yes.
598. Did it neveroccur to you that the accuracy of that plan might have been challenged ?—

The accuracy of any plan might be challenged.
599. Did it not occur to you that if you had forwarded a copy of that plan to Mr. Williams he

might have challenged it ?—No; it did not.
600. Did it not occur to you, as a desirable thing, that he should have the opportunity, immedi-

ately he had asked for it, of challengingit?—No; it didnot.
601. When did he ask for it: was it six months afterwards ?—No; I will answer for myself,

if you will allow me. It was the 22nd September, 1883.
602. That is, more than six months afterwards ?—Yes. If he had asked for it before he might

have had it.
603. You saw Mr. Williams on the 12th February, before this final determination was come

to at the end of February. After that, was he permitted to work in the mine?—He was permitted.
604. For what length of time?—Until the 19th March.
605. What number of menwould that permission involve?—l am not sure; about half a dozen.
606. Pumping would require several?—Yes..
606a. Four men?—Not at once.
607. Were the men permitted to work ?—Yes.
608. How many headings were working ?—About four.
609. That would involve how many men : about' three times that number?—About twelve.
610. Some men would be required for drawing the trucks as well ?—Yes; it would be about

twelve.
611. So that it was not a matter of momentaryor hourly risk P—lt was a matter that occasioned

me great anxiety. I should not like to go through the same again. It was a matter that kept me
in hourly terror.

612. Well, you permitted them to work?—Yes.
613. During that time you reported?—To whom?
614. To the Government. You were preparing a report after the men werein?—Yes.
615. Is it in that report or in some portion of thecorrespondence that you wished an inquiry ?

—It is not in thereport that lam aware of.
616. Where is it?—l do not know what it is you mean.
617. Is there not a reference somewhere in your correspondence to an inquiry?—Yes.
618. Would you be good enough to show me that?—I know there was a suggestion of an

inquiry long after the mine was closed. As to the expression used by myself, I believe I told Mr.
Eich that I should be only too glad to have an inquiry, because it wouldrelieve me from such great
responsibility. I told Mr. Eich that. I will tell you when tho date was. It was in July, 1883. It
was tho day Iprosecuted the company.

619. Mr. Macandrew.] You say you prosecuted the company?—lt was the day that I had a
case against them. Mr. Eich showed me a letter from Mr. Williams, which was forwarded to the
Minister of Mines, asking for inquiry. I said I would be delighted to have an inquiry; nothing would
please me more.

620. Did you know that you were undertaking a great responsiblity in closing this mine, not
only so far as the owners were concerned, but as far as thepeople of the district were concerned?—-
I was not closing the mine then.
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621. You were closing the mine some months before?—The submarine workings—a small
portion of 10acres out of 190 acres in the lease.

622. Did you not know that your action involved the closing of the whole of the existing
works?—No; it did not involve the whole of the existing works.

623. How could it have been avoided?—lt was arranged at the timethat the pumping was to
be carriedon.

624. That the pumping-was to be carried on?—Yes. I can show you how it was considered.
[Explanation given on plan.]

625. You arranged it in your own mind so as to allow it to come to a certain level only?—
[Eeport to Commissioner of Crown Lands part read.] There is a dip shown in one place of lin 4.

The pressure of water would be 1001b. to the square inch if allowed to rise to the sea-level in the
mine. As stated in the report, if allowed to rise only to the lower level it would be 331b.

626. You would let it rise to the point you have indicated on the plan, and then you would
have relied on pumping operations to keep the water in check?—Yes.

627. Suppose the effect of letting thewater in were to destroy the roof as well as bring the sea
in, then all your pumping operationswould be wasted?—lf the sea came in all the pumping opera-
tions would be wasted.

627a. Then, the whole of this final arrangement of yours depended on the efficacy of your
remedial measures?—I do not exactly understand you.

628. If the effect of letting in the water was, so far as you were concerned, to bring about a
dissolutionof the roof, ultimately letting the sea in, then you could not carry out your idea of
checking the water at the point you indicate by pumping ?—lf the sea came in there it would be
of no use to pump.

629. If the evidence adduced is correct, that the effect of letting in the water at all would be
to dissolve the roof so as ultimately to let in the sea, then you would not rely on the possibility of
keeping it in check ?—No.

630. Then you did not contemplate that the effect of letting in the waterwould be to destroy
the roof?—Yes; I contemplated that to a certain extent. I considered that the general effect of
letting in the water would be to assist in sustaining the roof; letting the water in would have kept
the roof up by the support it would give.

631. What you meanis, by the staticeffect of the water?—Yes.
632. But that leaves out the question of the dissolution of strata?—l am not aware there is

such a thing as the dissolution of strata.
633. Mr. Macandrew.] Disintegration of strata?—Strata disintegrates with air.
634. Mr. Chapman.] Do you consider that it would disintegrate, more or less, with water?—

Very little more, so long as the water waskept on it.
635. It was on that assumption you proceeded, then, in letting in the water?—-Yes.
636. Did yourefer at the time to any authority on the subject: did you claim the advice of the

department here ?—I did not claim the advice of the department here at the time.
637. You acted on your own judgment solely on this matter?—I consulted Dr. Hector, and

asked him if he had any authority on submarine mining. I sent to different parts of the world for
information on submarine mining, which is very rare, at shallow depths; therefore extra care was
required. I did not consult any one; I had no one to consult.

638. Did you telegraph to Dr. Hector for authorities?—Yes.
639. But you didnot advise with the department so as to relieve you of responsibility?—lre-

ported to the Government immediately when it was arranged; on that they could have acted: I
closed the place and reported: that was all I had to do.

640. I suppose you would have been glad to have been relieved of some portion of your
responsibility ?—I would always have been glad to have been relieved of the responsibility.

641. Now, as a matter of fact, when did the sea come in ?—I am not aware:it came in shortly
before the 11thof February.

642. In what year?—lßß4.
642a. Do youknow that it has come in : have you satisfied yourself on that subject ?—Yes.
643. We will go back to the conversation with Mr. Eich on the 19th of March; Mr. Williams

was present, or it was a conversation with Mr. Williams, Mr. Eich being present; was it a long
conversation ?—lt was a very long conversation; we went into everything as closely as we could
possibly do.

644. Did Mr. Eich urge his views as to the effect of letting in the water?—l am not aware
that he did.

645. Did he not protest to the effect that it was a most severe measureto adopt ?—No; Ihave
no note of it.

646. You say it was a long conversation, and yet you bave no notes of it ?—I have a note of
the general gist of the conversation. [Beads.] " Mr. Williams proposes the working out of theblock
of coal 2\ chains above the present opening."

647. Is that the whole of the note ?—Yes; that is the whole of the note.
648. You agreed to allow a month to follow ?—Yes; on the 20th of March I reported to the

Commissioner of CrownLands; it was agreed upon as theresult of theconversation; it is therefore
but shortly indicated in that sense. *649. Did you insist that Mr. Eich should give in ?—That would be a short way of putting it;
it was open to him to have protested if he thought proper; I reported to the Commissioner of
Crown Lands because he was my superior officer; he, not I, was the representative of the Crown.

650. Was that the way that he gave in ? —He might have protested.
651. Did he at last direct Mr. Williams to give in ?—I do notrecollect.
652. You saw Mr. Williams ?—I do not remember.
653. There was no agreement on the subject, except in the sense that your authority was sub-
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mitted to ?—I suppose that it was agreed, but I had no authority; I was merely the delegate of
the Commissioner of Crown Lands.

654. Do you remember that Mr. Maitiand supplemented the license: was that upon your
authority ?—lt was to be worked to my satisfaction : Mr. Maitiand was the superior authority.

_
655. Did you make any remark as to the possibility of the license being cancelled ?—I might

have; that is possible.
656. Did you know the legal aspect of the question, that the license was revocable ?—I knew

that; I knew that it was made subject to a particular condition in Mr. Maitland's letter.
657. That condition was obtained by yourself?—No ;it was not obtainedby myself.
658. Did you suggest that it should be maderevocable ?—Every license is revocable.
659. Was not this the suggestion : that the license should be granted on these terms, viz., that

"unless it was worked to the satisfaction of a Government official ?—I did not mean myself; as far
as I was concerned, I should have been glad to have someone else saddled with it; the whole of it
was placed on my shoulders, very much to my regret at the time.

660. Mr. Eich showed himself willing and anxious to adopt your view ?—Yes.
661. Youwillnot dispute the fact that somereference was to have been made to therevocability

of the license ?—No ; I will not dispute it.
662. Ultimately Mr. Eich acceded to what you submitted?—Yes.
663. Was that noteread over to Messers. Eich and Williams at the interview of the 19th: was

it shown to them?—I have no note of it.
664. As to the other minutes of the conversation, I notice that you made a memorandum that

it was read to Mr. Williams?—Yes ; I have.
665. Am I right in saying that both these embodied some agreementor arrangement?—Yes;

I wrote next day with-reference to your observation as to the weighting of the mine; you said
something about the "weighting " on the occasion of your visit when the survey was going on ; is
not this whatis known in quartz-mining when pieces areflying off?—That is called " proudness," or
the mine being " proud;" it is quite distinct from " weighting."

666. What is " weighting " ?—Undue pressure on the pillars. It manifests itself by thecoal
chipping off the pillars.

667. But when you find that, it does not condemn the whole of the work?—ln submarine
mining it does; "weighting," in mining engineering, shows plainly that there is not sufficient
support for the roof.

668. Could you support it in no other way ?—Unless it hadfallen so low, as it had in this mine,
that you could not get to it.

669. Where had it fallen so low that you could not get at it?—The dip at No. 1.
670. Is that where you observed it " weighting " ?—No; I observed it "weighting "in the upper

portion of the mine.
671. You heard the evidence of Mr. Denniston?—l did.
672. Do you agree with that ?—I do notknow what it was.
673. The evidence was that it might have been " packed " ?—I did not hear him say that.
674. Suppose he did say it, is that a remedy, viz., to "pack" the area in driving, in the cir-

cumstances stated?—I think that would do damagerather.
675. He is a mining engineer; has he not considerable repute in the profession in this country?

—That is a difficult question to answer.
676. As far as youknow ?—I believe there is still somebody that believes in him.
677. Perhaps you do not believe ill him?—Perhaps I do not.
678. I believe that more than once you had a wrangle with Mr. Denniston ?—No, not at all;

I did not wrangle with him.
679. Not through counsel ?—I do not wrangle through counsel.
Committee adjourned.

Saturday, 4th October, 1884.
Mr. Binns, cross-examination—-continued.

' 680. Mr. JGhapman/] Youreferred in your correspondence to a proposed inquiry, did you not ?
—Yes; I did.

681. Could you show me the passage in your report in which you referred to Mr. Eich's desire
for an inquiry ?—lt was printed and laid on the table, but I cannot find it.

682. I wish you to read the passage?—l think it is in the letter from myself to the Under-
Secretary for Mines, dated the 18th February, 1884.

683. What is the passage ?—" During the progress of the case Binns v. Williams, Mr. Eich
showed me somecorrespondencebearing on the question of a commission. From whom or to whom
I had—or at least now have—no idea, as I was hardly able to give it any attention." Is that the
passage you refer to ?

684. No; that is not the passage. You referred somewhere to the fact of your having a
reputation to make, or something of that sort ?—I will find it if I can.

685. Well, I do not wish to take up a lot of time in finding these things ?—lf you will give me
the date, Mr. Chapman, I will try to find it.

686. I cannot give you the date. Now, let me ask you this wjth regard to your action in
closing the upper workings: did you anticipate at the time that you were, in reality, closing the
wholemine?—l did not.

687. Your action,-then, was based on the assumption that the lower workings might continue to
be worked?—Yes.

688. And, I think, you have told us your views as to what occurred in your own mind as to the
possibility of allowing the water to rise to a certain limit, and there checking it ?—Yes.

689. That, if that had been possible, it would have been possible to continue working the lower
seam ?—Yes.
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690. Now, in your report you have referred to falls: in what part of the mine do you par-
ticularly refer to falls ?—ln which report ?

691. In your chief report—the long one?—The falls were distributed over the mine.
692. In what part were they, principally?—The worst falls were on the north side, but there

weremany falls.
693. The worst falls were on the north side : are they approximately represented by the

shading on that plan?—l am not awarewhat that plan is. They are approximately represented on
Mr. Twining's plan.

694. Did you go through the mine where those falls were ?—No ; I could not; it was not safe.
695. Do vou know the thickness of the seam where those falls were?—Between 3ft. or 4ft.,

I think.
696. Did you examine the falls in other parts of the mine ?—I did.
697. Do you remember asking Mr. Williams to watch the falls ?—Yes.
698. When was that ?"—I am not aware.
699. Can you give us any idea?—lt was in the early part of February, 1883.
700. And did you obtain areport from him later in the same year ?—I think I did.
701. Did he not inform you that nothing, or scarcely anything, had fallen since ?—I have a

recollection of something of that sort in one of his reports. I cannot tell you the exact date of the
report; Imight find it.

702. Was it a writtenreport you had from him ?—I think so.
703. Well, was not that the purport of his report ?—I do not find, such a report, Mr. Chapman.
704. Very well, then, probably it was a verbal report, was it not ?—Probably it was.
705. Do you remember what he told you after you had told him to watch the falls : if you do

not remember you can say so, Mr. Binns, and we can pass on ?—I do not think Idoremember. Tell
me on what dates.

706. I have veryfew questions further to ask you. With reference to your views on the subject
of letting water in the mine, you said it was very difficult to find authorities on the subject, and I
believe you said you telegraphed to Dr. Hector on the subject of submarine mining ?—Yes.

707. Have you endeavoured since to further familiarize yourself with the subject ?—I have.
708. Have you consulted authorities on the .subject of letting water into mines as apreservative

orpreventive measure?—Yes; I have.
709. On the subject of keeping water in mines with a view of upholding roofs ?—Yes.
710. Have you consulted engineering authorities in this country on the subject ?—I have.
711. With reference to Shag Point shales ?—With reference to the subject in general.
712. MayI ask whomyouhave consulted ?—I have consulted Mr. Bishop, and I have consulted

Mr. Harrison, of Greymouth.
713. Yes; are they witnesses?—They were recommended by me as witnesses. I have also

consulted Mr. Blackett, Mr. Blair, and Mr. O'Connor.
714. Have you consulted any other mining engineers?—No.
715. Have you consulted any persons who are familiar with the subject of coal mines?—Yes;

I have stated their names.
716. Yes; but other than those you have mentioned?—No ;I donot think Ihave.
717. Mr. Macandrew.] Have you consulted Mr. Denniston?—l am so familiar with Mr. Den-

niston's opinion that it was not necessary.
718. Mr. Chapman/] You have made some reference in your correspondence, Mr. Binns, to a

prosecution in connection with the Shag Point Mine ?—Yes; I have.
719. When was that?—l think on the 25th and 28th July, 1883.
720. Some months after you had ordered the closing of the upper working ?—Yes.
721. Now, what was the subject of that prosecution?—Deficient ventilation.
722. You laid an information, or two informations, against Mr. Williams, did you not ?—I did.
723. And that was tried before Mr. Bobinson, at Palmerston, and the trial lasted two days ?—

Yes; 'it occupied the Court during two days.
724. You called a large number of men from the mine, did you not, on this subject of ventila-

tion ?—Yes.
725. And you called some experts; I think Mr. Denniston gave evidence ?—Yes.
726. You did not call him, did you ?—No.
727. You are not one of his believers, are you: you do not quite agree with Mr. Dennis-

ton ?—No.
728. Your viewson the subject of ventilation and Mr. Denniston's views came into conflict on

that occasion, did. they not ?—No; Mr. Denniston was not down at the timeI was.
729. No; but, on the question of the feasibility of ventilating that mine in certain ways, your

views came into conflict with those of Mr. Denniston and others, did they not ?—He was on the
other side.

730. You called some of the coal-miners who were themselves in the mine : did theybear out
your case?—The case was dismissed, if that is what you mean.

731. Did the evidencebear it out?—l consider that it did. I consider it was a very good case.
732. But the case was dismissed?—Yes; I have the Magistrate's remarks on the case here.

Tlie Magistrate said it was a good case.
733. But he dismissed it ?—Yes. "*_
734. Now, there is one tiling I-omitted: you said you asked Mr. Williams some question about

6ft. pillars : do you .mean to tell this Committee that Mr. Williams stated to you in general terms
that he considered'6ft. pillars sufficient for the support of a mine?—l asked him if he considered
6ft. pillars sufficient in submarine mining, and he said Yes.

735. You called his attention to a particular pillar, which you referred to as a 6ft. pillar, did
you not ?—Yes.
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736. And it was withreference to thatparticular pillar that he gave that answer : doyoumean
to say that Mr. Williams committed himself to a general statement that 6ft. pillars were sufficient
in submarine workings ?—(No answer.)

737. Mr. Beid.] What was the size of these pillars?—l took the average of thirty pillars
impartially, and found it 10-296 feet.

738. Mr. Chapman.] From what?—From the plan.
739. Mr. Beid.] What plan?—Mr. Twining's plan.
740. Mr. Chapman asked you just now with reference to your consulting authorities ; you

might as well tell us whether any of these authorities, and, if so, whichof them, concurred with you ?
[Mr. Chapman objected to the question, which was disallowed.]

740a. Mr. Beid.] With reference to the falls about which you were asked just now : did you
receive any written information about the falls ?—I did.

741. From whom?—From Mr. Bishop.
742. Hon. Mr. Stout.] He was one of the men working in the mine?—He was surveyor of the

mine.
743. Mr. Beid.] At the time ?—Not when I made the survey.
744. At the time you got this letter ?—No ; it was subsequently to his leaving. I wrote to him

to ask if he hadmade a survey of the mine. I received, inreply, theletternowproduced : " Brunner
Mine, 16th February, 1883.—Dear Sir,—In reply to your inquiries re submarine workings, Shag
Point Mine, Ibeg to say the plan shows extreme south workings from actual survey, except some
bords, which were so fallen as not to be accessible. When at the Point I set off the main incline
levels going north and south, also inclines driven up from levels, and from which thebords were
turned away. Bords and other places were driven as thought best by the under-viewer. I will
look up section of shaft and send them on to Mr. Williams, as he has already written for them.
Mr. Twining has sections of both shafts.—Yours faithfully, J. Bishop.—G. J. Binns, Esq., Mines
Inspector, Dunedin."

745. With reference to that, you say that is the information you got about thefalls ?—That is
the information I got about the falls and the surveys.

745a. You have seen the plan by Mr. Taylor : have you got it here?—No; it is among the
papers in the possession of tho Committee. [Plan produced.]

746. Have you compared this plan with Mr. Twining's ?—I have.
747. What is the essential point of difference ?—ln one instance I find, on looking at

Mr. Twining'splans, that more bords and the excavations in the centre here, at the point marked A,
are not shown. They materially weaken that portion of the mine.

748. The submarineportion ?—Yes.
749. Hon. Mr. Stout.] Who made this plan ?—A man named Taylor, whowas surveyor at the

mine. It bears his signature.
750. What is the date?—The 30th June, 1883.
751. Mr. Beid.] You were asked by Mr. Chapman whether your action in closing the mine

was based on seeing Mr. Twining's plan, and you said not altogether: what were the other data
that you went upon ?—My impression after the inspection of the mine. From the first time I had
been struck with its danger up to the very last moment on seeng Mr. Twining's plan, but I waited
until I saw theplan in order to have the whole case before me before I decided.

752. The plan was confirmatory?—Merely confirmatory of my impression of the mine.
753. You were asked also several questions with reference to Mr. Williams and Mr. Eich

protesting against your action in closing the mine : did you everreceive any written protest from
Mr. Williams?—I have never.receivedany writtenprotest as to the danger to the roof and floor.

754. From letting the water in?—Yes.
755. Are you aware, of your own knowledge, of his everhaving made any report, either to Mr.

Maitiand or to others, upon the danger of having closed the mine in that way, and allowing the
water to come in ?—The only report I am aware of is his report of the 30th June, which does not
refer to the danger to the roof at all, as far as I have read it—and I have read it some hundreds of
times.

756. You have heard the evidence of Mr. Denniston with reference to the average of the bords
shown ?—Yes.

757. He has stated that, in some places, the pillars were 25ft. and 30ft. thick: did you find
any pillars of that thickness in the mine?—There were pillars of that thickness, which I have
already described as a source of danger.

758. In whatway ?—By upholding the roof in one part, abstracting the general averagefrom
the roof, and causing irregularities in the support.

759. Mr. Macandrew.] One of your reasons for ordering the suspension of pumping operations
was, as I understand, that their continuance would have rendered it necessary to have oneman
down in the mine to work the pump, and that his life would have been in continual danger: is that
so?—That is so.

' 760. Now, Mr. Denniston, in his evidence, affirms that there would have been no danger. Did
you fortify your opinion as to this point by consultation with anybody else ?—No ; Ihad nobody to
consult with.

761. Well, might it have been possible to have pumped the mine without any one having been
stationed underground, that is to say, by means of connecting gearfrom power situated beyond the
reach of water ?—lt might haje been possible to do that, but a man would have had to go down to
attend to the pump. Youcould not leave apump entirelyby itself.

762. Did thebreach of the Mining Act in respect of which you prosecuted the company refer
to the landward workings ?—To the landward workings.

763. Not the workings now in question?—No; quite a different affair.
764. Well now, seeing the important and extensive interest, both public and private, involved
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in your action as Inspector of Mines, did it not occur to you to think thatit would have been
prudent to take counsel with other professional menbefore issuing such an order ?—There is nothing
would have delighted me more than to take counsel with any one, but I had no one to take counsel
with; I felt it at the time; I was very sorryr I had no one to take counsel with.

765. You state that you would have been delighted to take the counsel of others, and to have
shared the responsibility with them: did you advise the Minister of Mines not to accede to Mr.
Eich's request that some one else should be referred to ?—Not for a moment.

766. Had it beenreferred to you, youwould have advised that a commission should be granted ?
—Most strongly.

767. But it was neverreferred to you?—Never.
768. Mr. Cowan.] Youtold us yesterday that, on one occasion when you were in this mine, you

were alarmedby whatyou called " the weighting of the coal" ?—Yes.
769. That was brought about by the subsidence of the roof?—It is a noise caused by the

weighting of theroof. The roof may notbe actually subsiding, but it is the prime mover of it, the
weight of the roof.

770. You wero alarmed at the frequency of these sounds?—We retired from the place.
771. Is it a usual occurrence in a coal-mine ?—Not if it is properly worked.
772. On that occasion, did you consider that your life was in danger if you remained in the

position in which you were ?—I consideredit would be prudent to move. I didnot consider that my
life was in immediate danger, but I considered it prudent to move to a more shelteredplace.

773. Mr. McKenzie.] You said, in reply to Mr. Macandrew a few minutes ago, that at the
time you gave authority to close this mine you could not get any professional advice?—Mr.
McKenzie, if you will allow me to say so, a Government official has to undertake his duty; if he
were to ask for some one else to undertake that duty he would be stepped upon by the Government.
When I am told to undertake a duty I have to do it.

774. That is not an answer to my question ?—I am very sorry ; I intended it to be so.
775. You stated that you could not get a professional man to consult with?—l had nobody to

consult with.
776. How is it you have discovered some one since this petition began?—l asked them as wit-

nesses.
777. Why did you not ask them before ?—lt would not dofor me to disclose the affairs of a

mine to any outside individual. I could not think of doing it.
778. Could you not have put a supposititious case to any of these gentlemen?—No; they would

haveknown in a minute; they would have known at once to what mine I referred.
779. I think you gave it in evidence, or it came out in the evidence of some otherwitness here,

that you consulted Dr. Hector, did you not ?—I asked him for authorities. I may say that was the
only step I took to consult Dr. Hector. I have the telegram here.

780. Hon. Mr. Bolleston.] Is it a usual thing in the department for an inspector to apply for
extraassistance?—I think it is an unheard-of thing; I never heard of it; I never dared to do it.

781. Did you feel any doubt about thepropriety of the course you were taking?—No; I did
not afterI had considered it.

782. Have you anyreason to suppose that the department would not have given you assistance
if you had asked for it?—No; I have not.

783. Did the question that lives were in danger influence you?—Entirely.
784. And did you not report to the department that lives were in danger?—Yes; I think I did.
785. And the department had before it information which showed that the matter was one

which required decisiveand prompt action?—Yes.
786. The Chairman.] What evidence have you that the water which did come into the mine

eventually was salt ?—I tasted it.
787. Mr. McKenzie.] What date was that?—February, 1884.
788. Hon. Mr. Bolleston.] Did not a considerable time elapse between your order and any

written objection being received?—Yes.
789. And before any application was madeto theGovernment the waterhad been accumulating

a considerable time?—Yes ; I believe so.
790. Mr. McKenzie.] Was this case at Palmerston before or after the closing ?—lt was before

thefinal closing.
791. Hon. Mr. Stout.] What was the date?—The 25th and 28th July, 1883, I think.
792. Let me understand, because I have not been here before. Perhaps you have given the

evidence before, but I have not heard the evidence. I understand you examined the mine?—Yes,
I did.

793. You gave certain directions, and then you brought the matter before the Court for non-
compliance with your directions : was that the reason ?—I had had occasion to note twenty times
duringtwo and a half years that the ventilation was bad. I had spoken to Mr. Williams previously,
and he had told the men, but this timehe said it was quite good. There was no course open to ip.e
but to try and prove that it was bad, as I considered it to be bad.

794. The question that came before the Court was simply whether therewere sufficient venti-
lating shafts, I suppose?—No; whether there was sufficient ventilation in one portion of the mine.

795. It was decided that there was?—Yes.
796. That was in July, 1883, and, from what I understand, the question of closing the mine at

that time did not arise ?—No.
797. Now, when,did you first consider about closing the mine?—Do you mean the submarine

mine ?
798. Yes ?—That was closed by me in February, 1883, before the prosecution.
799. When was the final closing of the mine?—On the 11th February, 1884.
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Mr. Beid : Ido not know whether the witness understands. That was not the closing by his. order, but the watercoming in.
800. Eon. Mr. Stout.] I want the closing by his order?—l think the date was the 19th or

20th March, 1883.
801. Tlie questions Mr. Macandrew has been putting, and you have been answering, about

consulting people, refer to what date?—February, 1883, I imagine to be the datereferred to by Mr.
Macandrew's question.

802. Now, I want to know when did Mr. Williams first object to the closing of the submarine
workings in writing to you or to the Minister, to your knowledge ?—There is a copy of the letter in
evidence; it is dated the 30th June, 1883.

803. Hon. Mr. Bolleston.] There was nothing to show, was there, during themonths of March
and April, and for some time after the order was given, that it was accepted in anything but a
friendly spirit ?—That was my impression.

804. And that was the information which the department had, that everything was satisfac-
torily arranged as between you and the petitioner; that.your action was agreed to by thepetitioner?■—That was my impression, and the impression conveyed to the department.

805. Hon. Mr. Stout.] From the latter part of Mr. Williams's letter it appears that the objec-
tion to the closing was not the loss of the coal in the lower workings, but the danger to theworkings
in the other part of the mine?—Yes; the workings that I closed, to be filled with water, were
not above any workings at all.

806. It says here that they were?—Yes ; but that is a mistake.
807. Were these lower workings to which Mr. Williams refers abandoned?—Yes; but not by

my orders.
808. All that you closed was district Aon that map: state shortly whatwas the reason for

closingdistrict A: it was not the mere loss of one man's life ?—No ; twenty menwereworking down
there possibly. My reasons were on account of the insufficient cover, irregular working, and bad
roof.

809. What was the roof?—lt was composed principally of sandstones, shales, with a few
harder bands and coal in it.

810. How much coal did they leave in theroof ?—They took the whole of the coal out of it.
811. Is that usual ?—ln a thin seam like that it is necessary; it is about 3ft. 6in. thick.
812. On what plan do they work the mine?—They work it on a system of bord without pillar.
813. It is not on the long-wall system ?—No; not long-wall.
814. Not as the Green IslandMines are worked ?—No. Here is aplan of the mine, which we

are going to put in.
815. It is not on therance-and-room, nor on the longtitudinal, system ?—No.
816. Mr. Chapman.] We do not agree with that plan ?—I have compared it with the plan on

the wall.
817. Hon. Mr. Stout.] Where did you get that plan from ?—lt is from actual survey, made by

Mr. Twining..
818. You had authorized this working as the only mode of working the mine : I suppose long-

wallworking would have been too expensive ?—Long-wall working would be inadmissible, theroof
is too bad.

819. What do they leave as pillars, seeing that they left no roof ?—The average that I took,
where it was possible, was a little over 10ft.

820. What are thepillars in the Green Island Mine ?—I cannot say exactly, 4or 5 yards.
821. Mr. Bolleston.] You say that they ought to have been 14ft. ?—They ought to have

been 18ft. at least; the witnesses on the other side have given evidence on that point.
822. Hon. Mr. Stout.] What Iunderstand is, you wereafraid, if theseworkings were continued,

theroof would fall in and "the miners would be killed ?—That was my fear.
823. Mr. Macandrew/] One of your reasons for allowing the mine to be filled with water was

that the hydrostatic pressure would help to keep up the roof ?—That was a powerful reason.
824. Were you not a little startled to find that Dr. Hector, who is supposed to be a high

authority, pooh-poohed that?—I did not hear that.
825. Hon. Mr. Stout.] I understand that, whether or not with theroof as it was, it would have

been dangerous to work there ?—I consider it would have been imminently dangerous.
826. Where is your letter ordering the mine to be filled with water?—lt was agreed on the

827. There is nothing in writing about that ?—I wrote to Mr. Williams on the 20th March,
1883. I said, " You have already, I presume, stopped all work except that necessaryfor getting out
material from the subaqueous area."

828. Was there any distinct order by you to fill the mine with water ?—I do not think I have a
record of such.

829. Mr. McKenzie.] When you authorized the men to be withdrawn, was it not your intention
to have the mine filled with water ?—Not until later.

830. Although you didnot expressit in writing ?—lt was agreedbetweenus: it was unnecessary
to state it in writing. . ■

831. You state there was no working under that which you decided should be failedwith water ?
—Yes, I did. **- .

832. How, then, did the watercomein ?—Those are the workings [pointingto the plan]. Ihese
in red are the deepworkings. The Committee will observe that these workings are not under those
workings. ,

833. They were accessible by means of shafts, drives, and so on ?—No; it the waterwas kept
down here, pumped from this level, and syphoned from here down that shaft, there would be no
danger to the workings until the sea broke in; if the sea broke in, of course the whole would
be flooded.
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834. Then, what was the use of the dams ?—ln case of a sudden outburst, as expressed in my
letter.

835. You are playing with my question : what I wanted to know is, whether these workings
were under that portion you wanted to fill with water: if the water rises to a certain level it would
come down there ?—Yes.

836. Youput in the dams to stop it ?—rYes.
837. Then, why did you tell theCommitteethat those workings were not lowerthan the others ?

—I didnot say that; I said they were not below.
838. Seeing the fact that these dams were of no use when the water had risen to that level,

was not that the reason why the lower workings were closed ?—The dams were of use.
839. Did they prevent the mine being closed ?—Theyprevented the menfrom being caught, and

allowed the machinery to be got out.
840. You directed the men to be removed, did you not, from the high workings ?—No; not

from the high workings.
841. How, then, did they come to leave them?—By high workings, do you mean higher in

level ?
842. The workings that you intended to fill with wTater with a view of keeping up the roof?—

I directed the men to withdrawfrom those workings.
843. That is the question Iput to you: you directed them ?—Yes.
844. Did not Messrs. Williams and Eich say at that time they were quite willing to withdraw

the men if you would allow them to keep that portion of the mine dry ?—That was in order that
they might allow the men to work it.

845. Did not they agree to withdraw the men so long as you would allow that portion to be
kept dry ?—Yes.

846. Did not they point out to you that, if you let the water in, the result that took place
would take place ?—No ; it was never mentioneduntil it broke in ; then every one knew of it.

847. Mr. Chapman.] Did not Mr. Eich point out to you that the filling of the upper-seam
workings with water would inevitably result in the closing of the lower-seam workings ?—No;
certainly not. He was going on projecting expensiveworks until the day the water broke in.

848. Mr. McKenzie.] Are you aware that, when you gave directions to leave these upper
workings, every practical man said the mine was ruined ?—No; I am aware that I was con-
gratulated all over the country on my action by miners and managers.

849. I have heard it stated as I put it ?—Very likely.
850. Mr. Bolleston.] I want to put these questions, Mr. Binns: Was the order to withdraw

from the portion of the submarine workings in consequence of your opinion that the workings were
unsafe, and that it was dangerous to life for the men remaining there?—lt was.

851. Was not the filling with water a necessary consequence of that order?—lt was.
852. Would it have made any difference in your order whether the filling with water supported

the roof or not ?—I donot think that it would. I should have withdrawn all the men more readily,
perhaps.

853. You understand my question ?—Yes; I said it would not.
854. Then, the question of your opinion upon the technical point of the support of the roof is

not material to the main question of whether it was proper to withdraw the men or not ?—No; I
considered the place grossly unsafe.

855. Mr. McKenzie.] You abandon that portion of your theory, then?—No ; not at all: I have
a number of witnesses to support it.

Mr. C. E. Twining, examined.
856. Mr. Beid.] What are you, Mr. Twining?—A mining engineer.
857. What experiencehave you had as a miningengineer?—lt is between nineteen and twenty

years since I served my articles, and I have been at it ever since.
858. How long have you practised as a mining engineer?—About fourteen years.
859. What are you doing now?—Practising as a mining engineer.
860. Still practising ?—Yes.
861. Are you acquainted with the Shag Point Coal Mine, in the South Island ?—I have been

thereon two occasions.
862. Are you acquainted with other collieries in New Zealand?—Yes.
863. Have you visited any collieries at Home ?—Yes.
864. How many?—I could not answer that question: a great many.
865. More than one ?—Well, I had to survey seventy-three different pits belonging to one

company. I could not tellyou howmany.
866. Mr. Bolleston.] In what part of England ?—Lancashire, North Wales, and South Wales.
867. Mr. Beid.] Were you called in to make a survey for the Government of the Shag Point

Mine on one occasion?—Yes.
868. Will you tellus when that was?—In was on the 31st January, 1883, when I went there.
869. Who instructed you to make the survey ?—Mr. Binns.
870. Did he give you any special instructionsas to making the survey : if so, what werethey ?—

To make an accurate survey of the mine, showing all falls, heaps of dross, and any wider places
there might be ; a general survey; a detailedsurvey of the mine. "_

871. Did you proceed to make a-detailedand accurate survey?—Yes.
872. Did you complete it ?—Yes.
873. How long didit take you?—Ten days, I think; at least, I was four days at the mine, and

to make a plan took ten days.
874. You said you went to the mine on the 31st January, 1883?—Yes.
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875. Whom did you meet there, do you remember?—Mr. Williams and the underground
manager.

876. Anybody else ?—Mr. Taylor.
877. Who is he ?—He was surveyor, I think.
878. Surveyor for what ?—For the company, I believe.
879. Whom else did you meet ?—I do not think therewas anybody else.
880. Was Mr. Binns there ?—I think I mentioned Mr. Binns; I went with Mr. Binns.
881. Who gave you authority to go clown the mine, or had you any authority: did you have

sufficient authority with Mr. Binns ?—I went down, as Mr. Binns told me to do so.
882. Did Mr. Williams go down with you ?—I believe so.
883. You arenot certain ?— No ;I am not certain; I think he did, though.
884. Are you certain as to who did go down with you ?—The first day that Iwas there we had

a walk round the mine, and I think Mr. Williams went with us, but I am not sure.
885. When you commenced your survey, who went with you, do you remember?—Mr. Taylor,

Mr. Binns, and some workmen—I do not know who they were.
886. In what capacity was Mr. Taylor there?—As check surveyor against me.
887. Was Mr Taylor present with you on behalf of the companythroughout your survey ?—He

was there all the time.
888. Mr. Taylor was there all the time, did he take any notes ?—Yes.
889. Did you show him your notes ?—He had a copy of all that I took; he booked them

himself as they were taken.
890. Now, we have been told that one inaccuracy was pointed out in this survey by Mr.

Williams : do you remember his pointing it out ?—No.
891. Did Mr. Taylor point out any inaccuracy, or was any alterationmade ?—The evening of

the first day, as the survey was going on, Mr. Binns and I were looking at the survey in the book;
there were some off-sets taken from the survey-line which showed some of the places, when added
together, to be of greater width, and Mr. Binns, the nextmorningat themine, mentioned thefact of
these places being so wide to Mr. Williams. They were remeasured, and in one place, I believe,
it was found to be wrong, but it was never put on the plan ; it was found out next day.

891a. WhatIwantedto get at was whether the inaccuracywas pointed out and corrected ?—Yes.
891b. Were there any other inaccuracies to your knowledge, besides that one instance ?—No ;

not that I am aware of.
891c. Would you have been aware of any if they had been pointed out by Mr. Williams to

yOU ?—Well, if Mr. Binns had told me. Mr. Williams did not speak to me about them at all. He
made his objection through Mr. Binns.

891d. Will you look at that plan there : I want you to look at it very carefully, Mr. Twining,
because a great deal hinges upon the correctness of that plan. It is only fair to tell you that one
witness has sworn upon oath [Form of question objected to by Mr. Chapman.] Well, its
accuracy has been called in question by one of the witnesses, therefore Iwish you to be very careful.
Will you look at it carefully, and tell us if that is the plan- which you prepared?—Yes.

891e. Is it in the same state now as when it left your hands?—There may be some pencil-
marks upon it, but I believe all the writing of it and the workings are the same.

892. Are thebords and pillars the same as drawnby you?—Yes; I think so.
893. I want you to look at it carefully?—I amcertain that it is, so far as it goes.
894. That was the plan prepared in February, 1883?—Yes.
895. You visited the mine in January?—Yes; on the 31st January.
896. Did Mr. Williams or did Mr. Taylor get a tracing of that plan at any time?—Not

from me.
897. Did they apply to you for it?—No.
898. I understandyou to say that Mr. Williams had notes : had he sufficient notes, takenfrom

yours, and from observationsmade at the time, to have compiled a plan similar to that?—You mean
Mr. Taylor?

899. Yes?—He took everything from me ; he had the option of using it.
900. And he obtained the same data from which you made that plan? —Yes.
901. Did he everobject to the measurements taken by you, or to the quantities taken out by

you, during the survey?—No.
902. Then, are you prepared to say positively and distinctly before this Committee that that

plan correctly shows the state of the submarine workings of the Shag Point Mine at the date of
your survey?—Yes.

903. Did you tie in your survey at any place during the progress of the survey?—It was tied
in everywhere; every place was dialled that we could get through.

904. What was the result of your tying in?—That it was tied in correctly. We always allow,
in an underground survey, that if you get to three links it is correct.

905. How didyou proceed to takethe survey with reference to the measurement of the bords :
did you take the bords in the widest places and run a straight line through, and then take the
narrowest places and run a straight line through them; or did you follow the inequalities of the
bord, and show them upon theplan?—There was a straight line—the survey line. Whenever there
was any bend in the sides of the places there was an off-set taken of it,which was taken to the next
straight, and so on. —906. With what result ?—They are marked on the plan, showing every bend there is in the.
side of the place.

907. The plan shows every bend?—Yes; and the actual width of every bord.
908. Then, if one witness has sworn that the widest pieces were taken and straight lines run-

through, that is not correct ?—No; it is not correct.
909. Can you state what the average width of thepillars is, according to that plan ?
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910. Hon. Mr. Stout.] What scale is this plan?—A chain to an inch.
911. Mr. Beid.] Is there any average width of pillar ?—They are very uneven; I should have

to measure them all to take them out.
912. From your experience as a mining engineer, do you consider that the safest method of

working the mine?—No ; not under the circumstances.
913. What leads you to consider that it was unsafe ?—Because there is no pillar left in some

places, there is nothing left to support the roof in other places, and it would set the weight on to
the weaker ones.

914. Were you aware of the amount of cover overhead ?—No; not at that time.
915. Did you observe any falls in the mine?—Yes.
916. Can you tell us what these had been caused by, in your opinion?—By taking out the coal.
917. Yes ; but what was the immediatecause ? Of course, if there had been no coal taken out

there would have been no holes in the ground, but that is not what I am asking you : I am asking
you if you know, what was the immediate cause of the falls: can you state what was the cause ?—
I suppose the air.

918. The Chairman.] Were the falls owing to any improper workingor anything of that sort;
I suppose that is what Mr. Eeid means?—Some of the places had no doubt fallen from too much
coal being taken out; others, I suppose, had come down from natural causes. In some narrow
places the coal will come down.

919. Mr. Beid.] While you were down there, did you eversee any one working at thepillars or
working near the pillars?—I think I saw oneman. I did not take any notice of things. I simply
made a survey of the mine.

920. You could not recollect ?—No.
921. What, in your opinion, would be the effect of letting water into that mine and allowing

the place to fill: would it have a tendency to bring down the roof, or would it have a tendency to
support the roof ?—lf left in, it would have a tendency to keep the roof up; if taken out, it would
be injurious to the mine after it had been filled.

922. I was not asking you about taking out the water, but what would be the effect of allowing
water to accumulate in the mine ?—lt would assist to keep the roof up.

923. How so?—By the pressure or weight.
924. Would not the water have some effect in disintegrating the roof, or would the pressure

counterbalance the disintegrating ?—I think the pressure would have a tendency to keep it up more
than to bring it down.

925. Then, in your opinion, the danger would be in drawing the water off and allowing the air
to get in to the roof?—Yes. -926. So long as the water was allowed to remain in, it would have a tendency to support the
roof ?—Yes.

927. Did you notice the general condition of the mine when you were in it in February—of
course you must have made a survey—but had you your attention drawn to any particular state of
the mine at that time by any one?—No ; no farther than that I had to put on everything Icould
see—any falls, any accumulation of dross, &c.

928. No ; I am asking you whether your attention was drawn to the state of the mine at that
time,by any one, as to theroof, or the sides, or thepillars,or the floor, or anything withreference to
the state of the mine, or didyour own vision show you the state of the mine ?—Well, I could not
answer it exactly.

929. Well, I will ask the question, with the permission of the Chairman, in this way: did you
notice any subsidence or creep in the mineat that time ?—I noticed a creep on one occasion.

930. Hon. Mr. Stout.] Can you point out on the plan where that was ?—I can point to one or
two places, but could not say which one it was. It was there (pointing to the plan), but I couldnot
say which place it was.

931. Mr. Beid.] Some of the witnesses have stated that thebest plan to adopt in that mine,
where it was creepy, and where falls were taking place, was to have packed it: do you think that
packing would have been more expeditious or more expedient than allowing the mine to fill with
water, or waspacking practicable ?—lt was practicable in some places, but others were fallen at the
time. Ido not know howhigh the falls were, whether they could have been packed; I could not
get into them. Ido not think they could have been packed all over.

932. Do you think that packing would have been preferable to allowing the water in—that is
what I am asking you—or do you think that the water would have had an equal power in sustaining
the roof ?—There were places where it could not be packed, and it would have fallen.

933. Then, you could not say ?—lt could not be done.
934. Did you ever make a survey for Mr. Louden ?—Yes.
935. He has given evidence with reference to your styleof working: did he give you any special

instructions inreference to thatsurvey? He has stated that your method of surveying thatmine was
in manyrespects to take a point and run a line through : he said it was very good outside work, but
your practice was to run a straight line through and not to show inequalities of the working : was
that your practice in reference to that survey, and what reason had you for adopting that practice,
if you had any ?—When I was engaged by Mr. Loudon I asked him if he wanted a detailed survey
of all the places, or only to go round the faces—that is, the extreme points—and draw theplaces
through from one to another. He said he would have it done thatway, and it was.
b;,v t 936. The Chairman.] As being less expensive?—Yes ; it was done to satisfy Mr. Binns.
'■%-- 937. Mr. Chapman.] You made" theplan, and you say that an error was pointed out to you in
your field-book before you made the plan, and you rectified it ?—Yes.

938. Do you remember what amount that error was ?—6 links.
939. Was there not an error of sft. or 6ft. ?—lt was 4ft.
940. Was there not a differencebetween 15ft. and 21ft. or 16ft. and 21ft. ?—I do not remember.
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941. Now, may there be other errors ?—There might be the error of a link in the off-set, but I
do not think there are any.

942. Have you compared that plan with Mr. Bishop's plan?—No; I do not remember having
done so.

943. Have you seen the working-plan of the mine ?—I saw one when I was making the survey
at the colliery.

944. Have you seen this plan [producing Bishop and Taylor's plan]: look, for instance, at this
portion—the submarine workings; you see there is a very great difference between that and yours ?
—Yes.

945. Well, now, would you be surprised to hear that Mr. Bishop had made this plan from the
same workings by actual survey, except some that were filled in and were not accessible; you see
there is a great difference?—Will you allow me to put it on this [the witness then compared
Bishop and Taylor's plan with his own]. A portion of it, the extreme boundary, appears to be
correct, but it does not seem tofit very well in this other part.

946. If that plan is made from actual survey, does it not show a correct mode of working and
safe pillars ?—lf they were left as they are represented.

947. Now, as to the other questions you were asked, Mr. Twining, how do you say the water
would tend to support the roof?—lf the mine was filled with water, the weight of water—the
pressure—would have a tendency to keep the roof up.

948. The weight of the column of water?—Yes; and the solid body.
949. That is all that you mean—the mechanical question as to the upward pressure,because of

the weight of the column of water ?—Yes.
950. Now, what effect has water upon shales such as these: are you familiar with the shales

there ?—At Shag Point ?
951. Yes ?—No ; I cannot say that I am familiarwith them.
952. Do you know the effect of water upon any shales ?—lf it is left standing full of water,and

the water is drawn off, afterwards the shales have a tendency to come in; but if the water is not
drawn off the shales donot come in.

953. What shales are you speaking of ?—I am speaking of coal measures, generally, that I have
seen.

954. Are you aware what has been experienced in this mine—that water has the effect of
disintegrating the shales?—l have had no experience of the shales in this mine; lam only speaking,
generally of other places.

955. The weight of the water, the pressure of the water, would tend to drive it through the
shales, would it not?—No; I do not think so.

956. Now, you say you noticed a creep on one occasion : would you point out againwhere that
was ?■—I cannot say exactly where it was ; but we had come there (pointing to the plan).

957. It was not in the submarine workings ?—We had come through here, and were having
something to eat at the time, when it began to sound and crack on theroof.

958. That is what you speak of as a creep ?—Yes.
959. Youheard a cracking ?—Yes.
960. Did you see the falls?—No; I only heard it, and we withdrew from the place. I cannot

tell you exactly where it was.
961. You do not know the coal-measures at Shag Point: would you be surprised that, in the

ordinary coal—solid walls of coal—a great noise is made where it is perfectly and absolutely safe ?—
No; not at all; it is very common.

962. In supporting a roof of this sort, supposing you had falls taking place, should you resort
to packing ?—I should have been inclined to pack that roof, I think.

963. And if an Inspectorof Mines had orderedyou to do it, you wouldhave set to work to do itr
I suppose : what would you then pack it with ?—I think with timber.

964. Props orchocks ?—No ; cross-way chocks.
965. Do you think you could have packed these drives that you saw ?—Some of them.
966. Do you know that these are shallow workings here—thin seams ?—Yes; on that side it

is thinner.
967. W'ould the falls have had less significance here, where the coal is thin, than here, where

it is thick ?—Yes; they would not have had the same effect on the roof.
968. Could they have packed these supposing coal is taken out and theroof began to come in ;

at what height will it choke itself ?—Of course it varies according to the strata.
969. But in strata of that character ?—To make it solid, do you mean, so that no water could

come in ?
970. So thatit would stop the fallingof theroof—stop it fromcoming in anylonger ?—lt would

have to fill solid so far up; Ido notknow what thickness.
971. How far ?—lt just depends upon what thickness it was there.
972. What, the roof ?—No ; the coal.
973. But suppose the coal is taken out ?—lt might have been 10ft. or 12ft. thick there.
974. No; I assume that it is 3ft. or 4ft. thick there ?—lt might have fallen 12ft. or 14ft.
975. In the 3ft. or 4ft. seam ?—Yes.
976. That would all depend upon the character of the measure?—lt might be more on the

upper seam; it was very high there; you could not see on the top of the fall.
977. Where the thin seam was, how were they?—Some of them I could not tell you; we went

as far as we could get.
978. I suppose you expect to find falls in every mine, do you not, especially with a rock cover?

—Yes.
979. Mr. Beid.] There is one question I will ask you with reference to packing. You say you

could pack in some places : would it be the lesser falls or the larger falls that you could pack ?—When it wasfirst starting to fall; before any large falls had taken place.
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980. I understand you to tell the Committee you could not get into the places where the fallshad taken place to any extent?—No.
981. Hon. Mr. Stout.] You saw the mine before it was closed, did you not?—Yes; I madethis survey.
982. The men were working iu it then ?—Yes.
983. Did you form any opinion as to whether it was safe or not to work the mine, looking at

the support thatwas left and the pillars ?—Not at that time; when Iwas plotting it I had my own
thoughts about it, but I was never asked for my opinion.

984. What were your thoughts at the time you examined it ?—I thought that the mine did notlook in a very good condition.
985. Supposing the men had been withdrawn from theseworkings, what would have happened :

would the water have come in, or not ?—ln time it would, I should think.
986. Was there any pumping going on when you were there?—Yes.
987. In what way?—There was a Tangye pump at the bottom of the shaft.
988. Had they a well ?—I think theypumped out of the lower level, but I did not see. There

is one on that plan (Mr. Bishop's).
989. You say the minewas not in a good condition :was that from insufficient support ?—Yes;

through thepillars being so uneven.
990. Through toomuch coal being taken away?—Yes.
991. You say you think you saw a creep in one place ?—The roof was on the move.
992. Ycu hear a noise from the pavement when there is a creep in the mine, do you not ?—No;

I have never heard it.
993. You saw no creeps in the mine, at all events ?—No; only falls.
994. Did you see the roof falling in at any place ?—No ; I never saw any actual falling.
995. Mr. Bruce/] Had you any experiencem submarine mining at Home?—No.
996. You say you have had twenty years' experience, at least, of coal mines ?—Not quite.
997. There or thereabouts, I suppose : did you consider that the action of the Government

Inspector, in the first place, in letting water into the mine was judicious, or otherwise ?—I do notknow what the state of the minewas when he stopped it; I could not say.
998. Do you think that letting it in would have led to the eventual abandonment of the mine

as it appears to have done?—I thought the sea would break in sooner or later.
999. I understood you to say that you fully approve, with the experience you have had ofmining, the action of the Government Inspector in causing certainworkings there to be abandoned ?—I should certainly have withdrawn the men from that part of the mine.
1000. Mr. Bolleston.] After the men were withdrawn, was the filling with water a natural

consequence ?—They could still have had apump working in it.
1001. Would that have been safe ?—The pump would have done no harm; it could have been

kept working.
1002. Mr. Bruce] Would it not have entailed the necessity of'having a man down there in the

place you say was unsafe ?—Thepump could have been removed, and they could have had it at the
top instead of at the bottom.

1003. Hon. Mr. Stout.] How deep was the shaft: a pump can only pump 32ft. ?—They could
have had a ram.

1004. The Chairman.] Have you had any experience amongst shales except in this colony ?—In general measures of coalmines.
1005. Only in this colony ?—At Home.
1006. Among shales?—Yes; all sorts of measures connectedwith coal.
1007. Mr. Macandrew.] The mine could have been kept dry without having any man down in

it ?—Yres; by having the gear on the top and sending a man down occasionally.
1008. How often ?■—Perhaps once a fortnight or once a month.
1009. For how long?—Perhaps an hour.
1010. Perhaps he neednot have gone down more than once in six months ?—lt just depends

how the bucket was and the valves were.
1011. The Chairman.] Eeferring to your plan :is thatplan prepared in the usual way, such as

mining engineers adopt?—Well, the falls and the dross heaps that Mr. Binns wanted specially to
be put in would not have been put in a working-plan.

1012. Are the bords and pillars shown properly in the usual way?—lf I was surveying for a
colliery, and stationed at the colliery, I should survey it in that way. If I was simply making a
general survey, I should not go into these details.

1013. Were you influenced by any feeling adverse to the mineowners in maldng thatplan ?—
Not the slightest.

1014. Would the other plan (Bishop and Taylor's) fairlyrepresent theworkings : does thatplan
fairly represent the bords and pillars?—They are not all in it.

1015. Does it fairlyrepresent those that are ?—Not for a colliery survey ; for a working plan
it does.

1016. Would you explain what you mean by that?—lf I were surveying for a colliery, and
wanted a detail plan to know what I was doing,I should go into details. If I was surveying for this
sort of plan, if the mine was abandoned, I should go in for a plan like that.

1017. Dpes it fairlyrepresent the width of thebords and the pillars ?—No.
1018. I want to know.whether it is an absolute plan of the mine?—No.
1019. Was water collecting at all when you were in the mine ?—They were pumping.
1020. Do you"know at all at what portionit was coming in ?—No; I have no idea.
1021. Was it coming in from anywhere except the ordinary drainage of the mine?—l do not

know where it was coming from.
1022. Then, you cannot give us any information as to how long it would taketo fill the mine up
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to the dams, which were subsequently erected, at the ordinary rate it was coming in ?—No; I had
no idea what water was coming in.

1023. Hon. Mr. Stout.] Did you taste the water to ascertain if it was salt or fresh ?—No; I
did not.

1024. Mr. Chapman.] I just want to ask you this, Mr. Twining: You were through the mine;
now, was there any reason, that you could see, to prevent the mine manager from keeping the
workings pumped and dry ?-^-Not of the water that was coming in.

1025. No; but supposing that you thought that it was safer not to take any more coal out,
could the mine manager have gone on keeping the whole workings dry ?—Yes.

1025a. Mr. Beid/] I want to ask you this, as aprofessional opinion from you: would, in your
opinion, the keeping of the mine dry have the effect of keeping the sea out for a longer time than
allowing the mine to fill with water?—No.

1026. You understand my question ?—You mean, if it hadbeen kept dry, would it have had the
effect of keeping theroof up.

1027. Yes; would it keep the sea out?—No; it would keep up better if the mine were filled
with water.

1028. You think it would have kept up better if the mine had been allowed to fill with
water ?—Yes.

Monday, 6th October, 1884.
Mr. Bishop, examined on oath by Frank Bird, Esq., E.M., at Greymouth.

[Questions sent and replies received by telegraph.]
1029. What areyou and how engaged at present ?—Am mining engineer engaged as manager

of Brunner Mine.
1030. What experience have you had ?—Some twenty years as coal-mine manager.
1031. Have you any experience of brown coal-mining in any other part of the world than in

New Zealand ?—Yes ; in Bohemia.
1032. If so, what, and for how long?—Two years, as manager.
1033. How long wereyou at Shag Point Colliery, and in what capacity ?—Nearly two years ;

mechanical engineer and surveyor.
1034. When did you leave?—July, 1882.
1035. Did you survey submarine workings up to date of leaving?—No; but nearly so.
1036. In your survey, did you show exact width of bords and pillars, or only approximately ?—■

Only approximately.
1037. Are you aware if the widths of the bords was increased after you left?—Not to my own

knowledge.
1038. Were there any falls in submarine area when you left; if so, state particulars?—There

were someslight falls in south level, and also in some bord's on the rise of this level.
1039. With a cover of from 118ft. to 200ft. over the seam in the submarine workings at Shag

Point, what sizedpillars and what sized bords wouldyou leave at the least, consistent with safety?
—The bords 5 yards wide, and the pillars 11 yards.

1040. Ought the coal to be gotregularly?—Yes.
1041. Do you consider that allowing the submarine area to fill with water would have effect

of so damaging the reef as to assist in letting the sea in ?—No.
1042. Would the hydrostatic pressure of the water assist in sustaining the roof?—Yes; I

believe it would.
1043. Have you any knowledge of a creep having set in in any mine where the floor was dry?

—It is quite a common occurrence for a creep to set in.

Tuesday, 7th October, 1884.
Mr. Chapman : There is a matter I wish to bring before the notice of the Committee. At the

last meeting Mr. Twining was examined, and a great deal was made of the plan that he produced.
The objection that we had to this was this : That, although it is now stated to have been the very
ground of closing the working of the mine, it was not served on the managerof the mine at the time
that it was made, nor was it stated to have been the ground for closing the mine ; and as we arenot
now in a position to survey the minewe complainthat we are at a great disadvantage. The chair-
man of directors of the Kaitangata Coal-Mining Company is present, and I should like the Com-
mittee to call him (as his company has employed Mr. Twining from time to time), and to ask him
what reliance is to be placed upon his surveys.

Mr. Beid : I object to any one being called to give evidence as to the value of another witness's
testimony; if that course were to be pursued the Committee would never end. If you are to drag
in some one for thepurpose of saying that such and such a witness is not a trustworthy person, we
should claim a like privilege. If Mr. Brydone can give us any evidence as to the practical working
of the mine, or the letting-in of the water, it is properly admissible ; but I object to any one being
called to throw aspersions on the evidence of a witness who has now gone away.

Mr. Chapman : It is not a matter of throwing aspersions. But I wish to impress on the Com-
mittee that this survey was not stated as the grounds for closing the mine in the letter which Mr.
Binns forwarded ordering the works to be closed, and we have had no opportunity of verifying it.
We have shown grounds for casting a doubt on it, and the only waywe can meet it is by evidence
of the sort which I wish to be called. I simply ask the Committee to ask Mr. Brydone what
reliance can be placed upon the surveys.

6—l. 4a.
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Mr. Macandrew : There is a great deal of force in what Mr. Eeid has said ; theremust be some
finalityto the matter. At the same time, we are going into the case to get at the truth, and, as
Mr. Brydon is here, I should be inclinedto hear what he has to say.

Mr. Thomas Brydone, examined on oath.
1044. Mr. Chapman.] I believe you are now chairman of directors of the Kaitangata Coal

Company ?—»I am. *;
1045. Have you had anything to dowith coal-mining practically ?—I have had some experience

at Home.
1046. Do you know Mr. Twining ?—Yes.
1047. He was employed by your company?—Yes.
1048. Is he nowin your employ ?—No.
1049. Will you tell the Committee generally what reliance you would place on his surveys, and

whether you have any groundsfor casting a doubt on them ?—Mr. Twining was what was termed
spec ting engineer of the mine, and w*as expected to visit the mine regularly once a fortnight, or
once a month at the least, and to report. We began to discover that he was careless in his reports
and in his examination of the mine, and weconsequently lost confidence in him, and about a year
ago we dispensedwith his services as consulting engineer, and appointed another man. When the
new engineer went to examine the mine he made some measurements and surveys, and corrected
some that had been made by Mr. Twining. This was Mr. Denniston, whom weemploy at present.

1050. Mr. Beid.] I understandthat you have had no practical experiencein surveying?—No.
1051. Your knowledge as to the incorrectness of the survey was arrived at from what you have

seen of theplans corrected, and from what you were informed by Mr. Denniston ?—Yes.
1052. Mr. Chapman.] Did Mr. Twining retain your confidence as a surveyor?—No.
1053. Mr. Beid.] You discovered that he was careless as consulting engineer. Have you any

reason to believe that, if Mr. Twining was sworn before the Committee to give evidence as to the
measurements on the plan, he would willingly make incorrect statements?—I do not think he
would.

1054. Has Mr. Denniston your confidence still ?—Yes ; he is still in our employment.
1055. The Chairman.] Of your own knowledge, did you find any of the surveys incorrect ?—

No; lam not an engineer.
1056. Have any been pointed out to you as incorrect ?—I have only seen them as corrected.
1057. Mr. Macandrew.] You have seen the discrepancies on theplan?—Yes.

Mr. Binns, recalled.
1058. Mr. Beid.] The small tracing marked A2 was made by you ?—lt was compared by me

with Mr. Taylor's plan.
1059. Where ?—At Shag Point.
1060. Are you prepared to swear that it is a correct copy of the section of the plan it purports

to be?—Yes; it was taken by me from a small section of a plan prepared by Mr. Taylor.
1061. Do you know the date?—December, 1882 ; it is aportion of the mine that subsequently.fell so largely.
1062. Mr. Chapman.] You say it was taken from a section of a plan?—lt was taken from a

plan of a section of the mine.
1063. Does it embrace all you saw ?—I am not certain.
1064. It was not taken from a plan of the mine, but from a small piece of it you saw in the

office?—Yes ; from a special survey.
1065. Was it taken from a piece of theplan that this tracing (Bishop and Taylor's) was taken

from, or from another?—No ; not from the same as that one.

Mr. Williams, examined.
1066. The Chairman.] Do you put in this letter (marked AB) as part of your statement?—Ido.
1067. Mr. Beid.] I understoodyou to say, in your examination in chief, that, when Mr. Binns

proposed to close the mine and allow it to fill with water,you made strong objections to that course ?
—Yes.

1068. Verbal objections ?—Yes.
1069. That was in March, 1883, was it not?—No; it was before the letter of the 14th Feb-

ruary.
1070. Then, it was subsequent to this date that you, on more than one occasion, spoke to Mr.

Binns about it being inadvisable to allow the water into the mine ?—lt was in March ; and the time
that I again objected was at the meeting with Mr. Eich. I objected all along to the follyof letting
in the water.

1071. Did you ever communicate in writing with him on the folly of allowing the water to
accumulate?—No.

1072. Did you ever forward any objection to Mr. Maitiand, the Commissioner of Crown Lands,
or the Government, against letting the water into the mine?—I wrote a letter to Mr. Maitiand ; the
letter has been put in.

1073. That was in June or July, was it not?—No ; it was written when thecommunication
came that Mr. Binns had been appointed to inspect the mine.

1074. But that letter makes no remarks on the danger of allowing the water to accumulate ?—
Mr. Binns had not then forced the water in, but was only talking about it.

1075. When did you first object to the course of letting the water in?—My letter to Mr.
Maitiand was on the appointment of Mr. Binns. Mr. Maitiand wrote to me about the reports of
the mine not being safe, and I wrote, in reply, complaining that the matter had not been com-
municated to me first.
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1076. When did you first write about the danger of letting the water in?—When I wrote to
Mr. Eich in June, 1883.

1077. What did you apprehend would be the immediate or ultimate danger of lettingthe water
in ?_Exactly what I pointed out to Mr. Binns : that, as soon as pumping stopped, and water
accumulated, the roofing would at once commence to fall in from the action of the water.

1078. What would follow from theroof breaking : would not the sea come in?—ln time ; the
roof would break up until it reached the last sandstone under the sea, and then it would allow the
sea to come in. ' ■ .

1079. Did you evermake any estimate as to the time it would take for the sea to come in ?—
Not exactly as to the time the sea would take to come in, but as to when we should have to stop
working. I put it down as about eighteen months; but the fresh water rose faster than I
calculated. ' a

1080. If you thought the sea-water was likely to come in, how was it that you pushed on the
works in the mine, making efforts to connect the level in the lower seam with the shaftin the
north ?—I was not going to stop the work in the mine because the sea was coming in in eighteen
months' time; I had to push the works on.

1081. You did not think the sea would come in until after eighteen months ?—No; 1 couldnot
of course speak with any positiveness that it would come in on a certain day; but I thought that,
in eighteen months, when the water rose to a certain height, and the dams did not answer (which
I did not expect them to do), it would stop me from work below.

1082. How long after was it that the sea came in?—l cannot say.
1083. When do you think it came in ?—I could not tell you; I could not say that it has come

in now. All the damage that has been done has been caused by the actual rising of the water,
that should have been pumped out. _

1084. Do you not believe, as a matter of fact, that the sea coming m on the root was the
cause of the flooding of the mine ; forcing the water into the dams and round them ?—No ;as the
sea-water had not come in before the waterwas up to the dams, the dams being 141ft. below the
sea-level. .

1085. When did the waterreach the dams?—On the 19th February, I'think.
1086. Then, when did the sea-water come in after that ?—I cannot say.
1087. Did you ever observe sea-water in the shaftsround thedams ?—No; I could not say that

it was sea-water.
1088. Did you ever taste it ?—Yes.
1089. Was it brackish?—lt was more brackish after the 11thFebruary.
1090. If the sea came in, it would force the fresh wkter up to the dams ?—No; the sea-water

would remain above the level of the dams.
1091. Have you ever told Mr. Binns that the tide was rising and falling round the claimsm

the mine?—No; I told him I believed that there was a rise and fall in the waterof about 4in.
1092. What would thatbe caused by ?—I told him that I believed itwas the action of the tide;

but I could not say positively. '1093. I suppose it is impossible to say positively, but you can form a good idea ot where a
large body of waterwould come from in workings of this sort?—l know that the large body was
fresh water that we were pumping out.

1094. Do you mean to tell the Committee that the flooding of the mine was entirely due to the
fresh water?—Yes ; entirely so. The damage done was entirely due to it; the sea has had nothing
to dowith it. The damagewas done where the sea-waterwas 140ft. above the level of the dam.

1095. Did you ever mentionto Mr. Binns, either verbally or by letter, that the sea was likely
to break in?—No; I never mentioned it as being likely to break in. I said that the sandstones and
shales would gradually wear away till the last sandstone was reached, which would then crack and
allow a small portion of water to come in. ~.,,. . .

1096 It would only come in, not break in ?—No ; what I call breaking in would be pouring in.

1097. You have seen this plan (Bishop and Taylor's) before ?—That is a tracing taken from the
plan.

1098. Where is the plan itself ?—At Shag Point.
1099. You have not produced that ?—No.
1100. Does thecompany's plan show more on it than this tracing?—Yes ; there are four cross-

cuts in the submarine portion of the mine, marked A in the tracing.
1101. Were they cross-cuts or bords?—Bords put through.
1102. Narrow or wide?—Some 14ft.
1103 Do you know any to be more than 14ft. ?—Only in one case.
1104. What is the width of that, and which is it?—lt is the second. On going through the

mine with Mr. Binns I found the men had cut it nearly 20ft. wide for about 3ft. m length.
1105. This tracing is taken from aplan made some time ago : How long ago?—lt wasmade at

1106. When was the portion marked A made?—ln 1880 or 1881. It was the first portion

1107. When was the portion to the north ofA made ?—Somewhere about the same time. Part
of it was added to as the works progressed. _

1108. What do you call this portion ?—I have no nameto identifyit; it is at the north side ot
the submarine works"; A is"about the centre.

1( .■..
1109. Was any alteration in this part of the works made on the plan subsequently to the date

of survey from which this tracing was taken ?—The only alteration I know of was the inaccuracy

of the topbord, next the water-lodge room. _ *1110. What was the inaccuracy there?—The bord should not exist at all; and with Mr.
Binns's consent I marked off a new bord in the centre of theblock of coal and worked it.
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1111. Then no fresh survey of the submarine works was made subsequently to the date of the
original plan, from which this tracing was taken ?—The surveys followed on from the time the
work started; and as the bords progressed wereplotted then on the plan.

1112. You knew when Mr. Twining visited the mine?—Yes.
1113. Do you remember the exact date?—I do not.
1114. He told us that he started on the Ist February and remained there ten days ; do you

remember his visit ?—Yes. .
1115. Were youpresent at the mine ?—Yes.
1116. Did they tell you what they had come for ?—Yes; Mr. Binns wrote to me and told me.
1117. Do you remember Mr. Taylor being present ?—I do.
1118. What was he ?—He was a mining surveyor.
1119. What was his duty there with reference to the survey?—He went through the mine to

take measurements and helpin the survey.
1120. He took notes, did he not ?—He did.
1121. Did you see those notes?—Not all of them.
1122. Did you at any time see them after they were finished?—No more than the note-book in

his hand ; except when he called my attention to the bord that I spoke of in my evidence.
1123. Did you evergive him instructions to prepare a plan from his notes ?—No ; Mr. Taylor

asked me if he should make one, and I said he might go on with one; but that I should not take
his plan until I had seen the Government one—that is, Twining's plan.

1124. Did he evermake a plan from his notes?—He started to make one directly afterwards.
1125. Who stopped him?—He left for England, and never finished it.
1126. When did you first see the Government plan ?—After Mr. Denniston put it on his map,

in August, 1883.
1127. Did you ever apply for it before ?—I applied for Mr. Denniston to get a copy of it. He

had applied to Mr. Binns and was unable to get it.
1128. Did you get a copy of it ?—Mr. Denniston got a copy, or the map to copy from.
1129. Mr. Taylor did not leave for England till four or five months after the survey was made ?

—No.
1130. You knew that Mr. Twining's object was to make a special survey of the mine ?—Yes.
1131. How was it you did not instruct Mr. Taylor to make a plan from his notes, seeing that

you had the material to hand?—l did not want him to make one.
1132. You had a nice plan already, with regular bords, &c, and did not want to spoil it with

irregular ones, I suppose?—I do notknow of any irregularities. I was waitingfor the Government
plan, and then I was going to takehis notes to see if there were any inaccuracies.

1133.. Did you get the Government plan before Mr. Taylor left?—I do notknow exactly when
he left.

1134. Did he not, before he left, tell you any particulars from the information he had got on
this survey, or did he give, you any idea of the results obtained from the measurements ?—Mr.
Taylor told me that when the Government plan was produced I should find that the measurements
were all much too wide, as against his notes ; that they had been taken in all the widest parts and
made the most of.

1135. Did you know that Mr. Taylor was going away ?—No ; not till the day before he left.
1136. Why did he leave ?—He had a letterfrom the captain of avessel in Lyttelton, who knew

his people, and who offered him a free passage.
1137. Did you evercommunicate with him with a view to get a copy of a plan from him ?—I

wrote to him to ask him to lend me the notes he took. I received no answer.
1138. When was that ?—Some few months ago. There has been time for an answer.
1139. Then, you got no plan from Mr. Taylor's notes, although you were informed that the

measurements takenby Mr. Twining were exaggerated?—I was not awarethat Mr. Taylor had taken
his field-book with him.

1140. What was the object of your having Mr. Taylor at the mine ?—lt was not for checking
the measurements; neither Mr. Binns nor Mr. Twining would have taken any oppositionfrom Mr.
Taylor.

1141. But, if he was there to make a check survey, would he not take measurements of his own
to point out any errors ?—He did take them, and took notes of where they were wrong.

1142. And, notwithstanding that, you got no plan made?—No; I was waiting for the Govern-
ment plan, and was quite satisfied with my own plan.

1143. Do you know the average size of the bords and pillars as shown on Bishop and Taylor's
plan?—The bords average about lift.; the pillars vary.

1144. Can you show me a 16ft. bord on that plan ?—No ; they are all about 14ft.; some 13ft.
1145. Mr. Denniston has told us that the pillars are from 25ft. to 35ft.: can you show us any

on this tracing of that width ?—Here is one that scales over 7 yards.. 1146. What is the width of the newest part?—At the cross-cut it is 5 yards ; another is 24ft.;
another is a little over 16ft. In the underground workings, in the 3ft. 6in. seam, there is a pillar
varying from 9ft. to 21ft. in width.

1147. It is a very difficult thing to take an average, I suppose, the measurements varying so
much ?—Yes.

1148. Will you compare this tracing (marked A 2), taken from the original plan, with the cor-
respondingpart of the tracing'(Bishop and Taylor's) before you, and say in what respects they
agree?—They do nes.agree at all. A bord which has been taken out is not shown in the larger
tracing.

1149. The small tracing (A 2) shows a later survey?—Yes.
1150. It shows, therefore, more coal and less support ?—Yes,
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1151. Will you measure this centre pillar (on A2j?—lt is about 7ft.; its length is about a
chain and a half.

1152. What is the width of the top bord ?—Seven yards. I should like to state to the Committee
that Mr. Taylor submitted this small plan to me, and I told him then that it was not right—
that he had madea mistake, and that there was some part of the mine, shown according to this one,
that showed 21ft. of coal taken out.

1153. Mr. Chapman.] Does it represent a survey, or only a sketch ?—Only a sketch; which I
would not have put on the plans.

1154. Mr. Beid.] In these matters, were you supreme in the matter of survey, or was your
surveyor : did you dictate to him what measurements to take?—Only if I found they were wrong.

1155. Why was this plan made ?—For the purpose of putting into position the bord that was. taken through the chain pillar.
1156. That is not shown on the trig, plan ?—No; it was taken out afterwards.
1157. There is a good deal more shown on the plan at the mine than on this tracing ?—No ;

only one bord.
1158. Why did you not bring with you the working plan of the mine, which shows the latest

working up to date?—I understood that it would not be wanted; that Mr. Binns's—or, rather, Mr.
Twining's—plan would be taken.

1159. What experience have you had besides at the Shag Point Mine ?—I have had none
besides at Kawakawa from 1869 to 1878.

1160. Mr. Chapman.] As to this tracing, A2: Mr. Taylor made a survey with the object of
putting in one bord to the rest of the plan ; it is only a sketch ?—Yes ; I told Mr. Taylor that he
had made a mistake in it.

1161. Did he go down to look at it afterwards ?—I went down with him and showed him the
place.

1162. Did you measure it ?—Yes ; the widest part was where the pillar was splitting, and we
took off some 6ft. or 7ft.; this would make it about 21ft., where the pillar split, of about half a
chain in length.

1163. The Chairman.] This cannotbe said to be a special survey ?—No.
1164. Mr. Chapman.] I understand that at the first, when Mr. Binns ordered you to take the

men from the seaward workings and let the water in, you refused to obey that portion of the order?
—I distinctly refused to stop pumping. I said, whatever the consequences might bo, Iwould not
stop the pumping.

1165. And he assented to thatuntil Mr. Eich's return ?—Yes.
1166. And you constantly protested against the idea of letting in the water?—Yes; each time

I saw him.
1167. Did you ever try pumping at a later date?—Yes.
1168. When ?—For some months before February, 1884.
1169. And what could you do with the pumping ?—I kept the waterback, and took it from the

upper seam by a syphon to the lower seam, and kept it back from rising against the dams. My
whole fear was that when once it got to the dams we should be stopped.

1170. And up to the time the water got to the dams you had no reason to suppose that the
sea-waterhad come in ?—No.

1171. With reference to Mr. Twining's survey, you calledattentionto an inaccuracy complained
of by Mr. Taylor ?—Yes.

1172. Did other complaints of inaccuracies reach your ears?—During the survey Mr. Taylor
told ine that they were making the places far too wide.

1173. Any notes that Mr. Taylor took were of the same measurements that Mr. Twining
entered in his book ?—Exactly.

1174. Mr. Taylor was not making measurements to check the others ?—No.
1175. When Mr. Denniston required the Governmentplan, doyou know if he got it at once?—

After a little difficulty; he had to telegraph to Wellington, and then to me to get an order to get it,
althoughMr. Binnsknew that he was acting for the company.

1176. When didyou come to know first that the plan had been made at all; for there is no
plan mentioned in his letter ordering the closing of the mine ?—When' it was required for Mr.
Denniston.

1177. Mr. Binns has said something about your agreeing with him in theconstruction of the
dams or flood-gates : will you tell the Committee what passed between you with reference to the
flood-gates?—When Mr. Binns wanted me to put in dams I told him that I did not see the use of
them, and said that we might put in some flood-gates ; so that, supposing the water to rise rapidly,
we might lower them in afew minutes and check the water ; not that I expected them to be of any
use.

1178. Something has been said about the weighting of the mine ; about a noise that was heard
in the mine : what importance do you attach to hearing noises in a mine ?—Very little ; there is no
mine in the worldthat noises arenot heard in. On the mensitting down to dinner—and especially
in coal the same as Shag Point—they would try to hole to a back, and the coal would split off from
theback and make such a noise that strangers at any rate would want to get out of the mine.

1179. Were there any symptoms of weighting in this mine ?—Never ; not of any consequence;
no more than a-bord breaking down. The' only weighting that took "place was as the water rose
up the incline.

1180. With regard to the safety of this mine generally : have you had a considerable number
of accidents ?—No; I have had very few.

1181. Mr. Beid.] Do you know the number of accidents in mines recorded for the year 1882 or
1883?—Not from memory.

41
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1182. Are you awarethat in one year half of the mining accidents in the colony took place in
the Shag Point Mine ?—Yes ;I am aware of that; and I know of a reason for it. A great many
more than half the accidents that happen in the mines in the colony are not reported. In many
instances I have reported things that weretrivial; I have been very particular. I have never had
a man hurt through carelessness in managing the mine ; all the accidents have been attributable to
the men'sown carelessness.

1183. Mr. Macandrew^ I understand that you are a partner in this mine, as well as manager?
"—I am.

1184. You have therefore a direct personal pecuniary interest in seeing that it was properly
worked, and so as not to prejudice its safety?—All I possess is in the mine.

1185. You would have sacrificed you own interest had you allowed any irregularity?—Cer-
tainly.

1186. How many men were employed in the mine ?—From eighty to one hundred and thirty7.
1187. Did they at any time expressa fear of danger?—Never. At the time they were thrown

out it was a matter of great discontent that they were obliged to come away from such good-paying
work.

1188. If the mine had not been stopped, you would have had no difficulty in getting any
number of men to work?—No ; I can get men as fast as any man in the colony.

1189. The Chairman.] Why were not the matters concerning Mr. Twining, which are referred
to in your letter of yesterday and now before the Committee, spoken of when Mr. Twining was here ?
—I was not here when he gave his evidence.

1190. Were you informed of what his evidence was?—l was.
1191. How was it that these matters concerning Mr. Twining and his surveys were brought up

by you now, after he has gone away: was it because you did not remember to speak of them before ?
—On thinking over the matter I thought about his report; but when giving evidence I did not
think of it.

1192. Do you not think it has a look of prejudicing Mr. Twining somewhat for new matter to
be brought in after he has left ?—lt does look like that; but there are many things besides that I
did not think of in giving my evidence.

1193. It did not occur to you to make this reference to theCommittee while he was here?—No.
Dr. Hector, examined on oath.

1194. Mr. Beid.] You have had considerable experience with reference to coal-mining
generally ?—Yes, I have, all my life, as a geologist.

1195. Have you examinedthe Shag Point Mine ?—Not for many years; I have no knowledge
of recent workings.

1196. You have reported on the action of Inspector Binns with reference to closing the mine ?
—I wrote some minutes on it; I have not made a formal report.

1197. Are you aware of the action taken with reference to closing the mine?—Yes; so far
as I remember, Mr. Binns closed the upper workings of the submarine portion on account of its
being unsafe.

1198. Please look at the sequence shown on this map (on the wall) to show the nature of the
cover of the submarine workings. Will you tell us whether,in your opinion, it would be a wise thing
to let water into this mine, with that coverof 118ft. to 200ft; or whether the water would give any
support to the-roof ?—As far as I remember, from the case as formerly explained to me, there is no
object in preventing theroof from collapsing, because there is no working below. My first idea was
that it was intended to work the coal from beneath, in which case it wouldbe wrongto allow water
to stand in the upper seam. I was formerly labouringunder a misapprehension when before the
Committee. Ido not know what object you could have in keeping up the roof. The best thing in
an old worked-outmine is to let the roof subside

1199. Would the water if allowed to accumulate in the mine give any support from its hydro-
static pressure ?—lt would support the roof generally. The support would be greatest at the
lowest part of where the water is standing, and would-^vanish in the upper part. The support
would increase about half a pound per square foot for every vertical foot you descend. The roof
could only subside as a whole by displacing the pressure of the water. But in the ordinary sense,
supporting a roof, in a mine means supporting bad portions of tho roof. Now, the waterwould
not do that, because the specific gravity of water is not increased by pressure upon it. A stone
becoming loose would fall with equal velocity through water whatever the pressure on that
water.

1200. Suppose the water werekept out of this working, would the air have a disintegrating
effect on theroof equal to that of water?—Damp air would disintegrate shales with ironpyrites in
them more rapidly than water. It would do this by the formation of alum salts, and the expansion
of the clays, by the crystalization of such salts in them, would cause disintegration.

1201. Mr. Chapman.] Does thisroof contain shales with iron pyrites in them?—As far as I
can remember, some of the shales have iron pyrites in them.

1202. Mr. Beid.] Do you think, from your knowledge, that the action of water standing in the
mine would have so disintegrated the roof as to bring the sea in ?—No; it would be only the
immediate roof that would disintegrate. Long before it would disintegrate all through, the
expansion of the hydrated strata would completely fill the underneath space.

1203. As a matter of science,-taking water out after it has been allowed to accumulate does
more damagethan anything else?—Yes ; it is in the drying of strata that have been saturated with
moisture that all the cracks and fisures occur.

1204. What would be more likely to bring the roof in than allowing water to accumulate in
underground workings ?—Anything that tended to dinsitegrate the strata.
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1205. Would not the weakness of the pillars have more to do with it ?—lf the pillars are not
sufficient the roof would fall in in any case. The reason of leavingpillars is to prolong the existence
of tho mine. Sooner or later all mines collapse, and the pillars are merely left to prolong their
existence, and theproportion that the pillars bear to the worked out coal is carefully considered
accordingto the circumstances of the case.

1206. With reference to themethod of working this mine ; with a seam of from 10ft. 6in. to
3ft., and into a dip of 1 in 4» what would be a safe thing to leave in pillars for submarine workings,
at the very least ?—About half and half. It would, depend again on the roof. Judicious manage-
ment in shaping them so as to take advantage of proper lines of support might enable more coal to
be taken out.

1207. Would the pillars require to be regular or irregular ?—They should be all on a regular
system.

1208-. Please look at this plan (Twining's) : is that a judicious system of working, with
reference to the width of the pillars ?—Some of these are very narrow. Perhaps the coal thins out.
Merely looking at the plan, I should fancy that in this case.there must have been a thinning out or
a fault, but there is nothing to show; otherwise, these supports would be very narrow.

1209. Is there any regularity in the method of working these ?—lf you have a seam that thins
out in places you must alter the mode of working very considerably. You could not expect to
work it with the same regularity as with a regular seam.

1210. Please look at this tracing (Bishop and Taylor's),and see if you see any difference in the
mode of working?—The latter must have been drawn at a different stage of the development of the
mine altogether. I think it has been commencedright enough.

1211. Would you think it advisable to take bords of this size (between the two main headings)
out ?—No; decidedly not. For instance, here is a space, 7 yards wide by 10yards, without any
support, and the thickness of the coal there is from Bft. to 10ft.: the space is too large.

1212. Mr. Chapman.] You assume now that there was no object in keeping up this roof?—I
assume that the object was not to protect workings beneath the seam.

1213. Do you now understand that theseworkings beyond the water-line are in the upper
seam; that the workings marked red (map on the wall) are in the lower seam; but that the water,
before it rose to the level in the upper workings, would flow into the lower seam through the shaft
which intersects the upper seam 140ft. below the sea-level?—The papers shown to me show a dam
to prevent the water getting into the shaft.

1214. Do you understand that it was put up with a view to keep the water out of the lower
workings ?—Of course that would be the object: to enable them to work the lower seam.

1215. Do you think it would be possible to fill the upper-seam workings and at the same time
keep the water out of the shaft ?—You could do so to acertain extent,and then begin pumping, and
not allow the water to rise above the dam.

1216. Would you allow it to rise to the level of the dam?—No; the success of the pumping
operation would depend on whether you could keep the water down to a certain level in the upper
workings.

1217. If the sea broke into the upper workings you would not expect to pumpagainst the
inroad of the sea?—It would depend on the size of the orifice. It would be a matter of whether
you could cope with the sea or not; but the sea would break in sooner or later.

1218. Do you think that the roof of the upper workings would be maintained longer by filling
with water?—I do not think it would make very much difference; but, if anything, it would
prolong the life of the mine. It would give a certain general resistance, but it would not give
resistance against special falls in theroof. The pressure of the water would not act like props
to the roof. The pressure would be greater in the deeper part of the workings.

1219. Then, the value of this hydrostatic pressure takes no account of any effect the water
might have in disintegrating the shales ?—That would dependon the character.of the water.

1220. But supposing them to be dissolved by a, so to speak, mechanical process ?—The space
would very soon fill up with sludge.

1221. The waterwould rapidly dissolve such shales as there are there?—No; I did not say
that. I said, if it did so, the space would fill up.

1222. If the person who examined the mine while the flooding was going on, and who was
intimately connected with the character of the mine, had said that the shale was dissolved by the
water, you would have nothing to contradict that statement?—lf he says that the water dissolved
the shales I should have nothing to say; but I have neverexperienced such a thing.

1223. You arenot intimately acquainted with the mine at present?—No.
1224. Your attention has been called to some ground on the plans said to represent falls :

would you attach much significance to them in the 3ft. seam?—The expansion of the strata would
give the roof support again.

1225. The injury falls do, in a very narrow seam like that, is less than half what it is in a seam
double the size?—l suppose the falls took place in consequence of the coal taken out. The injury
would be the removing the lateral support to the other masses of coal; but thatinjuiy would cease
when the packing relieved the weight.

1226. You have spoken of weighting mines, and the quality of coal that can be taken out.
There is a considerable difference in what is shown on the two plans. Taking the parts of this
(Bishop and Taylor's) plan unaltered, doesthis appear to you a safe and prudent mode of working a
mine ?—I think there is abundance-of support left in ordinary cases.

1227. Even for.submarine workings ?—I should think so. The supports to' the north of the
part marked A appear a little confused and narrow. Certain irregularities are permissible,
but they should be very carefully consideredbefore being permitted in submarine workings.

1228. With referenceto all coal-workings, I presume the method iu different mines is left much
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to the judgment of the mine manager?—Yes; to a certain extent; under the proper inspection of
the surveyor of the mine.

1229. In one of your reports you said that you thought letting water in should be undertaken
with great care, as it might be a standing danger to the mine ?—I was then under the impression
that it was proposed to work the lower seam.

1230. But would it notbe a standing dangerto the mine under thecircumstances ?—Not if the
mine was pumped whenever the water approached the shaft, unless a fracture took place. If a slip
or fault occurred from any cause it would be a question of how rapidly the sea was admitted.

1231. It would be a standing danger to the mine if the dams did not hold out ?—I do not
consider so. Being full of water and not working underneath, and if the water iskept from rising
and passing down the shaft, there would be no standing danger.

1232. That depends on whether you could keep the water under?—Yes ; so far as I can
remember, the rise was exceedingly gradual.

1233. I understand that you expressed no opinion as to the filling of the mine with water ?—
No ; because, as I have stated, I wished to consider the matter more carefully. The papers
submitted to me showed that the increase of water was very slight, and I thought that the question
of allowing the works to fill should be very carefully considered; always being under the impression
that the object was to prevent the tendency to collapse in the upper strata being transmitted, so as
to crush what was below. How I got that impression was that in Mr. Williams's letter he pointed
out that he desired to work the lower part of the mine.

1234. The waterrising would in time inevitably press on the lower workings ?—I do not think
it could ever press on them, for they were not allowed to extendunderneath.

1235. Would not the water, if allowedto accumulate in the upper workings, rise and lie above
the lower-seamworkings ?—Yes; to a certain extent.

1236. Would not this add to the burden that the cover of the lower seam had to bear ?—No;
I do not think the mere weight would materially do so, because the weight of a thin stratum of
water would be a very small fraction of the wholeweight of the superincumbent strata.

1237. Would it find its way through ?—No.
1238. Would it not be safer to keep the water off these workingsaltogether ?—I do not see any

object inkeeping the water out.
1239. Can you see any object in letting it in ?—lf my opinion were asked, I should keep the

waterpumped back to the vertical line over the lower workings; that would be 60ft. or 70ft.
below the level of the dam in the shaft; although I do not think it would make very much
difference.

1240. What objection would there be to keeping the upper workings dry altogether ?—One
objection would be the great expense of pumping; another that they would be deserted works, and
always undergoing deterioration; besides the enormous risk of life in sending men down to keep
the pumps free. There is no particular object in keeping the water out of these parts. The
question of whether it should be kept out of the part overlying the lower workings that arenot
submarine is a minor one.

1241. You say that allowing water to come into a mine is always a serious question?—Yes;
in any working it requires to be carefully studied, and precautionary measures are generally taken
when works are going to be carried on underneath the water:

1242. In this case you were not consulted as to the letting in of the water?—No ; I approved
generally of what Mr. Binns had done; that was, after the water came in.

1243. Did you express approval of that?—Yes; in one of my minutes. I do not think that
the accumulation of water has been the cause of the sea getting in.

1244. But you do not speak from examination?—No.
1245. At the time you reported in July, 1883, did you think it was a matter for inquiry ?—I do

not know.
1246. Did you think it desirable that the Inspector of Mines should have been relieved of the

responsibility of deciding such a matter?—I do not think it is ever a good thing for any one to
interfere with a statutory officer in the discharge of his duties. There is a certain course prescribed
by the Act, which is to be followed. Ido notknow whether he w7as an Inspector under the Act, or
whether he could enforce what he recommended.

1247. Did you express any opinion as to the inquiry that was to be held ?—I thought Mr.
Binns could take no exception to an inquiry. I stated as much to Mr. Eich, who came for the
purpose of asking if such an inquiry would be felt by Mr. Binns.

1248. Mr. Macandrcio.] Do you not think it would have been prudent on the part of the
department to have granted a Commission of inquiry into all the circumstancesof the case, seeing
the interests at stake and the consequences that have resulted from closing the mine ?—lnquiry was
made of me, and I answered it according to my ability. That turns upon whether the mine has
been shut up in consequence of anything that the inquiry could have disclosed.

1249. The inquiry was to prevent the threatened action ?—I am not sufficientlyfamiliar with
the working of the Act to know whether it would involve any complications; but I think all
possible information should be got in these cases.

1250. The hard-and-fast letter of an Act should not be allowed to be detrimental to thepublic
interests?—I quite agree with that.

1251. Mr. J. McKenzie] You are aware that Mr. Williams and Mr. Eich had strongly pro-
tested against the action of filling"the mine with water,- as what has happened would, in their
opinion, happen : were you asked to give advice ?—Not for the reason given : that, if the water was
kept out, it wouldpermit the seam to be worked underneath it

1252. In your opinion, you did not think that what was expected to occur would occur?—No;
it has not occurred. The coal has not been worked out from underneath the submarine workings.
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1253. But the mine has been closed ?—lf I had had at that time all the evidence I believe I
could have got, I would not have objected to fillingin the mine to cover that part of theseam which
was notbeing worked.

1254. You do not think the reasons given against it are not sufficient ?—I say that now, from
the light of what has taken place. Judging from what I see now, a Commission would not have
altered the circumstances; nothing else could have been done than what has been done.

1255. Mr. Bruce.] From the fact of your having said that it would have been attended with
enormous danger, keeping these workings dry, you entirely approve, with all the knowledge you
possess, of the action of the Government Inspector in allowing the water to accumulate?—I do.

1306. Then, I understand you to say that it was problematical that the sea has yet broken into
the mine?—No; I cannot say. It is a mere matter of evidence whether it is sea or fresh water in
the mine.

1257. You said, as I understand, that there was 136ft. of cover, and that as the falls come
down, the sea doesnot necessarily come in by the falling of the roof?—No ; it might come in by a
fracture of the superincumbent strata; but long before the roof would scale so as to admit the
water, the workings would be tightly packed.

1258. How can they not now keep it dry ?—I expect that there have been fractures ; but Ido
not think that the roof falling over the seam would be a cause of fracture of itself.

1259. Mr. Bolleston.] When you wrote this minute in July the minehad been closed for some
months?—Partly closed; they were still working in the other part of the mine.

1260. You were then asked your opinion: Had you not then in your office the advice of a
legally-qualifiedInspector of Mines, who had been in the mine?—Yes.

1261. You have read his memorandum?—Yes; I talked the matter over with him.
1262. Did you not understand, from this memorandum, that sooneror later the sea would break

in from thefalls in the roof?—Yes.
1263. And, further, that, if the sea did break in, nothing but the wedge-dams would savethe

other workings?—Yes; that was the chief object of them.
1264. And that nothing could then save the mine?—Yes; that is what was to be inferred from

thereport.
1265. That, unless the dams were efficient, it was evident, in Mr. Cox's opinion, that the water

would prevail ?—Yes.
1266. What were Mr. Cox's qualifications ?—He was a trained and qualified mining engineer.
1267. You have entireconfidence in his judgment?—I have.
1268. Could a better-qualified man have been applied to to give an opinion as to theproper

course to be taken?—No. -.
1269. If you had been asked to advise upon any one to act on a Commission, would you have

suggested Mr. Cox?—Certainly.
1270. Seeing, then, that your own judgment led you to the conclusion expressed in your

minute, and that Mr. Cox held a like opinion, are you now of opinion that any good purpose would
have been served by the Government appointing a Commission to inquire ?—No ; I do not think
any other conclusion could have been arrived at but to support the action of the Inspector.

1271. Would it not be a very serious responsibility for a departmentto throw doubt on the act
of an Inspector where life is involved?—Very serious; it is alwaysmost dangerousto interfere with
an officer like an. Inspector of Mines. Any interference would tend to relieve him from feeling the
weight of his responsibility, and prevent his taking that prompt action which is imperatively neces-
sary in order to save life.

1272. Are you awareof other instances in this colony where loss of life has been the conse-
quence of the Government not promptly insisting on the advice of their inspectors ?—Yes; the
Kaitangata explosion is a case in point. That was because the Act was not in force; but the
Government had been advised two months before that the explosion would takeplace; but the
advice was allowed to be neglected as the Inspector was not at that time a statutory officer, and the
machinery of the Act not in operation, and he had no meansof acting on his own responsibility.

1273. Who was the Inspector who gave that advice?—Mr. Binns.
1274. Mr. Chapman.] Under the Act there is something in the nature of appeal. If the Act

was not in operation with regard to this mine, and if there was no statutory mode of appeal, doyou
not think that some way of appeal should be afforded by the Government ?—lt should be brought
under the statute.

1275. But supposing it was not, should not some equivalent be given?—lt should depend on
what equivalent they might have got for being outside the statute. If any mine is not controlled
by the statute it must be in a peculiar position, and must enjoy some advantage which others do
not enjoy. It would depend on that whether it should receive consideration in another direction.

1276. Mr. Bolleston.] Are you not aware that, supposing it had been under the Act, the appli-
cation that was made by Mr. Eich was after a lapse of time that is not contemplated by the Act ?
I do not know enough about the Act.

Wednesday, Bth October, 1884.
Mr. A. B. Lindup, examined on oath.

1277. Mr. Beid.] What are you? lam a mining engineer.
1278. What experience -have you had ?—I gained my certificate in 1877; I have been con-

nected with mining ey<jr since I left school.
1279. In what places ?—Station Colliery, Eoughwood Colliery, Glebe Colliery, and collieries in

Staffordshire.
1280. How long have you been a certificated manager?—Since 1877.

7—L 4a,
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1281. Have you been practising since then?—Ever since.
1282. Do you produce your certificate?—I do.
1283. From what authority?—From the Secretary of State.
1284. Please look at the sequence shown on this plan (wall plan.) With this sequence and

this cover, if water were allowed to accumulate in the submarineworkings, would it have any effect
in sustaining the roof or otherwise ?—The water would have a tendencyto uphold the roof and sides
according to the vertical height of the water.

1285. Do you thinkthat the effect of the water, if allowed to accumulate, would be to raise

the fireclayfloor as much as 2ft. in seven days in places ?—No; Ido not think so ; but I have seen
fireclayraised more than that from the superincumbent weight of the strata above pressing on the
pillars. The smaller the pillars are the more would upheave.

1286. What would you think should be the average size of pillars and bords in this mine, with
a cover of from 118 to 120ft., at the least, consistent with safety?—Forty per cent, would be the
maximumamount of coal that should be taken out, consistently with the safety of the mine. The
bords should be 4 yards and thepillars 6 yards.

1287. In these submarine workings do you think that allowing water to accumulate in the
upper-seam workings would have theeffect of accelerating a splitting or cracking of the roof over-
head?—No; it would crack anyhow. The water would tend to stop it. But it would go on
cracking whether water was left in or not. The water, however, would have a tendency to keep
theroof up.

1288. Please look at this tracing (Bishop and Taylor's), what do you think of the workings as
shown there?—lt seems to be very irregular; in some places there are 4 yards, and in others
5 yards.

1289. What does this narrow bord scale?—About Bft.
1290. Please look at this plan (Twining's) : what do you think of that system of working ?—

More extensive working is shown on this plan. The narrow bord, according to this plan, scales
over 15ft. in thebroadest and 13ft. in the narrowest part.

1291. Are the workings as shown on this plan regular or irregular ?—They are very irregular
in some places; and, however well the rest of the system may be laid out, one weak spot would
damn the whole concern.

1292. Please scale the south side of the workings ?—lt measures 90 yards for ten bords and
ten pillars.

1293. Then, if there are ten bords at 14ft. each, what is left for the pillars ?—l3oft. for ten
pillars, which makes the average width of the pillars 13ft.

1294. Taking the bolt-holes out of this, would yo« consider that sufficient for safe working?—
No ; it would be dangerous,

1295. With this system of working, what width of pillars would you leave for support?—
I would leave 6-yard pillars, taking care to keep them regular and of a uniform width.

1296. Mr. Chapman.] You say you wouldkeep them regular ?—Yes.
1297. Can you alwayskeep them regular in brown coal?—I have had no experience in brown

coal; but I should think it would make no difference.
1298. Looking at this plan (Twining's), can you imagine that it shows the correct workings

under aprudent manager, who has his own capital in the mine?—No ; I should not think so.
1299. Can you imagine a man having his own capital in the mine working it so as to show

this state of things?—No ; Icannot: it shows a want of foresight.
1300. You see a great deal of difference between these plans apart from the little detail of the

particular bord which has been picked out for measurement: does this tracing (Bishop and
Taylor's) show generally a sufficient width of pillars?—Yes; in a good many cases; but thereare
irregularities.

1301. In the 3ft. seam you do notrequire so much support, I suppose, as in larger seams?—
Yes ; almost as much.

1302. But there is not so much to fear from letting down the roof in a seam of this size?—Not
so much as therewould be in a larger seam.

1303. You were asked what width of pillars you would leave : you do not agree with a person
who says it is necessary to leave 11-yardwidths ?—No; that would be excessive ; but I should not
have commenced working in the manner shown on this plan (Twining's).

1304. Hon. Mr. Stout.] You would have come back?—Yes.
1305. Mr. Chapman.] But it is safe to work the bords at an ordinary width in advancing?—

Yes ; but you had to fear losing the mine.
1306. But under prudent management, and leaving sufficientpillars, you might go on working

the mine at a profit and getting coal in the advance workings ?—Yes.
1307. You were asked with reference to the hydrostatic effect of water : that would be, if the

water were unconfined, equal to the vertical weight of the water ?—Yes.
1308. This would have no effect in keeping up the roof in detail?—Yes, it would; for it is a

fact wellknown in mining that the fall of the barometer conduces to afall of the roof.
1309. You have seen a floor, swelling and coming through in the drives. Supposing you

observed that, so long as the floor of the mine was kept dry, there was no swelling, but the moment
that water was let in the floor began swelling as the water rose, should you not then attribute the
swelling to the direct action of the water?—lf I saw it I should believe it to be the case; but J
should not think that it would have that effect. It would be a new experience to me.

1310. You do not know this particular mine ?—No.
1311. Have-you been mining in Otago?—No.
1312. You do not speak, then, with a local knowledge?—No.
1313. Hon. Mr. Stout.] What system of mining were you trained to?—Longwall, pillar, and

stall systems.
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1314. You had no brown coal ?—No.
1315. What were your roofs ?—All kinds; binds, shales, and different descriptions.
1316. Some of the mines in your district are very deep, are they not ?—Yes; the last one Iwas

in was 600 yards.
1317. Your pumping was done by steam?—We do not have much water, as a rule, in deep

mines. We tube it back at the earlierstages at about a depth of 150 yards.
1318. Mr. Bolleston.] From this plan (Twining's) you think the workings dangerous to human

life ?—Decidedly so.
Mr. Blackett, examined on oath.

1319. Mr. Beid.] What areyou ?—I am Engineer-in-Chief for the colony.
1320. Are you familiar with coal-workings ?—I have seen a good deal of them in different parts

of the world.
1321. Have you ever seen a drowned mine?—No.
1322. Are you aware of the effect of water confined in a pit, as to its pressure or otherwise?—

Yes ; I should know what the effect would be.
1323. Please look at thisplan (wall plan) and the sequence marked on it. With this sequence

and this cover, could you tell us whether water allowed to accumulate in the lower workings would
have a sustaining effect or otherwise ; whether it would have anyhydrostatic pressure in supporting
the cover?—lt would have a pressure equal to the head of water.

1324. Are you familiar with the methodof working coal mines?—I have studiedit a good deal,
but have had no practical connection with the working.

1325. Please look at this tracing (Bishop and Taylor's). One of the witnesses has sworn that
this narrow bord is 14ft: what do you make it?—Bft. 3in.

1326. Are you aware of any railways or superstructures built on land partly supported by
water?—No ; I could not quote an instance.

1327. Do you know the Chatmoss Eailway ?—I have been over it.
1328. Do you know if that is partly supportedby water?—lt is floating on abog.
1329. What supports the line ?—The embankment is supported by the mass or peat.
1330. Has the water nothing to do with it ?—Yes ; the water assists in the support.
1331. Mr. Chapman.] If the Chatmoss were drained it would shrink, I suppose?—Yes; the

railway would go down.
1332. Water, if absolutely confined, has a large supporting power, I suppose?—Yes.
1333. If it is not confined it has a supporting power equal to the vertical weight of the column

pressing?—lt exerts an upward pressure on the roof, and a downwardpressure on the floor.
1334. Mr. Macandrew.] Would it bo possible to pump a mine by machinery without risk or

danger to human life; and could not the whole operation be conducted from the surface ?—That
would depend on the depth of the mine.

1335. The connecting gear could go to any depth, could it not?—That would depend on what
facilitiesyou had for getting at the lower part of the mine.

1336. What I wish to know is, whether the mine could be kept pumped dry without a man or
men going underground ?—lt could only be so kept by perpendicular shafts, for there would be no
means of getting at the water except that which is directly under the shaft.

1337. Mr. Chapman.] But, if there was a lower level, could you not conduct the water into it
from the inaccessible parts, and so pump it up ?—Certainly; if the lower level was accessible.

Mr. H. A. Gordon, examined on oath.
1338. Mr. Beid.] What areyou ?—lnspecting Engineer to the Mines Department.
1339. Are you also a surveyor ?—I am an authorized surveyor.
1340. Do you know anything of the sustaining power of water ?—lt would be equal to about

2| tons per square yard for every 10ft. in depth.
1341. Have you had anything to do with underground workings where water has come in ?—

Yes; a good deal.
1342. Have you had any experience in coal?—Not a great deal.
1343. What was your experience?—ln alluvial and quartz mining; the former at Eoss.
1344. What was the nature of the ground?—Very heavy and wet.
1345. Many of the claims have been abandoned on account of the water, have they not ?—

They were not exactly abandoned, but flooded out time after time ; and finally they were left full
of water for over twelve months, while draining machinery was being procured.

1346. Had you occasion to examine any of the shafts in which the water had been allowed to
stand ?—Yes ; the ground was so heavy that it had to be closely timbered, and even built up with
stones, during the time we had been working ; but after it had been standing full of water for over
twelve months, as soon as it was pumped out theworkings were standing in the same state aswhen
we left it.

1347. What effect had the wateron it ?—lt had the effect of keeping up the roof while it was
in, but it had also the effect of bringing it down after it was pumped out.

1348. What was the nature of the ground overhead?—lt was gravel.
1349. Were you surprised or not to find that the waterhad sustainedit ?—No ; I should have

expected it to sustain the roof from the hydrostatic pressure and cohesion of the ground. That is,
the hydrostatic pressure of the water is a certain amount, and, although the material or ground to
be supported,if detached in blocks would weigh about two and a half times heavier than water, still
the amountof cohesive force and friction produced by separation of particles is such that the hydro-
static pressure in many instances nearly balanced.

1350. You arean authorized surveyor : have you had anything to do with colliery plans ?—
Yes; in New Zealand.
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1351. What kind of plans?—Working-plans of coal mines.
1352. What plans have you checked ?—The Brunner Coal Mine, Coal Pit Heath, andWestport.
1353. On what principal were these surveys made? Did you notice anything peculiar in the

surveys ?—Theprinciple roads or headings are laid down accurately in the plans; but thebords
from these headings arenot exactly a correct survey of the mine. They areprojected on paper and
afterwards taken as it may happen.

1354. Have you had anything to do with Mr. Bishop's surveys?—Yes ; in connection with the
Brunner Mine.

1355. What was your opinion of them ?—They were not accurate ; they were as I described.
The bords were taken out wider than as shown on the plan.

1356. Do you consider him an accurate surveyor?—No; Idonot considerhim a surveyor at all.
1357. Mr. Chapman.] Would you be surprised to hear that Mr. Bishop was recommended to

the Shag Point Company by Mr. Binns as a most competent man ?—No ; not at all. He may be
a good colliery manager, although not a surveyor.

1358. His surveys would not grossly distort the actual state of affairs, would they?—No, I
cannot sayyou would call it a misrepresentation; the angles were wrong, and, in place of being in
one direction, the plan showed the workings (I am speaking of the Brunner Mine) to be in another.

1359. If Mr. Bishop had made aplan from actual survey, and said that it was approximately
correct, would you expect to find it grossly misrepresenting the state of affairs ?—The plan was
shown to me as an actual survey; and,'when I went to make a check-survey, it was not correct
according to my survey. My survey corresponded with another one made by Mr. Young, of
Westport.

1360. Do you suppose that, when Mr. Bishop generally stated that he had made his plan from
actual survey, and that it approximately represented the state of affairs in the mine, you would find
a gross misrepresentation?—No ; because I think he believed he was doing it correctly.

1361. These mines that you speak of were through gravel, not through shale ?—Just so.
1362. And were they naturally wet ?—Yes.
1363. And when dried you found them apt to come to pieces?—After two or three days, or

perhaps a week.
1364. You have not had experiencein coal-mining?—No.
1365. Mr. Bolleston.] For purposes of safety, is there any great difference between coal- and

gold-mining underground ?—Not so far as safety is concerned.
1366. Please look at Mr. Twining's plan : does this represent a safe condition of a mine as to

therelation between the bords and pillars?—lt would depend on the nature of the strata and the
artificialpillars thatmight be built up.

1367. If therewere one or two unsafe places, would it not shake the whole workings ?—Yes ;
it would tend to bring down the roof and crush thepillars that are left.

Dr. Hector, cross-examined.
1368. Mr. Chapman.] You have said that you approved of Mr. Binns's action in putting in

dams ?—Yes.
1369. On what ground did you arrive at that conclusion ?—To secure the safety of the mine in

the event of waterpercolating from the upper seam through the shaft.
1370. Did you think these dams would guard the shaft against the percolation of water ?—

Yes : certainly, if properly constructed, and provided the ground w*as left untouchedround the shaft,
and precautions taken to preserve enoughround it to form shaft-pillars. I am not aware how far
such precautions were taken.

1371. Were you aware that the plan of the dams was submitted to Mr. Binns?—Yes ; and I
suppose he satisfied himself that they were effectual.

1372. If the Commission asked for had been granted, and you had been on it,and on inspection
of the workings you found ample pillars left for the support of tho roof and the safety of the
workings, would you have said that Mr. Binns was right in his action in closing the mine ?—I do
not think that any Commission could have relieved him of the responsibility of deciding.

1373. That is, assuming the Act to apply to the subject ?—I do not know under what power
Mr. Binns was acting.

1374. But in your answer you assume that he was acting under the Act ?—Yes.
1375. You said in your evidence that you considered, if half the coal were takenout, 15ft. bords

and pillars would be a safe method of working?—I think I did say so. It wasperhaps owing to the
way the question was put, for there is no hard-and-fastrule ; it must depend on the nature of the
floor and roof, and the varying thickness of the seams. In some cases much more or less could be
taken out than in others.

1376. The plan that has been exhibited by Bishop and Taylor shows a larger proportion of
pillars than that left; and the evidence given by Mr. Williams and Mr. Denniston confirmed the
plan :if that is correct, should you consider that a justificationfor closing the mine?—l think, from
acasual inspectionof the plan, that the mine was closed more on accountof the shape of the pillars.
I pointed out in my evidence that some of the excavations were too large, and I think I particu-
larized one.

1377. You speak of a casual inspection of a plan ; you refer to Twining's plan ?—Yes.
1378. In your former evidence I see that Mr. Macandrew asked you this.question : "Looking

at the large interests at stake, public as well as private, do you not consider it would have been wise
of Mr. Binns, before taking the action he did, to verifyhis own opinion by that of another man ? "
To this you replied, "In his place I should have endeavoured to do so." Are you still of that
opinion ?—Yes, if he had any doubt. As for closing the mine, he would have to do that on his own
responsibility. Whether he would privately talk the matter over with his colleagues or not is a
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matterfor himself to consider. If I had been in his place I should have done everything I could to
verifymy opinion.

1379. Mr. Macandrew also asked you : " Looking at the large interests involved, areyou of
opinion that the request to refer the matter to a Commissionwas a fair and reasonable one? "
Yourreply was, I think, " There should have been some way by which no single person should have
the power of affecting public interests; there should have been some loophole by which an appeal
should be given on either side." Do you still think that some such facility should be available?—
Yes; similar to that given by the Act.

1380. Mr. Eolleston asked you : " When you wrote that minute in reply to the manager
asking you whether this was a casefor inquiry, did you not consider that he conveyd the impression
that there was a primafacie for inquiry?" To that you replied: "The question should have had
consideration to it at once; I anticipated that the Inspector would have considered the question."
Are you still of opinion that the manager's letterdemanded immediate consideration?—Yes.

1381. Mr Eolleston further asked you: "Did not the closing of the mine allow the water to
accumulate?" Youreplied: "Certainly; there was no reason to suppose that the water would
have come in with such rapidity." Woaid an inquiry at that datehave dealt with the question?—
Yes.

1382. The Chairman asked you: " Could any possible harm have occurred to the mine from
taking the water out of the mine if the company had gone to the expense of pumping it? " You
replied : " No."—l do not think I merely gave that simple negative, because, as I understood the
question, it was in consequence of the water being kept out of it. Harm might happen from a
dozenother causes.

1383. You would anticipate no harm from keeping the water out?—l do not think that the
keeping-out of the water or letting it in is of much importance.

1384. Do you adhere to your former opinion ?—I do.
1385. Mr. Macandrew asked you: "Did you approve of allowing the water to accu-

mulate?" You replied: " No, I never approved of it."—l think my reply was, that I deferred
consideration of it; I neither expressed approval nor disapproval.

1386. You know Mr. Denniston?—Yes.
1387. Do you consider him a man of experience in these matters ?—He is an underground

manager.
1388. And an expert?—l have no means of judging. He is a very good coal-viewer; I

employed him for the Government to make plans during the surveys of the Greymouth and Oxford
coal fields; and he afterwards collected, for the Government, information concerning all the coal
mines in the colony.

1389. And he acted in the same capacity as Mr. Binns now does, as Inspector of Mines ?—■No ; not exactly : there was no Act in force at that date; he merely collected information about
the mines.

1390. Did he not inspect the workings for the Government ?—Ho merely inspected them to put
on record the condition of the mines.

1391. And he did put it on record?—Yes; as to the extent of the workings. He gave no
opinion as to whether they wereproperly conducted.

1392. Do you know if he has had large experience?—l do not know whether he has had a
great deal of experience in connectionwith working mines in thiscolony.

1393. With regard to Mr. Binns's experience, did you not express an opinion to Mr. Eich that
he had neither the age nor experience to justifyhis decision alone on matters involving such great
interests?—I said that at Home he would not be in a position of superior Inspector of Mines. I
thought that he was too young to occupy such aposition at Home.

1394. And that, in deciding such questions, reference should be made to older or higher
authorities ?—At Home, I think so. But my reason for stating that was to show Mr. Eich that
therewas no reason why Mr. Binns should object to any inquiry.

1395. In your second memorandum to the Minister of Mines, respecting Mr. Eich's letter, you
say you modified your views when you saw Mr. Twining's correct plan ?—Yes.

1396. How do you know it was a more correct plan than the one attached to the manager's
letter, which Mr. Eich handed to you ?—I assumed that it was more correct, as it gave much more
detail; showed that coal had been worked out to a greater extent, and showed more irregularities.

1397. The minute depends on the assumption that it is more correct?—Yes. I should have
stated that I was then only hearing one side of the case when I conversed with Mr. Eich on the
subject; but I told him thatit would be necessary to have the matter more fully explained.

1398. The value of the opinion you expressed then, and of the opinion you express now, as to
the safetyof the mine is based on the assumption of the correctness of Mr. Binns's opinion and Mr.
Twining's plan ?—Yes; I have never visited the ground myself.

1399. With regard to the shales : Mr. Loudon, Mr. Denniston, and Mr. Williams, all practical
men, of from fifteen to twenty years' experience, have given a most emphatic opinion, based, in at
least two instances, on personal observation, that the effect of wateron the shales or sandstone is
ruinous to the stability of the roof: do you contradict this ?—A roof will deteriorate either when
there is standing wateror when there is no water : it will deteriorate most rapidly when it is soaked
and dried again.

1400. If they say that standing waterwill affect the roof more than in any other case, you
dispute it, although they speak as having had thepractical managementof mines ?—lf they saythat
standing water, as a rule, is more injurious to the roof than alternate wetting and drying, I most
certainly contradict them.

1401. You have not had the actual managementof mines ?—No.
1402. With reference to the Commission, in the answers you gave, you assumed that Mr

Binns was acting in his capacity as Inspector under the Act ?—Yes.
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1403. Mr. Bolleston.] Under the Eegulation of Mines Act, if any owner of a mine objects to an

order, a notice has to be given within fourteen days. Would the same purpose be answered by
giving an inquiry three months afterwards, when the water had accumulated in the mine : would
there be the same possibility of inquiring ?—No; the differencebetween three months and fourteen
days would produce a material difference and prevent a satisfactoryinquiry.

1404. Then, the course taken by the owners of the mine was not parallel to the course that
would have been adopted had the minebeen under the regulation of Mines Act ?—I should say not.

1405. Mr. Smith.] Has Mr. Binns ever been employed in your department?—Yes.
1406. In what capacity ?—As an irregularly appointed Inspector of Mines, prior to the

formation of the Mines Department. After the formation of the department the Act was brought
into force.

1407. Was he appointed to his present position on your recommendation?—l do not remember
whether I was consultedas to his being transferred to the Mines Department.

1408. Mr. Macandrew.] He was transferred as a matter of course ?—Yes.
1409. Mr. Beid.] With such a cover as has been described, do you think, as an expert, that

the fact of allowing water to accumulate gradually in the mine would induce a fracture of the roof ?
—No ;it would not have any effect in producing it.

1410. What would be more likely to do so in this mine ?—Excavation of coal and consequent
weakening of the support along lines that in themselves are naturally weak, and especially the
removal of coal in excess in the neighbourhood of the shaft.

Letter from Mr. W. H. Williams to Committee.
Sir,— Wellington, 6th October, 1884.

As I do not feel myself able to stand much questioning before your Committee, I would
respectfully ask that the following letter and report attached should be received as evidence and
printed. lam willing to be cross-examined by Mr. Binns, if necessary.

In the latter part of 1881 Mr. Twining made a very careful inspection of the Shag Point
submarine workings, in the interests of the Kaitangata Company, between which company and ours
negotiations were being made either for amalgamation or to buy from us, our mine being valued at
£30,000. Mr. Allan Holmes, a Kaitangata director, had visited and reported very favourably on
our mine, and Mr. Twining's report was to conclude the matter as far as inspection went.

He went through the whole of the mine with me, and the submarine workings. Made
measurements in my presence of various headings—width of bords, pillars, &c, and, after looking
at our working plans, went again into the submarine area to make a perfectly independent
inspection.

He made a very favourable report on the works, and his estimate as to the quantity of coal to
be opened considerably exceededmine, his inspection lasting over some three days.

Nearly the whole of the south side which he then inspected was surveyedby Mr. Bishop, and
has stood as he then saw it, and nothing has been altered by taking out coal until he came again
some fifteen months later, when he made the survey for Mr. Binns. The same applies to Mr.
Bishop's survey on the north side.

During Twining's survey, Mr. Taylor, our surveyor, who was with him, warned me as to the
incorrectness of the measurementshe was making.

Imay now state positively that during the whole of the time from his first report up to his
survey for the Government no change in the plan of the workings had been made ; but that all my
anticipations were in opening up such a field of coal to the seaward thatwould last us for ten to
fifteen years, without any more expense than actually opening out the working-places, as all my
necessary and expensive plant was in course of erection, and would have enabled me to produce
500 tons per day, if required It is, therefore, manifestly absurd to suppose that I should have
had my submarine workings in such a condition as represented by Twining's survey.

I have, &c,
The Chairman of the Waste Lands Committee, W. H. Williams,

House of Bepresentatives, Wellington. Manager.
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APPENDIX.

A.—Mr. J. P. Maitland to the General Manager, Shag Point Coal Company.
Sir,— Crown Lands Office, Dunedin, 27th January, 1883.

It has been represented to Government that the submarine workings of your colliery are
in an unsatisfactory condition.

I have to call your attention to the fact that the license under which you are authorized to
mine under the sea is revocable at the will of the Government.

In the event of the mine not being worked in a satisfactory manner, I should consider it my
duty to recommend the revocation of the license. I have now to inform you that it will be neces-
sary that all the workings under the license should be carried on to the satisfaction of Mr. Binns,
the Inspectorof Mines, who will report from time to time on the state of the mine.

I trust that, by this arrangement,a result satisfactory to both parties may be arrived at.
I have,&c,

W. H. Williams, Esq., J. P. Maitland,
General Manager, Shag Point Coal Company. Commissioner of Crown Lands.

B.—Mr. W. H. Williams to the Commissioner of Crown Lands.
Sir,— Ist February, 1883.

I beg to acknowledge receipt of yours of the 27th January, relative to our submarine
workings. lammuch surprised at it, as I think if Mr. Binns had any fault to find he should have
given me some notice in writing about it, and I must protest against such unfair treatment.

The workings have been going on for some time, and in my opinion (which I think should be
of some weight, as I hope to carry on these workings fpr many years, and if not safe the onus
will fall on my reputation) are perfectly safe; but I say it advisedly that Mr. Binns hears reports
from men who leave the mine, and, to get away without giving a proper notice, make the excuse
that it is not safe. Some nine or ten months back many of the men left on the same excuse, and
almost all of them have since come back and worked in the same district; and I must ask you in
fairness to me to give the authors of the report that our workings are unsafe, as we cannot let the
matter rest, as such damaging reports get about that miners strange to the mine do not care to
come, although I am short-handed, and which means a serious loss to the company.

I take it that it is the duty of the Government to afford all parties in the position of our com-
pany all the support possible, and I say that Mr. Binns does not consider sufficientlythe difficulties
under which we are labouring in having to work a very thin seam of coal, with a soft roof immedi-
ately over the coal but hard some six feet above, and wall want me to work under such conditions
that I shall have to stop the working in thatdistrict.

In the meantimeMr. Binns is now making a survey of the workings for the Government, and
I will wait his instructions and will then advise you further.

I have, &c,
J. P. Maitiand, Esq., W. H. Williams,

Commissioner of Crown Lands, Dunedin. Manager.

C.—Mr. Binns's Eeport.

1. Description of Lease, &c.—The lease under which this company is working is for a term of
twenty-oneyears from the 25th May, 1878, from the Queen to David Hutcheson ; the rent is £20 per
annum, and the area 163 acres. The submarine area, which is 190 acres, is granted by licensefrom
the Commissioner of Crown Lands for Otago, at a yearly rent of £10. This license is datedthe 19th
September, 1881, and is liable to be revoked at will by the Government. The whole rent is thus
£30 per annumfor 353 acres, or a little under Is. Bfd. per acreper annum. Calculating the royalty
at per ton, we have last year a little over one-third of apenny (0*36d.) per ton; in 1880 the output
was 36,066 tons, and the royalty £23 13s. 4d. (£2O lease, and four months' license-fee at £11,
£3 13s. 4d.), or under one-sixth of a penny per ton. It is thus evident that, as a royalty-paying

-affair, or ar, a direct source of revenue, the mine is practically valueless ; and, therefore, the only
commercial aspects to be considered are—(1) The value of the property for releasing at the end of
the present term; and (2) the railway freight on the coal. But apartfrom, and far above, commercial
considerations, we have the safety of the miners to take into consideration, and this it was that
prompted my letter of the 25th January. I may here, perhaps, be allowed to devote a few lines to
the terms of the leaseesregards royalty, which is a constant figure Tiot varying with the output,
and taking no note of coal spoiled.. With due deference I may suggest that a lease in which the
coal worked, or so left that it cannot be worked, is paid for by the ton or foot thick per acre, would
be more likely to insure care in working, whereby as much coal aspossible wouldbe raised; whereas
by the present system the lessees are naturally disposed to pick the eyes out of the field, and
leave a large area of coal of value neither to themselves nor then successors. A clause certainly
does exist in the present lease, and probably existed in the earlier ones, for working to the satisfac-
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tion of an official appointed by the lessors; but this course is cumbersome, requires constant
attention,and is very likely to give rise to disputes. As, however, the mine has been worked for
twenty years without any such appointment having been made, the clause cannot so far be said to
have resulted in much good or harm. As will be seenby theplan, the workings in the main seam
have been carried on over an area of about 21 acres on the west side of high-water mark, and over
about 10 acres to the east. In addition to these there exists, at a depth of 217 feet in the shaft (see
section on line QE plan), about 1|-acres of working, mostly to therise.

2. Details of Bords and Pillars in Ordinary Working.—Andre, on coal-mining, says (p. 309),
"Experience gained under similar conditions is alone worthy of confidence, and,-following this
experience, will lead for the sake of safety, to excessive dimensions. Hence it has come to pass that
minimum dimensions have been left altogether out of consideration, and another principle of work-
ing adopted. Whenever it is important that no surface disturbances should take place, the size of
the pillars is calculated in the same way as that of the shaft pillars, the base of the calculation in
this case being designed to give security by means of great surplus of strength." Again (p. 278),
he says, "The dimensions of the shaft pillars are determined by four conditions, namely, the
depth of the seam from surface; the angle of inclination of the beds ; the strength of the coal; and
the nature of the thill or floor. In no case can safety be obtained with pillars less than 35 yards
square. These may, therefore, be considered to be minimum dimensions in the shallowest mines,
when the other conditions are favourable, say, up to the depth of 150 yards. . . . These
dimensions are given as sufficient on the assumption that the other conditions are favourable. But
it is evident that those conditions may be such as to require an augmentation of the dimensions
determined according to tho depth alone. Thus, if the strata are highly inclined, the tendency of
the pillars to yield is greater than when the strata areflat." From the Transactions of the North
of England Institute of Engineers, Vol.vim, p. 87 : The Brockwell seam at Woodifield was 7 feet
thick, " the roof falling freely." Only 4 feet was worked first, leaving a band and the top coal.
The depth from the surface was about 120 feet, and the chiefpeculiarity a soft bad roof. Originally
the pillars were left 90 feet long and 22J feet at the headways; the bords were turned away 13-J-
--feet, and increasing to 18 feet or 21 feet at the centre, and diminishing again ; that is, the pillars
were 22Jfeet at the headings, and diminished to 14feet or 17J feet. "In the foregoing plan the
chief difficulty arose from the great width of the bords near the middle and consequent thickness
of the pillars. In the present case, therefore, the bords are turned away 12 feet wide, and con-
tinued the same width throughout, the pillars being left 24 feet thick by 90 feet long."

From the same, Vol. ix., p. 18 in same, Notes on Old Workings at Dipton Colliery: Pillars
24 yards long by 2 yards to 3 yards wide; bords 4 yards, and walls 2 yards; that is, the pillars
were 6 feet to 9 feet thick, and the bords 13 feet, "these being the only effective excavations, the
pillars being abandoned, causing a loss of 33 per cent, of the coal, as well as endangering the
entrance of the mine. Unless the seams of coal, the stratum above and below it,are of a very hard
nature, and sufficiently thick to resist the pressure of the incumbent strata,no great extent of
workings could be excavated on such a system."

Mr. George Fowder says, in South Wales, " the stalls aro set sufficientlyfar apart to leave a
pillar equal to twice their width between them. It is, however, very commonly the practice to
leave much thinnerpillar, and heaving and pucking bottoms are the consequence."

In Leicestershire, where the new red sandstone rested unconformably on the coal measures,
we worked 18 feet, leaving 48 feet, in order to prevent the possibility of an influx of water from
the red measures, which w*ere a considerable distance above. Though there was no danger to life,
the miners were fined if theyexceeded the proper width.

Of course it would be easy to indefinitely multiply examples of this sort, but I merely wish to
show that the Shag Point pillars are smaller than those ordinarily left, where the attendantcircum-
stances do not threaten loss of life. In order to take the average of the Shag Point bords and
pillars, as shown in plan, I drew a number of lines at chance, and took the average at the points
where these ran, with the following results, viz., the average of 30 pillars (not counting main-
road pillars) was 10*296 feet, or a little under 3J yards, and the average of 35 bords taken in the
same way was 13*97 feet.

Tabulated as follows :—
Names of Colliery, &c. Bp"^' Proportion. Remarks.

Woodifield ...16*' 19*125 1,000 to 1,600 Unsatisfactory, pillars too small.
(new system) ... 12" 24 1,000 to 2,000

Dipton ... ... 12 7-J 1,000 to 625 Endangering the entrance.
South Wales ... 1,000 to 3,000 Less proportion causes floor to swell, &c.
Leicestershire ... ...18 48 1,000 to 2,666
Shag Point ... ... 13-97 10-296 1,000 to 729

The proportion is shown much more clearly, but the method of averaging does not show the
true aspect of the case. For instance, though several small pillars followed by a large one may
bring up the average, yet it does not offer the requisite uniform support to theroof.

3. Notes on Accidents by Irruption of Water.—Although there are, unfortunately, many
accounts of accidents from this cause, yet they are nearly all caused by too close proximity to old
workings, iu which water has accumulated, and few of them offer any analogy to the circumstances
under consideration. __,_;

In the year 1827 the sea broke into a colliery off tho coast of Cumberland, causing great loss of
life.

On the 6th July, 1878, at the Kilkeevan Colliery, in Scotland, an irruption of water took place.
This was from an old working, but as there was 25 or 30 feet of measures intervening the case is
somewhat apposite,
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Two seams were worked, one 6 feet thick at 108 feet from the surface, and the other 9 feet

thick at 162 feet. At the time of the accident the workings were confined to the lower seam.
Overlying the stratified rocks areabout 54 feet of measures, principally composed, for 40 feet, of sand.
Several dislocations exist, and the fracture is usually found filled with sand, so that in mining up to
these fractures it is customary to meet with a partial discharge of water. In May, 1878, such a
discharge took place, and a rough damwas put up, which shut offall thewater. On the sth July sand
and water werepassing ; this was stopped, but on the 6th it burst in, making an opening down the
fracture of 25 feet x 4 feet xlO feet.' Three men werekilled.

On the 23rd January, 1877, an accident occurred at the Home Farm Colliery, in Lanarkshire.
Three seams of coal were worked: the ell coal, at 282 feet; the main coal, at 357 feet; and the
splint coal, at 432 feet. On the 15th January a heavy fall had taken place in the extreme rise
workings of the ell coal, where it was known to be within 108 feet of the surface, near the Eiver
Clyde. This allowed the water from the overlying sand and gravel to run down into the ell coal,
and by the shaft to the splint. Four men were killed, and about sixty escaped. On the plan
accompanying the report from which the above particulars are taken, the Clyde is shown to be
about 11feet deep, anddistant horizontally about 370 feet.

Though not an accident, the following case may be included in the list:—
In the Chancery Division of the High Court of Justice, before Mr. Justice Kay, on the 24th

March, 1882, Mr. Mundy sought to restrain the Duke of Eutland from leasing certain seams of coal
of the ShipleyEstate, in Derbyshire, to the Manners Colliery Company. The section of the coal
field is as follows :—

Deep soft coal ... ... 4ft. 3in., at 350 yards.
Deep hard coal ... ... 4ft. 6in., at 366 „ lr)*ffprprlt>p Q7OvardsKilburncoal 4ft. lin., at 636 „ } Ultterence, <S/U yarda.

The two upper seams were leased to Mundy, and the lease provided that a barrier 66 yards
wide on the south and 50 yards on the north should be left as a protection against a body of water
in some old workings. Subsequently the Duke leased the lower seams to the Manners Colliery
Company, and the plaintiffs endeavoured to prove that the working of this seam, at a depth of 804
feet below the deep hard, woulddamageabarrier measuring 66 yards by 1,450 yards, so as to let the
water through. The working would be conducted on the long-wall system. An enormous amount
of evidence was taken and the injunction granted, but the case is not yet concluded.

4. General Bemarhs.—ln a matter of this sort it is not desirable to approach within a
"measurable distance" of the limit of safety. Where the circumstances of the mine are such
as to require immunity from the chance of accident it would be folly to attempt to leave pillars of
an ordinary size. Besides the pressure due to gravity, we must consider the effect of storms. The
force of wavesis well known, but the circumstances here are so different that Iwill not compare
them.

On inspection of the plan it will be seen that the dangers to be provided against are—(l.)
Irruption of water into the subaqueous area, whereby the twenty men thereby employed would
probably have lost their lives. (2.) Overflow down the shaft into the pit-workings, where there
were twenty-four men working mostly above the level of the shaft-bottom, and therefore possessing
very small chance of escape. I have thought over the matter for some weeks, and can come to no
other conclusion than that theexistence of these workings is a constant danger. That they may
stand for some time without coming in is possible; that, as Mr. Williams thinks, the sea would
come in gradually if at all, may be true: but I cannot take the responsibility of allowing them to
remain open.

5. Suggestions for future working :—
It must not be imagined that the abandonment of this district would have the result of closing

the Shag Point Mine. The main seam no doubt exists under a very large area of the 190 acres
secured by license. The seam at 247 feet in the shaft is practically untouched, besides which there
may be, and probably are, other seams yet improved, which alone would make the mine a valuable
property. The regulations under which I can sanction submarine working are as follow:—

(1.) No coal to be wrought under less than 180 feet of solid measures, provided that the owner
or lessee of such area may drive passage-ways to win the coal under less cover than 180 feet, but
not under less than 100 feet of solid measures.

(2.) A boundary of 66 yards shall be left between the present submarine workings and any
future workings.

(3.) A proposed system of working shall, before work is commenced, be submitted to and
approved of by the Inspector or Viewer appointed by the Commissioner of Crown Lands or the
Minister of Mines, and no change shall be made in the approved system without the written
sanction of the Inspector.

(4.) A report shall, once in each month, be sent to the Inspector, stating fully the condition of
the works and any other particulars which may berequired.

On the 24th FebruaryI wrote to Mr. Williams requiring him to discontinue working in the sub-
marine area,and to put dams in. On the 28th February he called at my office, andrepresented that,
if these workings were suddenly stopped, he would be (in the absence of Mr. Eich, the principal
proprietor) financially unable to carry on. I was naturally unwilling to close the mine altogether,
and therefore, with great reluctance, after an inspection on the 25*h, gave my consent to work
being carried on in one districtwhei*j3 a good cover rendered the operation lessrisky, but entirely
without prejudice to its being closed at any time, and on the express understanding that the con-
cession was by no means to be taken as aprecedent or justificationfor keeping the dip open. On
the 19th instant I revisited the mine, and met Mr. Bich, of whose readiness to fall in with my
views I cannot speak too highly. We agreed to close the submarine area, and let it fill with water.
This will, of course, be a great support to the roof in the worst place, as there will be a sustaining

B—l. 4a,
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pressure of about 301b. per square inch. But Mr. Williams was very anxious to keep a few men
in an old portion of the mine marked ST on plan,, and I consented to this on condition that proper
meansof escape were provided.

This so far concludes the subject. It will naturally be a somewhat costly chapter in the
history of the colliery, but will also, I hope, be the means of avoiding what might have been an
aw'ful calamity.

I desire to add that Mr. Williams afforded me every facility in making the survey aud inquiry,
and that he expressed his willingness to do anything requisite.

The Public Works Department have been good enough to undertake a marine survey, which
willbe of great service. It is, however, not yet commenced.

I have, (fee,
George J. Binns,

20th March, 1883. Inspector of Mines.

D.—Extract from Mr. Binns's Annual Eeport of 26th May, 1883.
37. Shag Point Colliery, Palmerston.—In the first place, I shall, describe the condition of the

mine during 1882, and will then deal with a question that has occupied a great deal of attention
during the present year. The openings have been opened outpartly below high-water mark in the
dip-drive, and partly in a lower seam at the shaft. In the former work no bore-holes were taken in
advance, and as the rock might contain fissures it seemed advisable. I spoke to Mr. Williams about
this on the 25th April. On the sth September the air in the dip wouldhave been good had it not
been too much scattered. An apprehension had arisen amongthemen that the sea might break in,
and in consequence the south end was very heavily timbered. At the shaft there was no fence.
The staging also requires a handrail. The air was bad in some places. On the 30th September the
anemometerwould not turn in the north intake to the pit-workings, though the place was only 29£
feet area. Eight men were on this side. The return also failed to give anyrevolutions, though only
21J feet in area. In fact, the air generally was very bad; subsequently this was explained by the
fact that the engineer had one of the up-cast doors off, and had not reported it.

During 1883 I have spent a great deal of time at this mine. On the 24th January the air was
badly guided in the dip, the bottom bord on the south side having an intake of 1,500 cubic feet per
minute by the proper air-way. Mr. Williams had in September pointed out that the plan was in-
accurate, but at this visit I was astonished to find- that the pillars were in many cases utterly in-
adequate, one (shown on plan 20 feet) being only 6 feet, while thebords were immensely wider than
the plan would indicate. On the other hand, some of the places marked were non-existent. One
pillar on the north side was 1 foot 6 inches in thickness. The power under which this part of the
field is worked is a license from the Government. This license isrevocable at will, and I suggested
that the licensees should be informed that the mine was to be worked to the satisfaction of a
Government official. Having this duty placed in my hands, the first step was to have an accurate
plan made, and Mr. Twining made a very accurate survey and plan for the department. The result
was to convince me that, unless grave risk was to be run, it would be absolutely necessary to close
the whole of these workings. The danger was not only to the twenty menworking in the dip, but
to twenty-four more in the rise workings of the shaft, into which there was communication by a
drive in the upper seam. The cover of the submarine area was 99 to 160 feet, the average thickness
of thirty pillars, not counting those contiguous to the main roads, was 10-296 feet, and the average
of thirty-five bords was 13-79 feet. Thus, nearly 57 per cent, of the coal was got withoutreckoning
bolt holes. The roof is bad, and I did not consider it safe, so was obliged to take steps which, and
the reason for which, were detailed in my report dated the 20th March, 1883, to the Commissioner
of Crown Lands, Otago. The future operations of this company,if below the sea, will be carriedon
under not less than 180 feet of cover (excepting road-ways), which may be driven under not less
than 100 feet, and on an approved system. Dams are to be put in between the subaqueous area
and the shaft workings. These are now being constructed, and the submarine work is stopped.
These operations of the department have been carried on independently of the Act, in compliance
with which thisreport is written, but they have the same object, and therefore, although a some-
what detailed report on this subject'has been already sent in, I have recurred to the subject.

One fatal accident has occurred this year at Shag Point, and has been investigated by Mr.
Cox. Through delay in delivering the lettersI did not hear of the man's death until the day after
he was buried, and, as Mr. Cox was to be at Shag Point on the day following, I left the inquiry in
his able hands. Mr. A. W. D. Bell, of the Public Works Department, has just finished a very
complete marine survey of Shag Point. This plan, which is very detailed, shows that the sea-
bottom has a gradual slope, and is free from holes. My thanks are due to the Public Works
Department and to Mr. Bell.

E.—Mr. G. J. Binns to the Manager, Shag Point Coal Company.
Sir,— Office of Inspector of Mines, Octagon, Dunedin, 20th March, 1883.

' I have the honour, referring to our conversation of yesterday, to request that you will at
once proceed to put substantial dams between the old dip-workings and the shaft. The dams to
be 10 feet long, built of kauri logs and tightly wedged ; the whole to be securely bedded in
concrete, which must be let into the solid measures. "You have already, I presume; stopped all work (except that necessary for getting out material),
as arranged, in the. dip subaqueous area. The old bords on' the west side of the E.P. will be
continued as agreed, provided thatan outlet is made 2-J- chains at least above the present one, and
fitted with ladders. The bolt-holes will in no casebe more than 33 yards apart.
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With reference to the dip-workings under the sea the following are the regulations to be
adopted:—

1. No coal to be wrought under less than 180 feet of solid measures, provided that the owner
or lessee may drive passage-ways to win the coal, under less cover than 180 feet, but not under less
than 100 feet of solid measures.

2. A boundary of 66 yards shall be left between the present submarine workings and any
future workings.

3. A proposed system of working shall, before work is commenced, be submitted to, and
approved of by, the Inspector or Viewer appointed by the Commissioner of Crown Lands, or by
the Minister of Mines, and no change shall be made in the approved system without the written
saiiction of the Inspector.

4. A report shall, once in each-month, be sent to the Inspector, stating fully the condition of
the works, and any other particulars which may be required.

How do you propose to ventilate the district to the west of the plane when'the shaft is
stopped ? By the old furnace shaft ? I have, &c,

W. H. Williams, Esq., George J. Binns,
Manager, Shag Point Coal Mine, Shag Point. Inspector of Mines.

F.—Mr. G. J. Binns to the Managing Partner, Shag Point Coal Company.
Sir,— Dunedin, 24th February, 1883.

I have the honour to call your attention to my letter dated the 14th instant, re submarine
workings, and to inform you that I am unable to recommend that men should any longer be
employed in this district.

Will you thereforebe good enough to withdrawthe miners and other workmen from this part
of the mine, and prepare—if you have not already done so—to place double dams in all roads
connecting with the shaft.

If the existing plan does not show all the workings in the main seam in the neighbourhood of
the shaft, will you have them, so far as is possible, put on before closing.

It is with much regret that I find myself obliged to take this step.
I have, &c,

W. H. Williams, Esq., George J. Binns,
Managing Partner, Shag Point Coal Company. Inspector of Mines.

G.—Mr. W. H. Williams to Mr. F. D. Eich.
Sir,— ' Shag Point Colliery, 30th June, 1883.

I have to bring before your notice a very serious matter in connection with our submarine
workings.

You are already conversant with the correspondence, as well as what transpired at the inter-
views with Mr. Binns with reference to closing the workings in the district marked A on the
tracing attached and dotted with a red line ; also my strong objections to doing so, and which I
shall name in order presently.

On the 19th March Mr. Binns stopped me from working in this district, and further obliged me
to put in two very expensive balk-timber wedge-dams at the shaft-openings connecting with our
upper seam, and also other .very stringent conditions as to any future working under the sea. (See
letter attached of 20th March, to which on the 28th March I sent him a reply accepting the
conditions.)

You will see that the district worked and now stopped, and the boundary rib of 66 yards round
it, occupies a space of 21 chains, out of a frontage of 46 chains, with a width of 9£ chains. This
large space has to fill with water, and will cover when the dams are in, and the water reaches to its
level, which is only 40 feet from the surface,.marked on tracing B at the shaft about 20 acres, with
a perpendicular height from the bottom of the A District of 200 feet, with a pressure of 1001b. to
the square inch, as against a pressure from the sea over the abandoned workings of 251b. to the
square inch.

This large body of water would be right in the centre of our workings ; and the lower seam
being only 70 feet from tho upper seam, it is a much more serious consideration with a pressure of
over 1001b. over only 70 feet of cover, than 251b. pressure over at the shallower part, 86 feet; and,
if the water is allowed to fill the closed workings, I shall have to leave a large block of the lower
seam unworked to keep it safe; and this means a serious loss to the company, as we should have
to work all round it both to rise and dip, and we should lose a larger quantity of coal, and also
have a lot of deadworkto doround it.

I would therefore ask that the area marked as A District should be kept open, the company
guaranteeing to keep all fallen places well timbered, and put either stone or wood-packs as required.
I could then open the upper seam to the dip of the A District, and work according to the Inspector's
directions as to size of bords, pillars, &c.

This is the more important as our coal is 12 feet thick in the face of the dip-heading marked C,
and at that spot is still maintaining the regular dip of 1 foot in 4 ; and the sea is only 55 feet deep
one mile out in the sameline, and at the mark C. We now have 156 feet of cover, and would gain
16 feet more in every chain.

By doing this we do not make any more connections between the two seams nowbeing worked
than the one now open at the shaft, and the new upcast shaft, which has to be sunk during the
current year, will be available for areturn of both seams.

I cannot put it too strongly in saying that if closed I shall have to abandon my present lower
seam workings, which are immediatelyunder this large body of water.



I.—4a 56

Another bad effect the closing has had is, that through the downcast air not travelling through
the district, owing to its fillingwith black damp, has caused a very heavy dragon the current, and
the ventilation has not been so good since the water rose above the air-levels; and to put stoppings
in all the openings would cost a lot of money, and they must be kept open to examine them asfar
as possible from time to time.

I would, therefore, strongly recommend your seeing the important interests that are at stake,
both as regards the present, occupiers of the mine and thepublic, to whom the mine belongs; that
the Minister of Mines should be asked to appoint a Commission of, say, Dr. Hector and other
practical authorities,with Mr. Binns, to examine and determine upon this, to our company,very
serious question; as I firmly believe, if this large space is allowed to fill with water, it will be a
standing danger to our future operations. I have, &c,

F. D. Eich, Esq., Managing Director, W. H. Williams,
Shag Point Coal Company (Limited.) Manager.

H.—Mr. F. D. Eich to the Hon. the Minister of Mines.
Sir,— Wellington, sth July, 1883.

I beg to enclose letter from the manager of the Shag Point Coal Company (Limited).
Our manager is asking that an official inquiry should be held by competent authorities (includ-

ing Mr. Binns), with a view that the workings referred to should not be closed. As I believe the
matter referred to is of the most vital importance to present occupiers, as well as to thefuture
welfare and value of the mine, I trust you will grant the desired investigation to determine what
shall be done. I should take it as an especial favour if your decision and action arising therefrom
should be with as much despatch as possible, as the manager is preparing, in compliance with
Inspector's letter, dams which will cost from £300 to £500, and which will be unnecessary if it is
decided not to close the submarine working.

I have, &c,
F. D. Eich,

Managing Director, Shag Point Coal Company (Limited).
The Hon. the Minister of Mines.

I.—Mr. Cox's Eeport.
Sir,— GeologicalDepartment, Wellington, 9th July 1883.

Eeferring to the question of closing the Shag Point submarine workings, I have to point
out that Mr. Williams's objections to the steps taken have no real value, and that Mr. Eich appears
to misunderstand theposition.

It is evident from Mr. Binns's report thathe had no idea of allowing the lower seam of coal to
be worked belowthe area which it is proposed to shut off from the main shaft by dams, as he gives
instances where a greater cover than would exist betweenthe two seams have proved unsafe, and
resulted in accidents and loss of life. The fact that the water is to be allowed to accumulate in
these old workings does, in the first instance, relieve the mine from the expense of pumping which
would be necessary to drain them ; and, whether they were filled with water or not, the dams would
have to be constructed as a safeguard against an influx from the sea, which would assuredly follow
at some time or other, owing to the falls; and, although this may be very remote, thecontingency
would have to be provided for, and an overflow down the shaft prevented, unless great risk to life
is to be incurred.

Of course, if the present submarine workings were drained, and the dams required put in, the
lower seam could be worked belowthis area,so long as no falls of theroof occurred and no influx of
salt water came in ; but the workings would have to be conducted as if a head of water was lying
above them, and in case of falls the men would have to be withdrawn, and the workings dammed off
in the same way as is nownecessary in the upper seam. I fail to see.that any definite advantage
to the mine is to be gained bykeeping the water out of the.present submarine workings ; and, in the
event of it being settled that these are in themselves unsafe, I think the steps taken are the best
which suggest themselves. I have, &c.,

S. Herbert Cox,
Assistant Geologist and Inspector of Mines.

The Director of Geological Survey.

(Telegram.) . Palmerston, 3rd July, 1883.
Shag Point closed, and water in shaft. Cannot get down to see anything. Will write you fully.
Leaving for Dunedin. S. Herbert Cox,

Dr. Hector, Wellington. Assistant Geologist.

Mr. Oliver Wakefield to Dr. Hector.
(Memorandum.)

Please see Mr. Eolleston's minute within. Mr. Binns's Annual Eeport (Mines, 83/651) appended,
Shag Point.

6th July, 1883. " Oliver Wakefield.—*tik --The Hon. W. Eolleston to Dr. Hector.
(Memorandum.)'

Will you read the papers bearing on this matter, and say whether you consider there is aprima
facie case for inquiry. I attach Mr. Binns's report (annual), from which it appears that his action
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has been well considered, and that there is considerable risk both from the water and bad air. It
is a serious matter to Mr. Eich, no doubt, but should not feel justified in interfering, unless you
thought there was sufficient ground to do so. Mr. Cox, I think, has reported approving of Mr.
Binns's action.

6th July, 1883. W. Eolleston.

Memoranda, &c, by Dr. Hector.
The Hon. Mr. Eolleston.

After careful perusal of these papers I am of opinion,—
1. That Mr. Binns has done right in closing the old workings.
2. That the wedgedams, to preventpossible overflow from the closed workings down the shaft,

are absolutely necessary in any case, and cannot be avoided, as Mr. Binns supposes.
3. That the question of allowing water to accumulatein the closed workings is not urgent, and

requires much consideration. My private opinion is that such an accumulation would be astanding
danger to the mine, but not for the reason Mr. Williams gives, as I doubt if the Inspector will
permit the lower seam to be takenfar under the old workings except under most stringent regula-
tions. The real question is whether the danger is so great as to require the mine to be charged
with the constant expense of pumping the old workings; and, as Ihave said, the question can stand
over, and does not alter the question of constructing dams, which should be pushed on without
delay. James Hector.

9th July, 1883.

Eeply that after careful inquiry Government does not see reason to interfere with the course
taken by the Inspector. W. Eolleston.

F. D. Eich, Palmerston, 12th July, 1883.—J.5. 11th July, 1883.

Dr. Hector to the Hon. Mr. Bolleston.
The discrepancybetween my minute on the former papers (9/7/83) and Mr. Eich's account of what
I said to him is easily explained. My conversation with Mr. Eich took place before the papers had
reached me, and before I had seen Mr. Twining's correct plan of the mine, which differs materially
from the tracing of the company's plan that wasused by Mr. Eich when he explained his manager's
reasons for being dissatisfiedwith the action taken by Mr. Binns. The remarks I made were there-
fore based on the supposition that Mr. Eich's version of the matter was correct, which I found not
to be the case when Ihad examined the papers.

As my minute shows, I distinctly approve of the action Mr. Binns has taken, as the respon-
sible Inspector, in closing the old workings. I have a very high opinion of Mr. Binns's skill,
integrity, and judgment in the performance of his duties; but, as I told Mr. Eich, he is probably
a younger man than would be placed in the position of a final referee in such cases at Home, and I
was not awareif he ever had any practical experience of"submarine workings, which often present
very unusual and difficult problems. The subsequent examination of the papers has proved that,
so far as my knowledge goes, he quite understood what he was about.

Nelson, 29th February, 1884. James Hector.

J.—Mr. Denniston's Eeport.
Dear Sirs,— No. 14, Eoss Buildings, Dunedin, August, 1883.

At your request I have made an inspection of all parts of the Shag Point Colliery workings
now open, while my special attention was directed mostly to those points of the workings known
as the Eugen's Plane and submarine workings, which, for the present, has been suspended by
the Government Inspector of Mines (Mr. Binns), pending some alterations which he, individually,
considers necessary, upon his assertion that the covering overhead of the metals are insufficient for
the safety of those workings. The continuance of the submarine workings the Inspector appears
to be willing to allow to extend seaward, provided the company conform to leaving a solidrib of
coal, 3 chains or 66 yards thick, round the seaward or west dip side (seaward), and also north
boundary of these workings; and, further, to allow of these workings so confined to fill with
drainage water from the higher parts of the coaly workings reaching thus high up into portions of the
workings not under the sea, thus reaching past and flooding the workings around shaft known as
No. 2 Shaft, now working; while in detail he (the Inspector) has ordered shaft to be built round
with timber back-dams, thus confining the water in a confined space. In his opinion, he, no
doubt, expects the water so confined to withstand against risk of downward settlement.

While from results of survey made by the Public Works Department of those submarine
workings, also from soundings taken, results of which show a covering at least,point of a 130 feet
of cover at the foreshore, with increasing cover on reaching to the dip seaward, Inspector Binns has
confined his restrictions, being favourable to allow of these submarine workings extending to dip
where a cover shows overhead of 150 feet.

From inspection made of those parts of the workings, with a view to special examination, I
found them wrought upon the system of post and stace, with four roadways, driven to dip, forming
incline planes driven 9 to 12 feet wide, and distance apart 1J„ 3, and 3-|- chains, withbords or staces
broken off at intervals of 20, 2.5, and 30 feet apart, and driven 15 feet wide on the strike of the coal.

While the full thickness of * coal, varying from 8, 10, and 12 feet, has been taken out
by the process wrought, the workings, after standing unused for some time, appear to be
sound, and ample allowance made by having strong and ample pillars to withstand pressure
through the narrow roadways that have been prudently driven, thus giving provision
support of strata, which consists of shale and soft sandstones, covered with hard bands
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compact shale and sandstones, where by comparison with the journal of the metals sunk through
in Shaft No. 1. The nature of such metal being that, when kept free from water saturation, they
withstand great pressure, though with saturation they soften and swell, as may reasonably be
expected to do, through the action now taken by Inspector Binns, in ciusihg theseworkings to be
filled with water ; that, in place of theflooded water acting as a support, I am of opinion, will have
a material aiding tendency to keep heavy falls taking place within these workings, thus causing a
weakening tendency upwards, through water being confined together, in time assisted by after
downward pressure, aiding thus an early settlement from pressure from the sea. Though not
losing sight of the provision made by Inspector for a rib of coal to be left 66 yards thick, I am
strongly of opinion that the water so left confined in these workings, considering the soft nature of
the strata, such weight would cause percolation, and ultimately find vent in volume into the future
dipworkings outside of this rib ; the space made, forming a suction with weight of water on high side,
would assist thepercolation through the shales that exist on roof and also floor of coal.

From results of inspection made of those submarineworkings, and in examinations of thefew
falls that have taken place throughout the workings have, in all instances, jammed themselves and
settled sufficientlytight to withstand the downward pressure in about 20 to 25 feet, which includes
the thickness of the coal wrought out, the falls appearing to take that of a wedge shape andkey the
measures thus:—

[Here diagram shown.]
That from such results it has, at first sight, led me to the conclusion—that is, assuming that all the
pillars average 5 to 6 yards wide—that the Inspector has somewhat hurriedly arrived at his conclu-
sions ; as comparing thefact that the measures dip seaward 1 in 4, in that so far as they have gone,
they appear to hold, the same dip that the amount of cover required being 150 feet is met with in
the dip part of these workings and still increasing on working seawards.

Considering the interests of capital invested in opening out of these workings, and, jointly, that
of the safetyof the workings, all interests under such circumstances would be better protected by
keeping the overhead measures constantly drained and free from standage water, and by adopting
a system of stowing tight the four incline planes, with waste from the higher parts of the workings;
while as such work advances I would be in favour of drawing the timbers from the bords or staces,
and allow same to settle. By such a system a rib of coal one chain thick would be ample to
withstand the future safetyof the dip workings, and thus confine the area so treated; thatby this
system the interest of all concerned would be met from possible inroads or risk of danger.

At this stage I am met with, on comparing the tracing plan of these dip-workings supplied me by
your company, I find large pillars showing 20, 33, also lower pillars between last bord and lower
level 60 feet thick with bords showing as driven 10 and 15 feet wide (that is more particularly on
theportion of workings to north), and roadways showing as regular driven (on plan), holding a
given width. These portions of the workings Ihave not been able to traverse and judge for myself
owing to their being flooded. While, on the other hand, the recent Government survey and plan of
these submarine workings shows bords driven 20 feet, and in instances greater widths, together
with bords running into each other, thereby leaving little or no pillar supports, in most instances 2
to 3 yards thickness of pillar holding. Thus for considerable extent in one place, more particularly
where pillars have been crushed close to extreme north point of these workings, shows a space of
fallen areaand necessary crushed pillars, equal in the two falls of over quarter of an acre. Such
discrepanciesbetween the twoplans are to me unaccountable.

If the Government plans are to be taken as the correct state (latest) of theseworkings, with
such an extent of fallen area, and also thin pillars, then I am reluctantly compelled, with all
prudence, to agree with the action taken by the Inspector. It would then be left for the best,
ultimately, interests of the companythe laying-out of a newplan of operations seaward, starting in
the lower seam from present Shaft No. 2, with a view in time of driving through to, and opening
out in the upper seam after sufficient safe distance has been driven from present flooded workings,
which, probably only would be sanctioned by Inspector after safely securing present working shaft
from danger of flooding.

Though, should the company be prepared to uphold the accuracy of their survey as to up-keep
and safety left for support (that is, to thickness of pillars left exceeding 5 yards thick, and regularly
driven, as shown on plan), also to non-existence of fallen areas as appears on the Government
plans, I would thenbe of opinion that the workings would be safer and to better advantage stowed
tight with waste in the manner as previously described, and kept free from standage water, thus
permitting safety with great extent of margin for up-keep of overhead strata, which, under such
circumstances is ample, that the future extended workings could be carried on seaward with perfect
safety, which I insist upon; the fact obtained from the Government plans showing overhead of
present lowerlevel of those parts of the workings 211-J- feet of measures.

I have, &c.,
-m The Shag Point Coal Company, Shag Point. Eobt. B. Denniston.

K.—Mr. Denniston's Supplementary Eeport.
Dear Sir,—

Eeferring to my remarks made in report to you on the submarine workings at Shag Point,
bearing date August, 1883, in which the' reports reads, page 5, thus : "If the Government plans
are to be taken as the correct state (latest) of these workings, with such an extent of fallen area
and also theirpillars, then I am reluctantly compelled, with all prudence, to agree with the action
taken by the Inspector"—the meaning I intend by the clause so written to convey being that the
Inspector, in his opinion, considering the workings unsafe, took upon himself (which probably is
within his duties to do) to issue orders for the workmen to be withdrawn and abandon the
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workings; that upon these grounds, if unsafe, I agree with the Inspector in his action. Such
being done, the full exercise of his duties being carried out allows of him having no further say as
regards these workings.

The after action the Inspector apparently took of issuing orders for the mine to be flooded
with water (it is not intended by the reading of the clause referred to in report that I in any way
" embrace " or agree with such an action, which may be seen from the general tenor of the report,
it being against waterbeing allowed .to accumulate in the workings), I could not under any circum-
stances agreewith Inspector Binns's action, knowing he is incompetent to judgepractically of such
matters as to effect, &c. While from my own knowledge, considering the nature of the measures
overhead to surface being shales and sandstones, their structure in the mass being that, when kept
free from standage water in underground workings, they afford a good and substantial support, but
from accumulative water in workings they swell and act detrimental to the upkeep of subterraneous
workings, and somewhat very detrimental, in the case of the Shag Point submarine workings, by
swelling the shales, eating the foot from under the pillars left for support, saturating the shales
overhead, and necessarily causing a loosening of the strata and weighting of the overhead
measures. Such action, taken to the instruction of Inspector Binns, has evidently been the means
(cause) of the inroad of sea water to Shag Point workings, while otherwise, if such an excess of
duty had not been resorted to by Inspector Binns, those workings would no doubt be in a state of
preservation at the present time, and afforded access for others to judge of the state of the lower
parts of these workings.

In conclusion, I may say that all practical men I have conversed with upon the action taken
(and have no doubt any other practical men, should matters be properly represented to them,
likewise other Government Inspectors) could not do otherwise than disagree with InspectorBinns
in what appears his arbitrary exercise of his theoretical ideas, resulting in such a loss of property to
your company. I have, &c,

The General Manager of the Shag Point Coal Company. E. B. Denniston.

Mr. G. J. Binns to the Under-Secretary of Mines.
(Telegram.) Dunedin, 13th February, 1884.

Be Shag Point Colliery. The mine is not closed by me but the ocean, which has broken into the
upper seam, and isrising gradually to fill the old workings in this seam. This will leave only seventy
feet of measures for the protection of the lower or shaft workings, which is obviously insufficient,and
I have written Mr. Williams as follows : "I therefore regret that, in my opinion, there is no other
course open than to withdrawthe whole of the workmen from the pit:" thus leaving ample room
for him to object to my opinion. I have no power to arbitrarily close the mine, and it is quite open
to the owners to proceed to arbitration as provided by section 19of the regulations of Mines Act.
Indeed, I have not even given the statutory notice, especially as Mr. Eich appeared as apprehensive
of danger as myself. The water is salt, is rising much more rapidly than before, and there are said
to be a number of fissures recently open on the beach between low- and high-water-marks. A
numberof men withdrewfrom thepit on Monday last, as salt waterwas descending the shaft, and
they were frightened of losing their lives. They gave in their notices rather than work there.
Grossly inaccurate and damaging statements have appeared in the local Press, and I am waiting for
Ministerial authority to contradict them officially. Any further information required can be sent.
A report was posted yesterday. G. J. Binns,

Inspector of Mines.

Mr. G. J. Binns to the Under-Secretary of Mines.
(Telegram.) Dunedin, 14th February, 1884.

From informationreceived, I fancy that Mr. Eich will rely on portion of Denniston's report relative
to inadvisability of allowing subaqueous workings to fill with water. If you wall read that report
entirely you will see that Denniston, in the last three paragraphs, upholds my action, if Twining's
plan is correct, which it is. G. J. Binns,

Inspectorof Mines.

Authority : Gkobge Didsbuhy, Government Printer, Wellington.—lBB4.
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APPENDIX TO BEPOET OF WASTE LANDS COMMITTEE ON PETITION OF
F. D. EICH AND W. H. WlLLlAMS—continued.

Messrs. Chapman and Strode to the Hon. the Minister of Mines.
Sir,— Dunedin, 28th February, 1884.

We have the honour, by instructions from the managing director of the Shag Point Coal
Company (Limited), to inform you that the Shag Point Mine has ceased working, and to draw your
attention to the following facts in connection with the suspension of operations:—

The mine has for some time past been worked in two different directions : one of the workings
being under the sea, and the other under the mainland. On the 19th March, 1883, Mr. Binns, the
Inspector of Mines for Otago, after inspecting the mine, informed Mr. Williams, the manager of the
company, that, owing to the fact that water was percolating through the roof of the submarine
workings, the miners must be withdrawn, and the working under the sea stopped. Mr. Williams
accordingly stopped work in this part of the mine, and withdrewthe men; but at the same time
he requested Mr. Binns to allow the submarine workings to be kept dry by means of pumping, as
he anticipated that the introduction of a large body of water into the submarine workings would not
only tend to soften and destroy the roof, but that in course of time the water would rise sufficiently
high in these workings to render those conducted on the mainland unsafe. Thisrequest wasrefused
by Mr. Binns, who insisted upon Mr. Williamsclosing the submarine workings, andpermitting the
water to enter.

Mr. F. D. Eich, the managing director of the company,communicatedMr. Binns's instructions
to yourself on the sth July last, and asked that,before such an important step as the closing of the
company's submarine working was taken, a Commission of experts should be appointed by the
Government to determine upon the wisdom of the course forced upon the company. No
Commission was however appointed, and the company had to submit to what was considered by
the directors and othersa fatal mistake on the part of the Inspector.

During the early part of the present month Mr. Binns again inspected themine, and found that
exactly what had been anticipated by the company had actually happened. The walls and roof,
which were composed of shale and sandstone, had, owing to the rise of water,become loosened, and
large blocks had fallen; and, in addition to this, the water was then rising in the submarine work-
ings at such a rate as to make it apparent that in a very short time the land workings which were
connected with the marine workings would be flooded. The pressure of water had by this time
increased from 251b. to 1001b. to the square inch, and the walls which previous to this were well
able to sustain the pressure became unable to do so, andan inroad from the marine to the land work-
ings was imminent.

On the 11th instant Mr. Binns wrote to the manager of the company, pointing out that the
water hadrisen in the submarine workings, and to such an extent as to render the remainingwork-
ings quite unsafe, and requesting him to withdraw the whole of the miners from the pit. The men
were accordingly withdrawn, and the mine was entirely closed.

We are instructed to point out that the casualty which had been anticipated by the manager,
and which he had drawnthe Inspector's special attention to in March, 1383, has actually occurred;
and that it is due entirely to the fact that the company were forbidden to continue their pumping
operations, and compelled to allow the water to rise in the submarine workings ; and, further, that
not only did the manager of the company and the managing director urge the strongest objections
to the course insisted on by the Inspector, but the engineer whom the company called in at the
time agreed with the companyin this matter.

We may point out that the Inspector of Mines has almost unlimited power in deciding upon
the mode of working coal mines, and that from his decision there is virtually no appeal; that, in
the present instance, not only was the course insisted on by him most strongly objected to at the
time, but that the very misfortune which has now happened to the company was predicted by the
manager. 'We have the honour, under the above circumstances, to request that you will allow the facts
contained in our letter to be investigated by a Commission, consisting of competent persons, who
may decide the question as to whether or not the submarine workings of the company should have
been allowedto fill with water.

Should you consent to such a course being adopted, we have the honour to suggest that the
Commission should be composed of three experts—one chosen by the Government, one by the
Shag Point Coal Company, and a third by both of the persons nominated.

We are, &c,
The Hon. the Minister of Mines, Wellington. Chapman and Strode.

Messrs. Chapman and Strode to the Hon. the Minister of Mines.
Sir,— Dunedin, 28th March, 1884.

We have the honour to request that, in referring to our former letter of the 28th February,
you will allow us to correct a mistake which has occurred in it. We stated therein that "on the
19thMarch, 1883, Mr. Binns, the Inspector of Mines for Otago, after inspecting the mine, informed
Mr. Williams that, owing to the fact that waterwas percolating through the roof of the submarine
workings, the miners must be withdrawn." We understood at the time that this was the case, but
we have since found that we were wrong. It was when Mr. Binns niado his final inspection in
February, 1884/and not in March, "1883-, that he informed the Shag Point Company's directors that
water was at that timepercolating through the roof.

We understand thaton the 19th March, 1883, there was no percolation of water through the
roof at all, and that the only water coming into the mine was the ordinary leakage, and that this
was quite fresh, showing that at that time no salt water had come through.

We have, &c,
The Hon. the Minister of Mines, Wellington. Chapman and Strode.
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The Under-Secbetaby for Mines to Messrs. Chapman and Strode.
Gentlemen— " Wellington, 12th March, 1884.

I am directed by the Minister of Mines to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the
28th ultimo upon the subject of an inquiry into the circumstances of the stoppage of the Shag
Point Coal Mine, and, in reply, to inform you that, after having carefully consideredthe matter, it
does not appear to Mr. Eolleston that any action which can now be taken will afford a remedy or
reinstate the mine in its former position, the timewhen inquiry might have been applied for, such aiS
that contemplated by theEegulation of Mines Act, having passed.

Under all the circumstances, therefore, and seeing that the Inspector of Mines has not
exceededthe powers conferred upon him in terms of the license held by the company, or such as
would ordinarily be exercised by him under the provisions of the Eegulation of Mines Act, the
Governmentis nowunable to comply with the request for a Commission of inquiry notprovided
for by the Act. I have, &c,

Oliver Wakefield,. Messrs. Chapman and Strode, Dunedin. Under-Secretaryfor Mines.

Messrs. Chapman and Strode to the Hon. the Minister of Mines.
Sir,— Dunedin, 20th March, 1884.

We have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 12th instant, in which
you inform us that our request for a Commission of inquiry cannot be granted, "it not being
provided for by the Act."

We cannot help expressing our surprise and regret that so serious a calamity to both public
and private interests should be so lightly passed over, and so technical a reason given for not
allowingan inquiry to take place.

We do not expect thatany action which can now be taken will afford a remedy or reinstate
the mine, but we respectfully submit that, when private individuals have expended large sums of
money in opening up an industry of public importance, as has been done by the Shag Point Colliery
Company, they have a right to expect some consideration at the hands of the Government, and to
expect that an inquiry at least should be instituted into the acts of their officer under whose
direction and decision they were compelled to act.

We submit, moreover, that, should it be proved that the disaster to the mine has been caused
by the Inspector's directions having been followed, the Government may fairly be expected to
compensate the proprietors to some extent for their loss.

We may add, further, that the proprietors are most anxious to avoid any litigation, and would
submit to their loss should it be shown that Mr. Binns was right in the course he directed them to
take; but, if the Government thinks it right to refuse their most reasonable request for an inquiry
into the actionof their officer, they must take such steps to enforce their claims as they may be
advised. They trust, however, that the Minister will admit the justice of their claim to have an
inquiry instituted, and will therefore reconsider the determination conveyed in your letter.

We are, &c,
The Hon. the Minister of Mines, Wellington. Chapman and Strode.

The Under-Secretary for Mines to Messrs. Chapman and Strode.
Gentlemen,— Mines Department, Wellington, 25th March, 1884.

I am directed to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 20th instant, in further
reference to the subject of an inquiry into the circumstances connected with the stoppage of the
works at the Shag Point Coal Mine, and, in reply, to inform you that Mr. Eolleston does not see
any reason to alter his previous decision. I have, &c,

H. J. H. Eliott,
Messrs. Chapman and Strode, Dunedin. Under-Secretary.
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